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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
201 Welch Hall
(734) 487-2410
October 1, 2013
8:30AM-9:15 AM

AthleticAffairs Committee

Room 201

8:30 AM-9:15 AM

Educational Policies Committee

Room 205

9:30 AM-10:15 AM

FacultyAffairs Committee

Room 205

10:30 AM-11:15 AM

StudentAffairs Committee

Room 201

11:30AM-12:15 PM

Finance and Investment Committee Room 201

1:30 PM

Regular Board Meeting

Room 201

AGENDA
Call to Order
Roll CallAttendance
TabA

Open Communications

TabB

President's Report

TabC

Proposed Minutes of the June18, 2013 Regular Board Meeting

TabD

Introduction of Presidential Scholars

CONSENT AGENDA

Section 1
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section 5
Section 6
Section 7
Section 8

StaffAppointments
Staff Separations/Retirements
Emeritus Staff Recommendations
Emeritus Faculty Recommendations
Academic Retirements and Separations
FacultyAppointments
Lecturer Promotion
AcademicAffairsAdministrative Transfers

REGULAR AGENDA

Student Affairs Committee
Section 9
Report and Minutes

Athletic Affairs Committee
Section 10
Report and Minutes
Section 11
Approval of Employment Agreement - Vice President and Director of Intercollegiate
Athletics, Heather Lyke
Section 12
Approval of Employment Agreement - Women's Softball Coach, Melissa Gentile
Faculty Affairs Committee
Section 13
Report and Minutes
Educational Policies Committee
Section 14
Report and Minutes
Section 15
Proposed Modification to Fall 2014 Calendar
Section 16
Proposed New Public Health Major
Section 17
Proposed M.A. in Philosophy
Section 18
Proposed Ed.D. to Ph.D. Revision
Section 19
Charter Schools Board Member Appointments
Finance and Investment Committee
Section 20
Report and Minutes
Section 21
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information as of June 30, 2013
Section 22
FY 2014-15 General Fund, Scholarships, Awards and Grants Request
Section 23
FY 2014-15 State Capital Outlay Request
New Business
Section 24
Updated Policy: 8.2: Student Programs and Requirements, Access to Student Records
Section 25
Updated Policy: 3.7.4: Employment and Affirmative Action, General, Extreme
Weather
Section 26
Naming Opportunity
Section 27
Board of Regents Meeting Dates for 2014
Comments from the Chair
Adjournment

Tab A

EMU Board of Regents
Public Communications
201 Welch Hall
Tuesday, October 1, 2013 at 1 :30 p.m.
SEVEN PEOPLE HA VE REQUESTED TO SPEAK- as of September 30, 2013

SEVEN CONFIRMED SPEAKERS- 4.29 minutes each

1. Dale R. Leslie - WEMU: An investment asset under-utilized

2. Howard Bunsis (EMU-AAUP)-State appropriations and performance funding

3. Anarosa Mendoza-King (Dare to Dream)-the concepts our student organization would like
to see developed in the residency policy for undocumented students and the sentiments
surrounding them

4. Arturo Rodriguez, Jr. (Latino Student Association and EMU Dare to Dream)- Eastern
granting undocumented students tuition equality like Wayne State University and University
of Michigan
5. Patrick J. Barry, Jr. (EMU Alumni Association) - Good news about alumni, teachers and
EMU

6. Desmond Miller (Student Government)-Student Body Update

7. Colin Blakely (Art Department at EMU)-Newly created map of campus art at EMU and its
relation to endeavors to establish an art trail on campus

Tab B
President's Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents' Meeting
October 1, 2013

Eastern Michigan is the fastest growing public university in the state of Michigan for new
freshmen over the last three years.
Our fall 2013 freshman class of 2,872 surpasses Eastern's previous all-time record of
2,854, set in 1999, and represents an increase of 43 percent or 864 students over the
last three years.
For the second consecutive year, Eastern is also welcoming its largest ever overall
class of new undergraduates, with a total of 5,210 new students. This total includes
first-time freshmen, transfer students, students pursuing a second degree and other
types of new undergraduate students - and surpasses last year's record class of new
undergraduates of 5,076 students.
Our dramatic growth in enrollment, in which we are bucking state and national trends in
declining freshman enrollment, demonstrates Eastern's continued commitment to
keeping costs down while increasing financial aid, hiring new faculty and investing
wisely in key academic and student facilities.
As part of our overall strategy, today we are recommending for Board of Regents
approval a 2014-2015 financial aid budget of $43.8 million, representing an 11 percent
increase over this year's budget of $39.2 million and a 100 percent increase from seven
years ago.
In addition to record numbers, this year's incoming freshman class is better prepared
academically. The average GPA of incoming freshmen is 3.24, up from 3.18 in 2012,
and 3.11 in 2011. Average ACT scores are also climbing. This year's freshman class
has an average ACT score of 22, up from 21.4 last year and 21.1 in 2011.
The University's Honors College program, which accepts students entering with at least
a 25 ACT score and 3.5 high school GPA, has nearly doubled in freshman enrollment
since 2011. The University has admitted its largest honors freshman class ever, and
has about 1,200 students in the overall honors program. We are excited to introduce
our new group of Presidential Scholars in just a few minutes.
Increased enrollment also means more students living on campus. This fall, Eastern
Michigan is housing more than 3,900 on-campus students, up from 3,240 in 2010 and
representing the most students living on-campus since 2003.
Not only are more students enrolling at Eastern, more are graduating as well. A record
number of 2,376 students graduated last spring, an increase of more than 27 percent
since 2007.
Eastern students come from 79 Michigan counties, all 50 states and 71 different
countries.
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As we grow, we remain focused on our primary mission, which is to offer students an
outstanding, connected academic experience that prepares them for today's competitive
job market.
The University's strategic planning process is moving to completion. Forums will be
conducted to provide opportunities for campus input. The Mission, Vision, Values were
adopted in June by the Board of Regents. Work is currently underway on four strategic
themes: Student Engagement and Success, High Performing Academic Programs and
Quality Research, Institutional Effectiveness, and Service and Engagement. Goals,
objectives, initiatives and measurements in each area are being developed.
I am pleased to introduce our new Vice President and Director of Intercollegiate
Athletics, Heather Lyke. Heather began here in late July and hit the ground running
from day one. She is committed to the success of our student-athletes in the classroom
and on the field, and engagement with the campus and greater community.
Also, please welcome our new Women's Softball Coach Melissa Gentile.
We are engaged in national searches for a Vice President of University Human
Resources and also an Associate Vice President for Student Affairs and Dean of
Students. Eastern is committed to a high level of service for employees and students.
The Student Government Gateway Scholarship was established earlier this year to
provide undocumented students who are Michigan residents with an opportunity to
bridge the cost difference between in-state and out-of-state tuition. Donors can
contribute to the fund through the EMU Foundation. It is available to undocumented
students who provide proof of Michigan residency for the last two years; complete the
admissions process through the Office of Admissions; maintain satisfactory academic
progress; enroll in a minimum of 30 credit hours per academic year; and demonstrate
financial need.
Many other accomplishments are listed in the Appendix to this Report, which is
available on the University's website. Thank you, Chair Parker.
Susan Martin

President's ReporV 3
Recognition:
•

EMU senior Megan Lepkowski recently won the silver medal at the Nation's Cup in
Logrono, Spain with her Theater on Ice team. Shortly after, Lepkowski and her team
won the gold medal at the U.S. Figure Skating national Theatre on Ice Competition.

•

Eastern Michigan University's student chapter of the Society for Human Resource
Management earned a Superior Merit Award from the national organization. The
chapter was also awarded an Outstanding Student Chapter Award and designated
as one of the top 10 chapters in the country.

•

Eastern Michigan University was rated number one in the state of Michigan for its ROTC
programs for future service members according to The College Database, a provider of
educational information for students and parents across the country. The database
ranked Eastern Michigan first based on affordability and its ROTC programs for Army,
Navy and Air Force.

•

Eastern Michigan University was named one of the "Best in the Midwest" for the
11 1h consecutive year by The Princeton Review. EMU was cited for its excellent
academic programs. Only 155 of 530 Midwest colleges receive the "best" designation.

•

SASHE, LLC (Sisters Achieving Success, Harmony & Empowerment) announced that
Eastern is one of the companies selected for the "Great Companies for Women"
awards.

•

Eastern Michigan University received honorable mention in the 2013 Construction &
Design Award category for the Science Complex HVAC Engineered System Design
at the Engineering Society of Detroit's annual dinner.

•

Eastern's Division of Communications won two awards from the Detroit Chapter of the
International Association of Business Communicators (IABC). EMU was recognized with
Merit Awards for its "Study on the Slopes" and "I AM TRUEMU" marketing campaigns.

•

David Duggar, director of Early College Alliance, was honored with the David A. Skiven
Leadership Award by the Engineering Society of Detroit. He was chosen for his service
and contributions to both the engineering society and the STEM Symposium.

•

Gary Koppleman, an EMU alumnus, has been honored by Shell Oil Company and the
National Science Teachers Association with the 2013 Shell Science Teaching Award for
the positive impact he has had on his students, school and community through
exemplary classroom science teaching.
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Gifts & Grants:

•

General Motors granted Project Lead the Way programs in Michigan, including a
$300,000 three-year renewable commitment for EMU. The grant will go toward STEM
education in Michigan.

•

More than $40,000 was raised during the Dr. John A. Weeks Scholarship Golf Outing
held on Sept. 11 at Eagle Crest Golf Course. The annual event, hosted by the EMU
Construction Management Alumni Chapter, supports the scholarship that enables
outstanding students to receive a first-class construction management education
at Eastern.

•

The second Greg O'Dell Golf Outing was held Sept. 20 at Eagle Crest Golf Club.
Preliminary numbers indicate $30,000 was raised toward the three-year goal
of $100,000 to endow the O'Dell Scholarship Fund for Criminal Justice
Students. The first recipient of this scholarship attended and spoke during the program.

•

Hitomi Oketani of World Languages has received two awards to advance learning,
teaching and speaking of the Japanese language in southeastern Michigan. The
Michigan Japanese Bilingual Education Foundation awarded her a $12,900 grant while
the Japanese-American School of Southeast Michigan awarded her a $9,776 grant.

•

Digital Inclusion, a computer refurbishment, technical training program and social
enterprise operated by Eastern Michigan University, won a $15,000 prize in the
inaugural Social Entrepreneurship Challenge launched by Michigan Corps.

•

English Professor Cathy Fleischer and Sarah Andrew-Vaughan, an English teacher at
Huron High School in Ann Arbor, recently won a $12,000 National Writing Project award
from the U.S. Department of Education. The new seven-month project will allow a three
part, online learning experience to introduce teachers to Fleischer and Andrew
Vaughan's 2009 book, Writing Outside Your Comfort Zone: Helping Students Navigate
Unfamiliar Genres.

Events:

•

The Eastern Michigan University basketball teams will head "Back to Bowen" for three
games this upcoming season. The men's basketball team will host Concordia University
on Nov. 12 and Robert Morris University on Nov. 14. An alumni game will also be held
on Nov. 14. The women's basketball team will host Butler University on Nov. 13.

•

The first annual EMU Professional Development Business Conference was held at
the College of Business on Thursday, Sept. 19. Paul W. Smith of WJR Radio was on
hand, broadcasting live. More than 1,800 students attended the event and more than
40 alumni were at the event to present workshops. A networking event in the evening
was held for more than 400 current graduate students and alumni.
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•

Homecoming Week, Sept. 1 6-22, was a great success. Events included the annual
"donut drop" across campus on Monday; the CMTA Department's celebration of its 50th
birthday celebration on Tuesday; "green and white day, " the T-shirt exchange and the
campus picnic on Wednesday; a TruEMU Block Party and pep rally on Thursday; a
Homecoming cook-off event by Dining Services on Friday; the Golden Years Brunch
at University House and many tailgates prior to the game on Saturday; and, Oozeball
on Sunday.

•

EMU hosted an interna tional s occer tournament on Sept. 14 at the Indoor Practice
Facility to promote friendship among eight nations (Germany, Iraq, Spain, Syria, Turkey,
UK, USA and Yemen). The annual all day event, co-organized by the Consular Corps
of Michigan, EMU Athl etics a nd EMU World Languages, is one of many international
events at EMU that highlight the 40 nations of the Consular Corps who sponsor EMU
student internships.

•

The Eastern campus community commemorated the soth anniversary of the March on
Wash i ngton and Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.'s "I have a Dream" speech on Wednesday,
Aug. 28.

•

Eastern hosted the National Junior Olympic Games' track and field events, July 27 Aug. 3 at Rynearson Stadium. More than 12,000 youth participated in the world's
largest track and field event of its kind.

•

Detroit Tigers fans from EMU hit a h omerun by raising $2, 600 for SOS Community
Services. More than 500 supporters turned out for TRUEMU Day a t Comerica Park on
July 10.

Of N ote:
•

The new physician assista nt program at EMU was recently awarded its provisional
accreditation by the Accreditation Review Commission on Education for the Physician
Assistant. Eastern's 24-month program is scheduled to start in May 2014.

•

Extensive renovations at Best Residence Hall highlighted another active summer of
construction at EMU. The $2.28 million Best Hall project included an array of
renovations aimed at improving students' living and learning experiences.

A t h l etics Highlights
•

Women's Cross Country: the women's cross country team received NCAA Public
Recognition Awards for exceptional work in the classroom as part of the NCM's
Academic Performance Program .

•

Men's Golf: Jordan Young, the assistant men's golf coach, has been named the 2013
recipient of the PGA Player Development award for his drive to coach and teach.
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•

Women's Golf: A l yssa Kwon, Corey Crossa n , M eredith Fairbairn and Karyn Lee
Ping were among 644 women golfers in Divisions I, 1 1 , and Ill who were nominated to
the All-American Scholar Team by the WGCA.

•

Gymnastics: 1 2 EMU gymnasts were named to the Academic All-American team by the
National Association of Collegiate Gymnastics Coaches. The athletes are: Brittany
Cassar, Shawna Ciaramella, Cam il l e Cicchini, Kimberly Ebeyer, Amanda Fuller,
Khadijah H u d son, Kristina Kurkmilis, Alexandra Lekson, Erica Mahan, Paulina
M i l l er, N ikki Pa terson and Anna Wi llette.

•

Soccer: the soccer team recognized Ovarian Cancer Awareness Day during their match
against Indiana. At halftime, the team presented a plaque and flowers to the Kaim
family. Cheryl Kaim, mother of current player Allison and former player Julie Kaim,
passed away in 201 1 fighting ovarian cancer. Cheryl was not only a mother to her girls,
but to the entire EMU soccer team. The Eagles honored her and the rest of those
affected by ovarian cancer by raising more than $5,000 for the National Ovarian
Cancer Coa l i ti o n.

•

Swimming & Diving: both the men's and women's swim and dive teams at EMU were
given the Team Scholar All-American Award. Three athletes, Andrew H enry, Briana
Emig and Danielle Hulvey, have been named to the College Swimming Coaches
Association of America's NCAA Division I Scholar All-American Teams.

•

Swimming & Diving (Women's): Kelly Hendricks earned the Diving Career
Improvement Award in the 201 2- 1 3 issue of Profiles in Excellence, released by
CollegeSwimmingAwards.com.

•

Track & Field (Women's): Alysha N ewman took fifth place in pole vaulting in the Jeux
de la Francophonie games in France with Team Canada. H eather Hamilton took third
place in the same competition. Newman took the title for pole vaulting at the Pan
American Junior Athletics Championships in August.

•

Tennis: Anki ta Bhatia, Nino Mebuke and Klara Supejova have been named to the
Intercollegiate Tennis Association's Scholar Athlete list for the 2 0 1 2- 1 3 season.

•

Volleyball: the volleyball team received NCAA Public Recogniti o n Awards for
exceptional work in the classroom as part of the NCAA's Academic Performance
Program.

* * * * *

Tab C

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents Meeting
June 18, 2013

These are the proposed minutes of the June 18, 2013 Board of Regents meeting.

The meeting of the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents was called to order by
Chairman Parker at 1 :32 p.m. in Room 201, Welch Hall, Ypsilanti, Michigan.
The Board members present were:

Regent Floyd Clack, Regent Beth Fitzsimmons, Regent Michael Hawks, Vice Chair Mike
Morris, Chairman Francine Parker, Regent James Stapleton, Regent Mary Treder Lang
and Regent James Webb.
There was a quorum.
TAB A

OPEN COMMUNICATIONS

Vice President/Secretary Reaume announced that 5 people requested to address the
Board of Regents. Each speaker was given up to 6 minutes to speak.
1. Howard Bunsis (EMU-AAUP)-Misplaced Priorities

2. Desmond Miller (Student Government)- Student Government New Slogan and Logo

3. Rosemarie Gonzales -Concerns for the future of Gaudior Academy, EMU's first
charter school
4. Gregory A. Peoples - Appreciation for opportunity to serve EMU
5. Marvin Johnson- Athletics

TAB B
President's Report
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents' Meeting
June 1 8, 2013

We recommend for Board of Regents approval a 20 1 3-201 4 General Fund operating
budget of $296.4 million. The budget includes $39.2 million in University-sponsored
financial aid, an increase of $3.8 million (1 1 percent) from the 2012-201 3 budget.
Financial aid has increased 80 percent in six years, from $2 1 .4 million in 2007-2008 to
$39.2 million in 201 3-2014. Revenues for 201 3-20 1 4 include $21 8.4 million of tuition
and fees, a $67.6 million state appropriation and $ 1 0.4 million of other revenues.
Eastern will have the lowest dollar increase in tuition over the last five years than any of
the 1 5 public universities in the State with this recommendation of a 3. 75 percent
increase. Eastern's tuition increases have averaged 3 percent over that time frame,
including the 0%, 0%, 0% tuition, fees and room and board freeze in 2010-20 1 1 .
A capital plan budget of $9.2 million is recommended. The last five years, from 20082009 to 201 2-20 1 3 , represents a period of unprecedented capital investment at Eastern.
Overall capital spending totaled $220 million, with two-thirds invested in academic
facility enhancements, 1 0 percent in housing and dining renovations and improvements,
and the balance invested in campus infrastructure, safety and security, IT infrastructure
and classroom technology, and other student and athletic facilities. Highlights include the
completion of the $90 million self-funded Science Complex, the complete overhaul and
renovation of our largest classroom building, Pray-Harrold, and the renovation and
upgrades of residence halls and dining areas.
The recommended budget includes funding for 33 new faculty in Fall 2013, and 4 1
additional searches have been authorized for Fall of 2014. Eastern continues to invest in
faculty, facilities and financial aid to create a great education at an affordable price. As a
result, students are coming to Eastern in record numbers and living on campus.
Today an updated Mission, Vision, and Values are recommended for Board approval.
"Mission: EMU enriches lives in a supportive, intellectually dynamic and diverse
community. Our dedicated faculty balance teaching and research to prepare students
with relevant skills and real world awareness. We are an institution of opportunity where
students learn in and beyond the classroom to benefit the local and global communities.
Vision: Eastern Michigan University will be a premier public university recognized for
student-centered learning, high quality academic programs and community impact." Our
core values are excellence, respect, inclusiveness, responsibility and integrity. The
Deloitte market analysis of October 2012 informed our strategic planning efforts noting
that 72 percent of our bachelor degrees are in fields that feed into 1 83 higher-wage,
2

higher-demand occupations needed in the next ten years. As a public university we are
producing graduates that meet Michigan employer needs. Our strategic planning efforts
will culminate after input in early fall with a complete plan of goals, objectives, and
performance measures in four strategic themes: student engagement and success, high
performing academic programs and quality research, institutional effectiveness, and
service and engagement.

As part of our continuing efforts to improve retention and the academic support of our
students, we are pleased to announce the opening of the Francine Parker Advising Center,
named after our Board Chair whose donation supported improvements in student
advising. The new service-oriented, drop-in advising center is located in the Student
Center. You are invited to attend the opening event at 3 p.m. today in Room 120 of the
Student Center, which is on the ground floor adjacent to the food court.
We are pleased to announce the sixth purchase of a home in Ypsilanti by an Eastern
employee as part of the LiveYpsi program, which was initiated last year. Under the
program, which is funded by Washtenaw County, DTE Energy and Eastern Michigan
University, EMU employees can receive forgivable loans for purchasing or renovating a
home to live in Ypsilanti as part of our greater campus community.

Many other accomplishments are listed in the Appendix to this Report, which is available
on the University's website. Thank you, Chair Parker.
Susan Martin

TAB C
PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE APRIL 16, 2013 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Regent Morris moved and Regent Clack seconded that the proposed minutes for the April
1 6, 2013 Board meeting be approved as submitted.

Motion Carried
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TAB D
PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE MAY 10, 2013 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
Regent Clack moved and Regent Treder Lang seconded that the proposed minutes for the
May 1 0, 20 1 3 special Board meeting be approved as submitted.
Motion Carried

CONSENT AGENDA
Chairman Parker asked the Board if there were any items on the consent agenda the
Board members wished to vote on separately. Hearing none, she asked for a motion to
proceed. Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Clack seconded that the items on the
Consent Agenda be approved as presented (Section 1 - 1 1 ).
Section 1

STAFF APPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve 1 6 staff appointments for the reporting
period March 1 5 , 2013 to May 1 5, 2013 : Mark Criner, Kristine Kastle-Ruether, Scott
Teasdale, David Feeley, Ashley Stauffer, Phyllis Britton, Daniel Bobee, Tina Davis,
Thomas Humbarger, Eric Jones, Robert Pickens, Allison Greening, Jason Ganiatsas,
Angela Palek, Daphane Young, and Wendy Richardson.
Section 2

ACADEMIC RETIREMENTS AND SEPARATIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve 1 3 separations and retirements for the
reporting period of March 1 5, 201 3 to May 1 5, 2013: Susan Risi, Andrea Chickonoski,
David Ackley, Latia Washington, Theresa Musgrave, Wei Li, Gina Williams-Strychar,
David Goodart, Derrick Gragg, Jr., Nicole Bober, Steven La Chance, Chaquita Willis,
and Julia Hoffert.
Section 3

EMERITUS STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to two (2) staff
members: Barbara Gorenflo and Patricia McLean.
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Section 4
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS ADMINISTRATIVE/PROFESSIONAL
APPOINTMENTS/TRANSFERS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve (1) Administrative/Professional
appointment (Jacqueline Goodman) and (1) Administrative/Professional transfer (Diane
Winder).

Section 5
ACADEMIC RETIREMENTS AND SEPARATIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve three (3) retirements and three (3)
separations for the reporting period March 1 6, 2013 through May 31, 2013: Thomas
Schmitt, Barbara Leapard, Anthony Iannaccone, Ronald Carlson, Sharon Pendleton
Moore, and Raouf Hanna.

Section 6
FACULTY APPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve thirty-two (32) new faculty
appointments for the 2013-2014 academic year: Kimberly Barrett, Yvette Colon,
Elizabeth Devos, Jenni Hoffman, Barbara Hollie, Christopher Hoppe, Sun Hae Jang,
Younoh Kim, Kim Kozak, Jacob Lindquist, Cynthia Macknish, Thomas Mast, Megan
Moore, Rebecca Moore, Mary-Elizabeth Murphy, Linda Myler, Gerald Newberry,
Mariana Nicolae, Karin Olson, Alankrita Pandey, Kate Pantelides, Catherine Peterson,
Sufian Qrunfleh, Ann Rall, Christopher Reilly, Brian Sellers, Kathleen Seurynck,
Heather Shouldice, Sarah Walsh, Thomas Waltz, Andrew Wilfong and Deborah Willis.

Section 7
FACULTY REAPPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents accept the report from the Division of
Academic Affairs pertaining to the reappointment of 101 probationary faculty members
for the 2013-201 4 academic year.

Section 8
FACULTY PROMOTIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the report entitled
Promotion of Faculty Members, pertaining to the promotion of 42 faculty members,
effective Fall 2013.
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Section 9
FACULTY TENURE APPOINTMENTS
Recommended that the Board of Regents approve the granting of tenure, effective
beginning with the 2013 Fall semester, for 16 faculty members: Muhammad Ahmed,
Danny Bonenberger, Jason DeMarte, Jennifer Desiderio, Natalie Dove, Ronald Flowers,
Ana Claudia Harten, Sandra Hines, Melissa Jones, Angela Lukomski, Sara Memmott,
James Perren, Paul Ramsey, James Sweet, Shiri Vivek, and Andrea Zakrajsek.

Section 10
LECTURER PROMOTIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the report entitled
Promotion of Lecturers for 2013-2014.

Section 1 1
EMERITUS FACULTY RECOMMENDATIONS
Recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to four (4) former
faculty members: Raouf Hanna, Vannie Kay Hodges, Anthony Iannaccone, and Barbara
Leapard.

Motion Carried

REGULAR AGENDA
Section 12
MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Regent Fitzsimmons moved and Regent Stapleton seconded that the Student Affairs
Committee Agenda for June 18, 2013 and the Minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting be
received and placed on file.

Motion Carried
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Section 13
MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Athletic Affairs Committee
Agenda for June 1 8, 2013 and the Minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting be received and
placed on file.

Motion Carried

Section 14
FY 2013-14 DEPARTMENT OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS BUDGET
Regent Hawks moved and Regent Morris seconded that the Board of Regents receive and
place on file the recommended fiscal year 2013-1 4 Department of Intercollegiate
Athletics General Fund Operating Budget and the Game Guarantee designated fund
projections for the fiscal years 2013-14, 2014- 1 5 and 201 5- 1 6.

Motion Carried

Section 15
MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - EDUCATIONAL POLICIES
COMMITTEE
Regent Fitzsimmons moved and Regent Stapleton seconded that the Educational Policies
Committee Agenda for June 18, 2013 and the Minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting be
received and placed on file.

Motion Carried
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Section 16
ACADEMIC PROGRAM PHASE-OUT: MASTER OF SOCIOLOGY - FAMILY
SPECIALTY
Regent Morris moved and Regent Stapleton seconded that the Board of Regents approve
an Academic Program Phase-Out: Master of Sociology-Family Specialty (SOCF).

Motion Carried

Section 17
ACADEMIC MINOR PHASE-OUT: MINOR IN SPANISH LITERATURE
Regent Morris moved and Regent Fitzsimmons seconded that the Board of Regents
receive and place on file this notification of an Academic Phase-Out: Minor in Spanish
Literature.

Motion Carried

Section 18
ACADEMIC CALENDAR APPROVAL
Regent Fitzsimmons moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents
approve the Academic Calendars for 2015-2016, 2016-2017 and 2017-2018.

Motion Carried
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Section 19
RE-AUTHORIZATION OF THREE CHARTER SCHOOLS
Regent Fitzsimmons moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents
reissue the charter for the Ann Arbor Learning Community and authorize the President of
the University to execute a new four-year contract which will expire June 30, 2017,
reissue the charter for Hope Academy and authorize the President of the University to
execute a new three-year contract which will expire June 30, 2016 and reissue the charter
for Gaudior Academy and authorize the President of the University to execute a new two
year contract which will expire June 30, 2015.

Motion Carried

Section 20
MONTHLY REPORT AND MINUTES - FINANCE AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents
receive and place on file the Minutes from the April 16, 2013 Finance and Investment
Committee meeting and the Agenda for the June 1 8, 2013 meeting.

Motion Carried

Section 21
FY 2013-14 TUITION AND FEES RECOMMENDATION
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Fitzsimmons seconded that the Board of Regents
approve a 3.75 percent increase in tuition and fees for the 2013-2014 academic year.

Motion Carried
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Section 22
FY 2013-14 GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET RECOMMENDATION
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Fitzsimmons seconded that the Board of Regents
approve a University General Fund operating budget of $296.4 million for the 2013-14
fiscal year.

Motion Carried

Section 23
FY 2013-14 AUXILIARIES FUND OPERATING BUDGET
RECOMMENDATION
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents
approve fiscal year 2013-2014 Auxiliary Activities operating budgets totaling $44.4
million.

Motion Carried

Section 24
FY 2013-14 CAPITAL BUDGET RECOMMENDATION AND THREE-YEAR
CAPITAL PLAN
Regent Treder Lang moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents
approve a fiscal year 2013-14 University Capital budget of $9 .2 million. It is also
recommended that the Board receive and place on file the three year capital plan for the
fiscal years 2013-14 through 2015-16.

Motion Carried

10

Section 25

AUTHORITY TO SELECT AND APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH INTERNAL
AUDIT FIR M
Regent Webb moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents delegate to
the President of the University the authority to select an internal audit firm and authorize
the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer to the Board of Regents to enter into a three
year contract with the selected internal audit firm.
Motion Carried

Section 26

UNIVER SI TY STRATEGIC PLAN: MISSION, VISION AND VALUES

Regent Stapleton moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents adopt the
University Mission, Vision and Core Values established by the Institutional Strategic
Planning Council (ISPC).
Motion Carried

Section 27

NEW POLICY: 3.1.14: EMPLOYMENT AND AFFIRMA TIVE ACTION,
EMPLOYMENT, ANTI-RETALIATION AND WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

Regent Clack moved and Regent Morris seconded that the Board of Regents enact Board
Policy 3 . 1.14 Anti-Retaliation and Whistleblower Policy.
Motion Carried

11

Section 28
UPDATED POLICY; 3.2.5: EMPLOYMENT AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION,
ATTENDANCE, SICK LEAVE POLICY
Regent Stapleton moved and Regent Treder Lang seconded that the Board of Regents
approve the revised Sick Leave policy and authorize the President and the executive team
to implement and enforce the policy on behalf of the Board of Regents.

Motion Carried

Section 29
UPDATED POLICY: 3.2.4: EMPLOYMENT AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION,
ATTENDANCE, VACATION POLICY
Regent Clack moved and Regent Hawks seconded that the Board of Regents approve the
revised Vacation policy and authorize the President and the executive team to implement
and enforce the policy on behalf of the Board of Regents.

Motion Carried

Section 30
AUTHORITY TO APPROVE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN EMU AND THE COMMAND OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF
MICHIGAN (COAM)
Regent Morris moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents delegate to
the President of the University the authority to approve a new collective bargaining
agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the Command Officers Association
of Michigan (COAM) representing the police sergeants at Eastern Michigan University.

Motion Carried

12

Section 31
AUTHORITY TO APPROVE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN EMU AND THE UAW/TOP LOCAL 1976
Regent Morris moved and Regent Clack seconded that the Board of Regents delegate to
the President of the University the authority to approve a new collective bargaining
agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the International Union, United
Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implement Workers of America and its
Technical, Office, and Professionals Local 1 976 (UAW/TOP Local 1 976), representing
professional and technical employees at Eastern Michigan University.
Motion Carried

Chairman Parker reminded attendees that the next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
June 1 8. She called for any further business to be brought before the Board. There
being none, she asked for a motion to adjourn. Regent Hawks moved and Regent
Clack seconded to adjourn the meeting.
Motion Carried
The meeting was adjourned at 3 :20 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Vicki Reaume
Vice President and Secretary to the Board of Regents
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Tab D

Presidential Scholars 2013-2014
David Bailey graduated from Divine Child High School in Canton, Michigan. David is cun-ently
undecided on his major. He aspires to a career that will encourage travel, bring him to a big city, and offer
lots of contact with people.
Stephanie Bardoni graduated from Woodhaven High School, Brownstown, Michigan. Stephanie is
pursuing double majors in Accounting and Public Relations. Following graduation she aspires to a career
in non-profit accounting and working with charities that benefit underprivileged children.
Amanda Binz graduated from Sylvania Northview High School in Sylvania, Ohio. Mandy is pursuing a
major in Biology. She aspires to a career as a Physician's Assistant ,vith specialization in Pediatric
Oncology.
Kaitlin Boroniec graduated from Trenton High School in Trenton, Michigan. She is pursuing a major in
Marketing. Though Kaitlin has not decided on a particular area in marketing emphasis for her career, she
would enjoy working in the area of fashion buying.
Danielle DeAngelis graduated from Trenton High School in Trenton, Michigan. Danielle is pursuing a
major in Special Education/Cognitive Impairments. She aspires to a career working with autistic children,
potentially in a school setting or within the area of Speech Pathology. She intends to join the Peace Corps
and pursue nonprofit work. Already, Daniel le has become interested in being a part of a research project
focused on children with autism.
Brent Jonathan Duddles graduated from Suttons Bay Public High School, Suttons Bay, Michigan. Brent
is pursuing a major in Secondary Education Mathematics. He reports that his career goal is to "be the best
at whatever I set my heart on." He writes, "My goal is always I wanna win!"
Sabrina Gissendander graduated from Ypsilanti High School in Ypsilanti, Michigan. She is pursuing a
degree in English Language and L iterature. She aspires to become a literary publisher and hopefully one
day write her own books. She also plans to continue on in school for a master's degree and eventually a
doctoral degree in her fields of study.
Raquel Gonzalez graduated from Stivers School for the Arts in Dayton, Ohio. Raquel is pursuing a
major in Business Management. She aspires to a career managing either a personal non-profit
organization or a large corporation.
Henry Alexander Hakamaki graduated from Iron Mountain High School, Iron Mountain, Michigan. He
is pursuing a major in Biology (Pre-Med) and a minor in Human Biology. Henry aspires to a career as an
infectious Disease Specialist, hopefully at the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), where
he hopes to go around the world researching and treating patients with emerging infectious diseases.
Mathew Leddy graduated from Swan Valley High School in Saginaw, Michigan. He is pursuing a major
in Supply Chain Management. Matthew aspires to a career in Quality Management.
Jared Mallett graduated from Washtenaw Technical Middle College in Ypsilanti, Michigan. He is
pursuing a major in Biology. Though undecided about his career goals, Jared aspires to find a career he
loves by the end of his college experience.
Dominic Meo graduated from Hartland High School in Hartland, Michigan. Dominic is pursuing a
double major in Literature and Secondary Education. He aspires to become a professor of Literature and
English.
Sarah Pfannes graduated from Canton High School in Canton, Michigan. Sarah is pursuing a major in
Biology and aspires to find cures for diseases such as multiple sclerosis and polycystic kidney disease.

Sama ntha Sta uffer graduated from Rising Sun High School in Northeast, Maryland. Samantha is
pmsuing a major in Exercise Science. She aspires to become a prosthetic practitioner and came to EMU
primarily because of the outstanding program here.
A n n a Wendt graduated from Tecumseh High School. Tecumseh, Michigan. She is pursuing a major in
Information Assurance. Anna aspires to a career with the government focused on the security of weapons
systems in the United States.
Kelsey Zuk graduated from Woodhaven High School in Brownstown, Michigan. Kelsey is pursuing a
major in B iology. She plans to attend graduate school to study Neuroscience, eventually obtaining a
Ph.D.

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION: 1
DATE:

October 1 , 2013

RECOMMENDATION
STAFF APP OINTMENTS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve 40 staff appointments for the
reporting period May 1 61\ 2 0 1 3 to August 3 1 51, 2 0 1 3 .
STAFF SUMMARY
Of the 40 appointments, 27 (68 percent) are females, 1 3 (32 percent) are males.
Demographics of the total group indicate 3 1 Caucasians (77 percent), 6 African
American (15 percent), l Asian (3 percent), 1 American Tndian or Alaskan Native (3
percent) and 1 Hispanic (3 percent).
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The salaries are part of the University's 201 3-20 1 4 budget as approved by the Board of
Regents.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univ..e.r��v Executive q{Iicer

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STAFF APPOINTMENTS
For Activity Date Reporting Period
May 16th, 2013 through August 31st, 2013
Current Hire
Activity Date Annual Salary
Date
5/28/2013
5/28/2013
36,000.00
7/1/2013
7/1/2013
34,340.00
8/26/2013
8/26/2013
32,000.00
8/19/2013
9/1/2013
75,000.00
6/10/2013
6/10/2013
52,000.00
6/10/2013
6/13/2013
62,000.00
7/22/2013
8/6/2013
245,000.00
8/19/2013
8/9/2013
46,000.00
5/28/2013
5/22/2013
34,867.00
6/24/2013
37,908.00
6/5/2013
7/22/2013
7/24/2013
34,867.00
8/19/2013
8/23/2013
37,908.00
8/5/2013
8/5/2013
25,146.68
8/5/2013
28,613.00
8/5/2013
8/5/2013
8/5/2013
28,613.00
8/5/2013
8/5/2013
28,613.00
6/17/2013
6/4/2013
61,200.00
7/8/2013
7/11/2013
43,047.00
5/6/2013
7/23/2013
42,667.00
8/5/2013
7/26/2013
43,047.00
8/19/2013
8/15/2013
48,600.00
8/19/2013
43,047.00
8/23/2013
8/5/2013
7/26/2013
56,000.00
8/5/2013
8/5/2013
43,047.00
8/5/2013
43,047.00
8/5/2013
8/7/2013
8/5/2013
60,000.00
8/5/2013
8/7/2013
43,047.00
6/24/2013
8/12/2013
38,218.00
6/10/2013
8/12/2013
43,047.00
6/10/2013
8/12/2013
43,047.00
5/20/2013
8/12/2013
38,218.00
5/28/2013
8/12/2013
48,236.00
6/10/2013
8/12/2013
43,047.00
6/17/2013
8/12/2013
51,000.00
8/19/2013
8/15/2013
54,400.00

E Class

Grade

Org Title

Heather
Hilary
Joleen
Angella
Laura
Rebecca
Morris
Maria
Lauren
Nickolas
Ronald
Bradley
Angela
Angela
Karen
Elizabeth
Anthony
Deanna
Temii
Marian
Roy
Joseph
Nicole
Katie
Haley
Steven
Rhonda
Michael
Melissa

Mgr Bsktball/Football Ops
Asst Coach Strenth and Condit
Asst Softball Coach
Head Softball Coach
Asst Dir Residential Education
Asst Director, Campus Life
Vice Pres and Athletics Dir
Asst Dir Constit Relations
Graduation Auditor/Evalu
Payroll Practitioner II
Payment & Student Acct Spec
Accts Payable Specialist
Custodian/Houskeep, Group Lead
Custodian
Custodian
Custodian
Web Analyst/Programmer II
Asst Athletic Trainer
Prog Rsch & Analysis Asst
Asst Athletic Trainer
Dietitian/Menu Mgmt Coord
Site Coordinator
Asst Dir Athletics Marketing
Academic Advisor
Academic Advisor
Medical Lab Sciences Cl. Coord
Academic Advisor
Area Complex Director
Admissions Advisor
Admissions Advisor
Upward Bnd Acad Supp Prog Spec
Disability Resource Ctr Adviso
Admissions Advisor
Coord, International Recruit
Psychologist

AC
AC
AC
AC
AP
AP
AP
AP

FM
FM
FM
FM
PT
PT
PT
PT
PT
PT
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE
PE

11
11
11
16
MGILl
MGIL2
MGIL4
PFSP2
OS
06
05
06
10
06
06
06
09
07
06
07
07
07
09
07
07
09
07
06
07
07
06
08
07
08
09

I A Womens Bktball
I A Strengt1 and Cond
I A Womens Softball
I A Womens Softball
Housing Admin
Campus Life
I A Administration
Alumni Relations Office
Office of the Registrar
Controller
Student Business Services
Controller
Custodial Services
Custodial Services
Custodial Services
Custodial Services
DolT Enterprise Apps and Serv
I A Training Room
School of Social Work
I A Training Room
Dining Admin
Stdy Chldrn and Family
Athletics Marketing
Director University Advising
Director University Advising
School of Health Sciences
Director University Advising
Housing Ad min
Adm Off Campus Outrh
Adm Off Campus Outrh
Upward Bound Program
Disability Resource Center
Adm Off Campus Outrh
International Admissions
Counseling and Psych Services

Collier

Ellen

Prg Coord, Div Comm Inv (WRC)

PE

08

Diversity and Community Involvement

8/19/2013

8/15/2013

Smith
Aaron
Puzzuoli
Huynh

Carol
Samantha
Chris
Tuong-Vi

Staff Nurse
Project Coord, Acad Partnrshps
Coord Lib Data Apps & Cont Mgt
Area Complex Director

PE
PE
PE
PE

07
08
08
06

Business Operations
King Parks College Day
Technology and Infrastructure
Housing Admin

8/5/2013
8/15/2013
8/16/2013
8/28/2013

8/16/2013
8/23/2013
8/23/2013
8/29/2013

Last Name

First Name

Job Title

Jordan
Slachetka
Burke
Gentile
Janes
Langdon
Lyke
Simmet
Hargis
Martzig
Punches
Burk
Boyd Ill
Gonzalez
Opachick
Remington
Snyder
Watson
Palek
Mierzwiak
Schofield
Getty
Orlando
Lewandowski
Tellis
Cabaj
Shavers Jr
Aponte
Johnson
Kastl
Mulka
Smith
Vander Zwaag
Wise
Plaufcan

Joseph
Matthew
Kimberly
Melissa
Rebecca
Lucas

cs
cs
cs
cs

Appt%

Ethnicity

Gender

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
BL
HI
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
BL
WH
BL
NA
BL
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH
WH

M
M
F
F

49,000.00

100

WH

27,456.00
50,000.00
48,236.00
38,218.00

60
100
100
100

BL
BL
WH
AS

M
F

M
F
M
M
M

M

M
M

M
F
M
F

M
F

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION: 2
DATE:
October 1, 20 1 3

REC OMMENDATION
STAFF SE PARATIONS/RETIREMENTS
ACT I ON REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve 23 separations and retirements for
the reporting period of May 1 6 1\ 2 0 1 3 to August 3 1 51, 2 0 1 3 .
STAFF SUMMARY
Of the 23 separations and retirements there are 9 (39 percent) females and 1 4 (61 percent)
males. Demographics of the total group indicate 1 8 Caucasians (78 percent), 4 African

American ( 1 8 percent) and 1 Hispanic (4 percent).

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None
A DMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATI ON
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univ.e rsit) Executive Offi�er

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STAFF SEPARATIONS and RETIREMENTS
For Termination Date Reporting Period
May 16th, 2013 through August 31st. 2013
E Class

Grade Org Title

Current Hire
Date

Termination
Date

Ethnicity

Gender

Last Name

First Name

Job Title

Zaremba

Robert

Police Dispatcher

cs

05

Public Safety

4/26/2010

5/24/2013 · WH

M

Clendenin

Joel

Mgr Sponsored Acct

AP

MGIL2

Controller

6/23/2008

6/7/2013 WH

M

Podell

Sean

Custodian

FM

06

Custodial Services

5/12/2002

6/15/2013 WH

M

Wilson

Curtis

Custodian

FM

06

Housing Admin

12/9/2007

6/24/2013 BL

M

Orscheln

Kathryn

Director, Staff Development

AP

MGIL3

Faculty Development Center

7/21/1982

6/28/2013 WH

Peoples

Gregory

Ombudsman

AP

PFSP3

Ombudsman

9/16/1991

6/28/2013 BL

M

Gates

Larry

Dir Univ Dining Services

AP

MGIL3

Dining Adm in

9/23/1980

6/29/2013 BL

M

Anderson

Robert

Custodian

FM

06

Housing Admin

12/12/1990

6/30/2013 WH

M

Czinski

Benjamin

Resident Director KEEC

AP

MGILl

EP Regional Centers

2/26/1979

6/30/2013 WH

M

Miller

Glenna

Asst VP Student Life

AP

' MGIL3

Student Life

9/34/1974

6/30/2013 WH

F

Grady

James

Facilities Maintenance General

FM

15

Fletcher School Building

4/2/1984

7/2/2013 BL

M

Howie

Cynthia

Asst Dir Procurmnt Adm&Sys

PT

09

Purchasing

8/16/1990

7/11/2013 HI

F

Burwood

Stephen

Dir of International Programs

AP

MGADl Academic Programs Abroad

8/1/2010

7/18/2013 WH

M

Jankovic

Bonnie

Sr Secretary

cs

05

School of Technology Studies

1/9/2008

7/19/2013 WH

F

Mostrom

Kristen

Asst Athletic Trainer

PT

07

I A Training Room

9/26/2011

7/19/2013 WH

F

McClure

Mary

Executive Secretary

cc

AXCY3

Chief Financial Officer B and F

2/18/1991

7/30/2013 WH

F

Snow

Megan

Asst Athletic Trainer

PT

07

I A Training Room

8/1/2007

8/16/2013 WH

Fabricant

Autumn

Site Coordinator

PT

07

Stdy Chldrn and Family

8/31/2009

8/16/2013 WH

Young

Marissa

Asst Coach Sftb,Cc/Trk,Vol,Bsb

AC

11

I A Womens Softball

8/29/2011

8/20/2013 WH

Moran

Noah

Assistant Coach Swimming

AC

11

I A Womens Swimming

8/8/2005

8/26/2013 WH

M

Langley

Jere I

Asst Coach Sftb,Cc/Trk,Vol,Bsb

AC

11

I A Womens Track

2/18/2013

8/29/2013 WH

M

Kreitler

John

Asst Coach Sftb,Cc/Trk,Vol,Bsb

AC

11

Men and Womens Swimming

2/18/2013

8/29/2013 WH

M

Moore II

Steven

Mgr. Energy & Sustai.n ability

AP

PFSP3

Physical Plant Ofc

3/17/2008

8/30/2013 WH

M

F

B OA R D O F R E G E N TS
E A S T E R N M IC H I G A N U N IV E R S I T Y

SECTION: 3
DATE:

October I , 20 1 3

RECOMMENDATION
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to Seven
(7) staff members: Glenna Frank Miller, Assistant Vice President for Student Life,
who retired June 30, 2013; Larry Gates, Director of Dining Services, who retired on
June 28, 2013; Kathy Orscheln, Director Staff Development, who retired June 28 ,
2013; Gregory Peoples, University Ombudsman, who retired June 30, 2013; Virginia
Majeske Ellis, Senior Secretary, Communications and Theatre Arts ,who retired on
June 30, 1991; Mary (Cathie) McClure Executive Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,
who retired on June 30, 2013 and Ann Rentfrow, Administrative Secretary, Snow
Health Center, who retired on June 28 , 2013.
STAFF S U MMARY

According to University policy, retiring Administration Professional (AP), Athletic
Coaches (AC), Confidential Clerical (CC), Food Service, Custodial & Maintenance
(FM), Professional Technical (PT) or Clerical Secretarial (CS) staff members who
have served the University for at least fifteen (15) years, may be granted Emeritus
Staff Status. Such status is conferred based on the recommendation of the
President and approval of the Board of Regents.
FISCAL IM PLICATIONS

None
ADMI NISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Umivers1ty Executive' Officer

Date

EASTERN M ICHIGAN UN IVERSITY
E M ERITUS STAFF STATUS RECO M MENDATION
f

The Department/Ofice of Provost's O ffice recommends the awarding o f Emeritus Staff Status for the
following
retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: Glenna Frank Miller
Title upon retirement: Assistant Vice President for Student Life
Retirement date: June 30, 20 1 3

Date of hire at EMU: fall l 974

Number of years at EMU: 3 9 (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)

Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the E M U Faculty/Staff/Student Directorv.

Home address:
E-mail address:

Home telephone:
Name of spouse:

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: B .A., University of Detroit Mercv, 1 972
Masters: M.A., Wayne State University, 1 976
Doctoral:
Please atta'el! 2 lette� of support t{fl,is application
Recomm\?ndedlry
Deoartment He)Q and/()(S.J..1peryisor

Recommended by

uate

Date

ExlJcut�ve Council Member (\ \
President

Date

Date Submitted to Board of'Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of support to: CFO, 1 0 1 Welch Hal l . Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation w i l l be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on tile in the Office of the Chief Financial Officer.
Updated 8/24/ 1 2

EASTERN

M I C H I G A l'i U N I V E RSITY

Education First

PROVOST A N D V I C E PRESID ENT
emtch.edu 'p ro'!ost

June 1 0, 2 0 1 3

Emeritus Staff Recommendation
Glenna Frank Miller
Retiring June 30, 2 0 1 3 fro m the Division of Academic and Student Affairs
Dear Chairman Parker and EMU Board of Regents,
It is my pleasure to submit this recommendation requesting the Board of Regents consider granting emeritus
staff status to Glenna Frank Mil ler. Glenna joined Eastern Michigan University as at PTOS Residence Hall
Director in the fall of 1 9 74. She continued in a number of roles, most recently as Assistant Vice President of
Student Life. Over the course of her 39-plus years at EMU, Glenna was involved in the following:

•
•

The EMU Student Center opening in 2006
The VISION Center starting in 1990 with 6 years of AmeriCorps grant funding from 1994-2000
The EMU Orientation Program started in 1983
The EMU Martin Luther King, Jr. Day/week programs starting in 1987
The EMU leadership conferences starting in the late 70's and changing to the LeaderShape leadership
development model in 2001
Membership on the Student Affairs Committee of the Board and support for the Student Leader Group
from the mid-1980s
Membership in the General Education Reform initiative with the Learning beyond the Classroom
component implemented in 2007
Development of the general fee funding and delivery model and innovative programs for Campus Life,
Diversity and other programs, activities and services.

Glenna also participated in the major Student Affairs professional associations such as NASPA, ACPA, ACUH01, NODA and ACUI. The national student center renovation/construction conference was hosted here at EMU,
along with the national collegiate poetry slam, and several MAC Union Directors events as well.
Glenna has devoted her professional life to furthering student interests at EMU, and has been dedicated to the
mission and values of this institution. I strongly recommend that she be granted emeritus staff status. Thank
you for y.{ilUr con�ation.
Sincerely;

Kim Schatzel, Ph.D.
Provost and Executive Vice Presideril

1 06 \Velch Hall, Yp�ilanti. Ml -1-8 l 97, -3.u!C3200 • Fax: 73-l-.-�87.-1-299

EAS T E RN M I C H I GA N U N I V E RS I TY
June 2 1 , 2 0 1 3

Emeritus Staff Recommendation
Glenna Frank Miller
Retiring June 30, 2 0 1 3 from the Division of Academic and Student Affairs
Dear Chairman Parker and EMU Board of Regents,
I am delighted to submit this recommendation requesting the Board of Regents grant emeritus staff status to
Glenna Frank Miller. Glenna has committed 3 9 years of her professional life to Eastern Michigan University,
and to providing an outstanding experience for all students. She is a consummate Student Affairs
professional, who has profoundly and positively impacted the lives of thousands of individual students at
EMU.
As Director of Campus Life, Glenna designed and implemented Eastern's first orientation program model
some 25 years ago. New Student Orientation is a flagship institutional program that not only successfully
transitions new students into EMU, but also infuses the entire institution and its newest members with school
spirit and pride, while providing the foundational piece of the student leadership development experience at
EMU. New freshmen witness the leadership role of upper-class students involved in orientation, while
engaging in all the myriad elements of this four day program. Given an average of 2000 new freshmen per
year, over 25 years Glenna's student transition model has shaped the very first experiences on campus for
some 50,000 new freshmen. From the ranks o f upper-classmen, approximately 1 5 0 student leaders
volunteer as New Student Orientation Assistants each year, contributing nearly 10,000 hours of service to the
institution annually, and gaining leadership skills, which inform their other involvements including
participation in student organizations and student governance. Over the course of 25 years, that adds up to
3,750 students who have gotten their first taste of service to others under Glenna's watch, and 250,000 hours
of student volunteer service to EMU that has taken place with Glenna's guidance.
Glenna's legacy of developing students to be leaders extends well beyond freshmen orientation to include 25
years of producing intensive annual leadership development conferences providing opportunities for 50-60
students per year to engage over several clays with senior administrators, faculty and staff at EMU. These high
impact learning experiences have not only made a difference to the individual students involved ( 1 2 5 0 of
them}, but also have made a tremendous positive contribution to the entire collegiate environment at EMU,
by supporting the student leaders who make campus come alive through their initiatives.
When one considers the advisory role Glenna has had with additional student leadership teams including the
Student Affairs Committee to the Board of Regents (Student Leader Group), Student Government, RHA during
her tenure in Residence Life, the Campus Life Program Board during her many years with Campus Life, the
student employees in the Student Center and Mc Kenny Union, as well as leaders of some 270 student
organizations each year, one begins to see the breadth and extent of her engagement and connection to
students and her si ngular· role in their personal development.
In addition to the impact Glenna has made in the individual lives of student leaders, Glenna has been
instrumental in envisioni ng, advocating and cultivating a rich, vibrant collegiate environment at EMU. She
C:impth Li�·� • 340 E.v [U Studcnr c�n:�r • Yp,ilam1, \L..:hi ;;m 431 '17
Fu: 73·U3l1.1')27
·�v, \-i.v. :!rn ich.edu, c.1 rnp1-1-;, l.ir'...:
Phunc:: 7.,4..+S7 .30.+5

developed the proposal for EM U's first student general fee, which passed in 1995 and provided a means to
fund a broad array of student activities at EMU, including major concerts, a professional perform ing arts
series, guest speakers and lectures, excursions off-campus, movies and late night programming events,
leadership programs, Greek Life events, commuter services, multicultural program ming, lgbt activities, and so
much more. Glenna successfully initiated and institutionalized VISION, E M U's student community service
office, which actively engages students in service to the community; this one dimension of student life was
instrumental i n EMU's achievement of earning Community Engagement Classification from the Carnegie
Foundation For the Advancement of Teaching.
Glenna's collaborative nature has influenced the institution in many ways as well. Her support and
partnership with Academic Affairs brought about the inception of the Academic Service Learning program,
now an integral part of the way we teach, and helped EMU garner major grants from America Reads and
Jumpstart, further integrating students into the community to serve as educators. She planned the first MLK
Day President's Luncheon at the behest of then President John Porter, and then in partnership with faculty
and Academic Affairs administrators, expanded that event to an annual weeklong celebration with many
traditions that continue to this day. The EMU Student Center is perhaps Glenna's greatest vision and
collaborative venture, working hand i n hand with Plant Operations, Business and Finance, student leaders,
and other units throughout campus. This project was truly a labor of love, and the facility has made a
profoun d impact o n student life at EMU.
Fi nally, I would add that Glenna has served as a tremendous mentor, guide, and model to many, many
professional staff members and graduate students in the field of Student Affairs. She has served the
profession exceptionally well, and contributed to our institution through investing in and strengthening the
human capital here. She is highly regarded and respected both on campus and throughout the state as a
leader -- she has represented the institution extremely well, always putting the needs of students first, and
modeling integrity and respect for others.
I ask that you please confirm Glenna Frank Miller's application for emeritus status; she has certainly earned
this distinction, and I know it would be an exceptionally meani ngful honor to her.
Sincerely,

Melissa Ci notti
D irector, Campus Life

EASTERN lVIICHIGAN UNI VERSITY
E M E R ITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMlVIENDATION
The Department/Office of Dining Services recommends the awarding o f Emeritus Staff Status for the
following
retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: Larry Gates
Title upon retirement: Director
Retirement date: 06/28/20 1 3

Date of hire at EMU: 09/23/ 1 980

Number o f years at EMU: 3 3 (Minimum o f 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following infornwtion on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home address:
E-mail address:

Home telephone:
Name o f spouse:

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: Cleary University I 1 995
Masters:
Doctoral:
Please atta,qi 2 letters of sul?port to this application
Recommended 'cJy

Date

PrP<:irlPnt

'Date

Rec,6mmended1�

Date!

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, p lease forward this form and letters of support to: CFO, 1 0 l Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial O fficer.
Updated 8/24/ 1 2

EASTERN

M ICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Housing & R�sidcncc I .ifc·

August 22, 2 0 1 3

T o Whom It May Concern:
I write this letter of support for Mr. Larry Gates to receive Staff Emeritus Status from Eastern
Michigan University. I am honored to have had the pleasure of calling Larry Gates my colleague
for the past three years. Though three years may seem short in comparison to Larry's many years
at E M U the impact he has had on our students, staff and myself personally is immeasurable.
Most at Eastern Michigan University are well aware of Larry' s many accomplishments in food
service and the everlasting impact that Larry and his dedicated team created. What is not as well
known and recorded is the impact Larry has had in matters not involving food service, but rather
on relationships and student success.
Larry' s efforts to support students and colleagues at EMU is what truly sets him in class all his
own. Students from all areas of campus, both commuter and resident, look up to and respect
Larry as an honest, down to earth, kind hearted man who would go out of his way time and again
to make them a priority, an individual, and never just a number. I recall how Larry would come
to Residence Hall Association meetings looking for feedback, encouraging students to share both
positive and negative reactions to the food service and atmospheres of the dining hubs. Each
morning Larry would stop by my o ffice with a "good morning friend", and we would
intentionally spend time working together to make the relationship with Dining and Residence
Life as strong as possible.
Larry valued providing opportunity and acknowledging the hard-work and dedication of those
that were lucky to be part of his team. During Larry's retirement gathering it was evident of his
lasting impact as you looked around the room and engaged in conversation with those that Larry
has touched over the years. Larry is a true leader and role model, who has left his mark and is
deeply missed.
It is without question in my opinion that Larry Gates is worthy of the Staff Emeritus status and
is the type of staff member at EMU that we should all strive to be.

Sincerely,

EASTERN

D I N ING SERVICES

Education First

emich.edu!dining

MICHIGAN -UNIVERSITY

August 7, 2 0 1 3
T o Whom lt May Concern:
I am writing this letter in support of Mr. Larry Gates nominations to receive Staff Emeritus Status from Eastern
Michigan University. I had the great fortune to work with Larry Gates as part of the Dining Services Team for
over 30 years. Larry's passion for people and his love of working for Eastern Michigan University have driven
him to develop and provide leadership for an Award Wi1111ing and industry respected Dining Services Program.
As we in Dining Services have always said, Larry is the face of Dining Services, he is known and respected by
the entire Eastern Michigan University Community. Larry' s commitment to the University is evidenced by his
attendance and participation numerous campus events. He has always made himself available and committed to
all areas of campus, serving on numerous committees and work teams across campus, his opinion is valued. Not
only is he dedicated to his work in Dining, but he has always made the student experience a high priority. Larry
committed many hours to meeting with student organizations, working at many of their events, and serving on
conunittees that were needed to address student concerns and issues created by students, always being a voice of
reason and someone co1ru11itted to a resolution that would best serve the EMU student body.
Another way that Larry supported students was tl1rough his co1runitment to their work experience on campus.
One striking program that was created under Larry' s direction Dining Services, developed a Room and Board
Program for students who worked for Dining Services. I couldn't even begin to tell you how many students
were quoted as saying "if not for this program, I ,vouldn 't be at Eastern or would not have the opportunity to
'live the Full Eastern Experience " well actually, they may have said I wouldn't be able to live on campus. And
for all the students who worked in Dining Services, he spent many hours counseling and guiding them, working
to keep them on track and in school. Larry constantly encouraged the Dining M anagement Team to work with
and counsel students, giving them that one last chance, which more often than not paid off with keeping students
working and in school.
Larry's commitment to the Students of Eastern is evidenced in some of the statements made by them as he put
out the announcement of his retirement:
•

"Thank you for believing in me and helping me to achieve my goals! "

•

"You 've always been therefor the students and actually take the time to get to know us which is
something most people aren 't willing to do. "

•

" You have been a support system .for me since I arrived on campus in 2002. "

I know that Larry will always remain a " TruEMU" alumni and the University would be hard pressed to find a
more sincere supporter of Eastern Michigan University.
Sincerely,

Ann M. Klaes
Lower Level Dining Commons ONE, Ypsil.rnti, M I .+8 1 97 • 7 3.+..+87.0.+ 18 , Fax: 7 3.+. .+87.5362

June 28, 20 1 3
To Whom It May Concern:
I am pleased to write a letter of support for Mr. Larry Gates to receive Staff Emeritus Status from
Eastern Michigan University. I have had the pleasure of knowing Mr. Gates for more than 3 0
years, and have had the opportunity to work with him for the last 2 2 years. Larry i s the ultimate
professional. Not only does he excel in his chosen profession but he excels in his support and
work with students who attend Eastern Michigan University.
If I were to catalog all of his accomplislunent in the food service arena it would take several
pages. He is directly responsible for transforming the Dining Services Division of this
University. Not only has he transfonned the locations where students can access meals, he has
expanded the variety of meals that are offered to students. He has made dynamic efforts to
refotm the kinds of meals available to students and has made tremendous sttides to offer students
meals that encourage a healthier life style.
Larry's effotis to support students at EMU go far beyond the Dining Service Department. I can
remember many a night when he and I would work all day and then return in the evening to
suppoti a student organization that was having a dance in McKenny Union. I can recall his
dedication to students of color organizations as we hosted the Heritage Programs each year.
Most importantly I can recall how Mr. Gates helped hundreds of students behind the scene by
providing them opportunities to work in a variety of capacities that if not for those opportunities
they would have not been able to continue their education.
In my humble opinion, Larry Gates is certainly worthy of consideration of the Staff Emeritus
status and I hope his application is given serious consideration.
Sincerely,
Gregory A. Peoples

EASTERN MICH IGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STA F F STATUS RECOM M ENDATION
The Department/Office of Service EMU recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the
following retiring staff member:
Name o f Staff Member: Kathv Orscheln
Current Stat us at EMU: Employee
Retirement Date: 6/28/2 0 1 -3

Date of Hire at EMU : 8/ 1 3/ l 978

-,•-;- ·-, ......

Number of Years at EMU: 3 1 (M inimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the E M U Facultv/Staff!Student Directory.

Home Address: 1 05 West Michi2:an Avenue. Milan M I 48 1 60
E-Mail Address: korscheln@emich.edu

Home Telephone: (734) 439-3826
Name of Spouse: Harrv Orscheln

Degree( s)/Insti tutions/Year: Baccalaureate: BA 1 973. Uni versi tv of Missouri-Columbia
Masters: M.Ed 1975. University of Missouri-Clumbia
Doctoral: n/a
Please Attach a Brief Statement of Support to this Form and Two Recommendation Letters.
Gretchen Ward

Recommended by
•

I / /)

:&'f

(please print)
\_ , ,/ I ',{_/

.

Date

r
Deoai;tmeuv Head
anp/(Or';S'u perv1sor

Date

cxecut1ve-Counc1l Member

uate

Pr�dent

Date

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
A fter the Executive Counc il member signs, please forward this form to: Office of the President, 202 Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation wi II be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval o f the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Business and Finance O ffice.
8/1 3 / 1 2

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Education First

EMU

emich.edu!serviceemu
SERVICE

April 1 7, 20 1 3
Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
207 Welch Hall
Ypsilanti, Ml 48 1 97
Re: Brief Statement o f Support
Distinguished Board Members,
It is my pleasure to recommend the awarding o f Emeritus Staff Status for the Kathy Orscheln.
Kathy has been a staple o f the Eastern Michigan University community for 3 1 plus years serving
in various capacities ranging from Recruitment and Admissions, Residence Life, Financial Aid,
and Career Services. She is currently working in the Faculty Development Center, with
responsibility for establishing a Teaching and Learning Academy at EMU, where students,
faculty and staff dialogue about how to improve student learning at EMU.
Kathy has dedicated her life to the betterment of Eastern Michigan University as an institution,
community and educational enviroru11ent. She has mentored countless students and staff
throughout her tenure and has served on numerous University Committees that have helped
shape EMU into what it is today. Her dedication and commitment to the campus is
unparalleled, and while this is not easily measured, her reputation among peers on campus
speaks volumes.
As she moves into retirement, I ' m certain that she will continue to be an advocate and supporter
for the institution. Thank you for your consideration.
Best Regards,

Gretchen Ward
Director, Service EMU

268 EMU Student Center, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48 l97 , 734.487. [643 , Fax: 734.487.1725

EASTERN

M ICH(GAN UNI VERSITY
Education First

OFFIC E o/' F I N A N C I A L A I D

emich. edu/]inaid

April 1 3, 20 1 3

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
207 Welch Hall
Ypsilanti, Ml 48 1 97
S u bject: Emeritus Staff Recommendation
Dear Chairman Parker,
I n recognition of more than 31 years of service to Eastern Michigan U n iversity, it is my pleasure
to recommend Kathryn Orscheln for Emeritus Staff status.
Kathy began her career in August 1 978 as an Area Complex Director (ACD) for the Housing
Department. She and husband Harry had their first daug hter Nell and lived i n Buell Hall then
Sellers Hall wh ile they me ntored the many young women who lived there. It was the beginning
of a 35 year u nwavering commitment to EMU.
After leaving Housing, Kathy worked part time for Foreign Student Orientation then Campus Life
and even had a short stint in the Office of Financial Aid (it was "not her thing" she told me many
years later). In 1 983 she joined the Admissions team and held several roles while moving
towards the Director of Admissions position to which she was appointed i n 2007.
Through all of these years, Kathy has been a constant supporter of EMU sports, attending
hundreds of games, attending plays and other various events. She may as wel l have kept her
ACD campus apartment rather than commute back and forth from Milan.
Kathy has a tremendous range of close colleagues, mentors and students who have stayed i n
touch with h e r over the years. S h e has touched a n d h a d a positive i m pact on m a n y lives over
her 35 years - she has always been one of EMU's g reatest Ambassadors.
After Kathy retires on J u ne 28, 2 0 1 3 , she will continue to be a reg ular fixture on ca mpus at the
library, sporting events and of course the Rec I M . I highly recommend Kathy for Emeritus Staff
status for her many years of service, support and loyalty to E M U .

Sincerely,
Director

403 Pierce Hall • Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 • 734.487.0455 • Fax 734.487.4281

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Education First

STUDENT AFFAIRS
emich.edu

April 1 2, 2013

Dear Colleague,
I a m del ighted to write this letter to s up port the nomi n ation of Kathy Orscheln, former d i rector
of Ad m i ssions at E M U, for e m e ritus staff status. I have known Kathy since h e r very first day on
c a m p u s i n 1978, worked with her in Residence Halls a n d Campus Life, a n d collaborated with her
i n countless p a rtners h ips around student leadership development, e n rollment a n d many other
i n itiatives.
Kathry n B. Orscheln is a higher education professional with over 30 years' experience in various
a reas of Student Affai rs a n d E n rollment M a nagement. Although she has spent the m ajority of
h e r years i n Recruitme nt a n d Admissions, she h a s also worked i n Residence Life, Fi n ancial Aid
a n d Scholarships, C a m p u s Life, Career Services a n d on-campus visit p rograms. She h a s a strong
a n d traditional b a ckgrou n d a n d preparation i n Student Affai rs, a n d h a s applied that experience
to cou ntless issues a n d people, m aking E M U a better place for all of us.
Si nce leaving her Director of Admission position in July 2012, Kathy h a s transitioned to an
e q u ally collaborative role in the Facu lty Development Center at Eastern M ichiga n U n iversity,
with responsibility for establishing a Teaching and Learning Academy at E M U, where students,
faculty a n d staff dialogue about how to i m p rove student learning at E M U . This assignment
c o m b i n es h e r experiences with college students on three different c a m p uses, a n d h e r interests
in relationships, real life a n d real resu lts into one very rich assignment. I j ust attended the fin a l
m eeting o f t h e TLA a n d celebrated the success o f t h i s very innovative program that Kathy
l a u nched with her ch a racteristically enthusiastic and capable m a n ner.
Kathy's retire ment is bittersweet for m e and many of us at E M U . She has been a bsolutely
d ed icated to bringing in a n d supporting n ew students and their fa milies over many years. She
has researched and developed a presentation on Generations in the Workplace (and on
c a m p u s ) that I have seen presented at conferences and workshops to a p p reciative a u d iences.
Kathy's engaging personality and resu lts-oriented ap proaches converged into an exceptionally
effective leadershi p a n d m a n agement style, resulting i n accomplishments i n recruitment and
a d m issions. She is a h ig h ly regarded campus collaborator, supporting student p rograms a n d
theater prod uctions, a n d pa rented h e r th ree children to grad uation from E M U .

370 Student Center, 900 Oakwood, Ypsil.rnti, Michigan +8 l 97
73+.+37. l 100 , Fax: 7 3+.+37.0+93

But I also know that Kathy has positively im pacted h u n d reds of E M U students a n d staff
m e m bers over t h e years. S h e h a s become an eloquent spokesperson for LGBT people a n d was
featured in the "It Gets Better" video. Alums a n d for m e r staff come back a n d seek h e r out for
advice a n d renewal. This is the positive d ifference she has made at E M U, one student, one
staffer, at a time.
I wish Kathy t h e very best as s h e emba rks on a new journey i n reti rem ent. EMU is a better place
because of Kathy Orscheln and she will be m issed.

� i n rPrPlv,

Glenna Frank M iller
Jssistant Vice President, Student Life
Student Affairs a n d E n rollment Ma nagement

EASTERN M ICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
E M ERITUS STAF F STATUS RECO M MENDATION
The O ffice of the President recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the follo\ving
retiring/retired staff member:
Name o f staff member: Gregory A. Peoples
Title upon retirement: University Ombudsman
Retirement date: June 30. 2 0 1 3

Date o f hire at EMU: July L 1 977

Number o f years at E M U : 28 years (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Faculty/Staff/Student Directory.

Home address:
E-mail address:

Home telephone:
Name o f spouse:

Degree(s)/institutions/year: Baccalaureate: BA, Allegheny College. 1 973
Masters: M.Ed. Kent State University. 1 977
Doctoral : n/a
Plea,s:e', attach 2 letters of support to this application
I

R�commended by ij6¢ild Loppnow

Date

Depa11ment Head and/or Supervisor

Date

Executive Counci l Member

Date

Recommr£ndectf}J Br·ia,� Fitzgerald

Date

Pfesident.
Date Submitted to Board of Regents
A fter the Executive Council member signs, please forward this fon11 and letters of suppo11 to: CFO, I O I Welch Hall. Upon
approval o f the President, the recommendation wi 1 1 be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial Officer.
Updated 8/24/ 1 2
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EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Residence Life and Residential Services

June 2 1 , 2 0 1 3

Board o f Regents
Eastern Michigan University
c/o Ms. C. McClure
Dear Chairp erson Parker:
I t is an honor to nominate Gregory Peoples for emeritus status with our institution. He
has served with distinction for over 28 years and the lives of students, staff and faculty
are b etter for it.
Greg started in admissions, left for a few seconds, and came back to Eastern as the
Associate Dean of Students, ascended to the Dean's role and then b ecame our
Ombudsman. Through all of that time he has kept a singular focus on the well-being of
students. More importantly, he has always sought to give them what they need, not
necessarily what they want. He knows that our relationship with the individual student
goes beyond a contract - it involves a partnership that includes moments of joy,
sometimes moments of sadness and a lot of mentoring.
Over the years he has nominated students for awards, leadership conferences and all
types of extracurricular experiences. Many times this also extended to chaperoning
groups of students to Northern Michigan and Washington, DC among other locales. And
yes, this meant riding with them on the bus. He helped me get the MLK Candlelight
March started, responded to every late night event in the residence halls that required his
presence and those that did not.
Greg has always been the face of Eastern Michigan University when we have suffered
tragedy and grieved together. He has been called on to meet with families when they
have lost a child, whether on campus or not, and taken it upon himself to go to the
hospital and funerals. His compassion and caring are unmatched.
over

Nomination of Gregory Peoples for Emeritus Staff

June 26, 2013

Greg Peoples has been a distinguished staff member and administrator who has been dedicated to
enhancing the students' educational experience. He received his baccalaureate degree from
Allegany College in 1973 and his masters degree from Kent State University in 1977.
Greg has fulfilled several important staff roles during two periods of time he was employed at
EMU, totaling more than 28 years of service. He initially joined EMU in 1977 as Coordinator of
Campus Lnteract and was promoted to Associate Director of Admissions. He left the University
for another professional opportunity in 1983 and returned to EMU in 199 1. During the more
than 2 2 years since returning to EMU, Greg has served as Associate Dean of Students, Dean of
Students, and University Ombudsman. Greg served as an active leader and member of numerous
divisional and University committees, always making significant positive contributions to the
work of the committees.
Greg received the Division of Student Affairs Gold Medallion Award in 1993 and the
University's Martin Luther King, Jr. Humanitarian Award in 2011. Evident throughout his
noteworthy professional accomplishments are Greg's commitment to advocate on behalf of
students' rights and interests, and his fairness and sensitivity in dealing with difficult student
concerns. Greg's legacy is one of helping thousands of students to succeed.
In addition to his University activities, Greg has been very active in serving the broader
community. For example, he is currently serving as the Chairperson for the Washtenaw
Inte1mediate School District, as a Board member of the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority,
and a member of the Ypsilanti Area Community Fund Advisory Committee. He has also served
as a member of the board of Hope Clinic, as a member of School Board in Willow Run, as board
President of the Lincoln Consolidated School District, and as President of the Michigan
Association of School Boards.
Greg Peoples has distinguished himself and the University during his years at EMU. On behalf
of many University colleagues, I recommend his approval as Emeritus Staff.
Respectfully Submitted,

Donald M. Loppnc5w, Professor
School of Social Work
Eastern Michigan University

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UN IVERSITY
Residence Life and Residential Services

June 21, 20 1 3

Board of Regents
Eastern Michigan University
c/o Ms. C. McClure
Dear Chairperson Parker:
It is an honor to nominate Gregory Peoples for emeritus status with our institution. He
has served with distinction for over 28 years and the lives of students, staff and faculty
are better for it.
Greg started i n admissions, left for a few seconds, and came back to Eastern as the
Associate Dean of Students, ascended to the Dean's role and then became our
Ombudsman. Through all of that time he has kept a singular focus on the well-being of
students. More importantly, he has always sought to give them what they need, not
necessarily what they want. He knows that our relationship with the individual student
goes beyond a contract - it involves a partnership that includes moments of joy,
sometimes moments of sadness and a lot of mentoring.
Over the years he has nominated students for awards, leadership conferences and all
types of extracurricular experiences. Many times this also extended to chaperoning
groups of students to Northern Michigan and Washington, DC among other locales. And
yes, this meant riding with them on the bus. He helped me get the MLK Candlelight
March started, responded to every late night event in the residence halls that required his
presence and those that did not.
Greg has always been the face of Eastern Michigan University when we have suffered
tragedy and grieved together. He has been called on to meet with families when they
have lost a child, whether on campus or not, and taken it upon himself to go to the
hospital and funerals. His compassion and caring are unmatched.
over

[n terms of service to the larger community he has lived in he has served as a trustee and
secretary on the Willow Run Community Schools Board of Education, a trustee and
president of the Lincoln Consolidate School Board, board member and vice president of
the Washtenaw Intermediate School District, director, vice president and president of the
Michigan Association of School Boards, a commissioner on the Ypsilanti Corrununity
Utilities Authority and vice president of the Hope Clinic Board. He has also maintained
leadership positions and a high level of involvement in his churches and been active in a
number of professional associations and with the United Way. He has always engaged in
these types of things as a proud member of the Eastern family, while wearing his EMU
lapel pin, most of the time nattily dressed I may add.
Greg has received some of Eastern' s greatest honors, such as a Gold Medallion and the
MLK Jr. Humanitarian Award. Emeritus status should be his capstone experience.
With his departure from our working ranks we have lost a resource, a role model and a
good man. But we can rejoice that he is still in the neighborhood and celebrate his
legacy, summed up by former Vice President Larry Smith's credo: "The test of our
effectiveness is the difference we make in the lives of individual students." Greg passed
the test - he actually set the curve.
Sincerely,
,I

Hnart F1tzgstrald

Associate Director of Residential Services

E A S T E R N M l CH T G A N U N I V E R S I T Y
Di vision of Aca d e m i c Affairs

E M E R I TU S STA F F STATUS R E CO M M ENDAT I O N
The Depa rr111enl o f Commun ication, Media & Theatre Arts
rccomrncnds the awarding o f E m eritus
Staff Status for the fo l lowing retiring/retired staff 111c111bcr:
Name o f Stall iVlembcr:

Virginia Majeske Ellis
Retired

C u 1Tent St:llus at EMU:
Date of H i re al E M U :
N u mber o f Years

al

1 966

Ei'vl U :

3/ J f f 9(p{p Retirement Date: �-��
--',..__-

.><;: �U,

/3.._,0
/
--=
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"--l-"""
o.L-.j._9
--S-!-f-

(Minimum or l 5 years of service reci uired)

Please co111plclc rile fol lowing inforl!lalion on the retiring staff member for who111 you arc submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the E�,fU FacullviStaff,'Studem Directorv.
NA

Home Address:

Home Telephone: (_)_ N_
_ A___ E-Ma i l Address:
Name of S pouse:

NA

NA

Degree(s)/lnstitutions/Year: Baccalaureate: ----- - ------

- -------

-

Masters:
Doctoral : - ------ -

-

- ---- -

- ----

Please Attach a 13 rief Statement of S u pport to this Form

Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be
kept on file al the E M U Foundation.
Date
Date

UI

Pk;1se lorwarcl this wrnplctc:d 1c,r111 lo

Date

I
· Dean �/or Vi�e r'resi.dent

Date

Date Submirtcd to l30:11 cl of Regents

Nicki Banush
t\ ·aue1111c A ffa irs, 1 06 Welch l-lall
8/22,'0(i

Se pte m b e r 6, 2013

Dr. Kim Sch atzel, Provost and Executive Vice P resident
Aca d e mic & Stu d e nt Affa i rs
106 Welch H a l l
East e rn M ichigan U n iversity

Dea r P rovost Schatze l :

I recently l e a rned that colleagues i n my home d e p a rtment, Com m u n ication,
M e d i a & Theatre Arts, a re s u b m itti ng a n o m i nation reco m m e n d i ng e m eritus staff
status to Virg i n ia M ajeske E l l i s . This letter is in support of that n o m i nation, a n d to
offe r my strongest e n d o rsement for Virginia M ajeske E l l i s .
This i s a u n i q u e situation, give n t h a t Vi rgi n i a regrettably pa ssed away i n 1996. B ut,
q u ite ho nestly Virgi n i a was herself a u n iq u e and a very special em ployee. Those of
u s who worked in CMTA and worked closely with V i rgin ia, sti l l treasu re her kind
words of wisd o m and lasting i m pact o n stude nts, facu lty a n d staff.
T h i s being the soth a n n iversary of the Department of Co m m u n ication, Media &
Theatre Arts, it i s my u n d e rsta n d i ng that CMTA colleagues a n d former stude nts
a re looking to celeb rate Virginia's n u m erous contributions to the departme nt, the
College and the U n ive rsity. Ove r the years d u ring various advance m e nt i n itiatives
a n d eve nts, former stude nts a n d a l u m n i have freque ntly a sked of Vi rgi n i a .
Real istical ly, Virgi n i a i s re m e m be red a s fondly as a n y of o u r facu lty o r staff.
As p a rt of the CMTA soth a n n iversa ry cele b ration, "n ews" of recognizing a n d
celebrating Virgi nia M ajeske E l lis' 26 years of service w i l l certa i n ly d raw former
stu d e nt workers, a l u m n i and e m e ritus facu lty. She is ind eed treasu red and loved !
H aving reviewed the no m ination materials being su b m itted, clea rly oth e rs have
s h a red the n u m e ro u s q u a l ities of Virginia Majeske E l l i s . She was loya l, h a rd-

working, stude nt-cente red, and ded icated to Eastern M i chigan U n iversity a n d the
Ypsi la nti com m u n ity. So m u c h of CMTA's growth a n d success is d u e to the
fo u n dation that e m e ritus facu lty and staff such a s Virginia p rovided for years. This
is espec i a l ly true of the E M U Theatre.

From a perso n a l perspective, I fo u n d Vi rgi n i a to be CMTA's "rock". H e r welcoming
s m i le, h er caring d e m e a nor, a n d h e r c a l m, reassu ring spirit wo rked so well for
n e rvous you ng a ctors, fra ntic d i rectors, a n d a longsta n d i ng d e p a rtment h e a d .
Virgi n i a w a s truly remarka b l e . S h e a n d her e ntire fa m i l y fully e m b raced C MTA a n d
EMU.
I n a l l, recogn izing Virg i nia M ajeske Ellis with post h u mous e m e ritus staff status
wou ld have a m ost pos itive i m pact on CMTA's advancement i nitiatives a n d i n
part ic u l a r their celeb ration of their soth a n n ive rsa ry. I a m confident that fo rmer
stude nts, a l u m n i, a n d e m e ritus fa cu lty will ret u rn to campus to share in the
cele bration of Virgin ia's ded ication, loyalty, and com m itment to Eastern M ichigan
U n iversity.
Sin ce rely,

D e n n i s M. Beagen
E m e ritus Professor of Commun ication & Depa rt m e nt Head

Statement of Support

On behalf of the Department of Commu nication, Media & Theatre Arts, I would like
to recommend Virginia Majeski Ellis for staff emeritus posthumously. Supporting
this request would mean a great deal to her family, both children and grandchildren,
who maintain strong E M U connections. This relationship with the University
i ncludes son Paul Majeski, Paul received his undergraduate degree while working as
a student employee at the front desk of Communication, Media & Theatre Arts and
now serves the University as a faculty member in the School of Technol ogy Studies.
M rs. Ellis began her e mployment here in 1966 and upon her retirement in 1 9 9 2 the
opportunity to apply for emeritus status was not available. Although it is well
beyond her retirement from EMU, we hope this honor can be bestowed upon her.
Although she passed in 1 9 9 6 her dedication to the department remains a standard
we all seek to achieve. She is quoted in an EMU Focus article to say, "I stayed because
I liked the people and I liked the variety." We are glad she stayed and we have
benefited from her work standards for decades beyond her service.
EMU Focus article written u pon the retirement of Mrs. Ellis is attached. The article
captures the dedication and work ethic that made her an invaluable member of our
department throughout 27 years of service. The stories of her tenure are legendary
and includes taking time to assure that the theatre box office was covered and the
"show would go on" when she went into labor with youngest son, Paul. We have
teased over the years, first with Virginia and now with Paul, that he was born into
and will always a part of EMU and CMTA.

She loved our students and found their energy invigorating. She was proud of her
association with Eastern Michigan University. She valued the faculty and staff she
got to work with and she provided invaluable support to the every day o perations of
the department.
I t is most remarkable to say that she stayed with our department for her entire
career and we have always been extremely grateful for her commitment Please read
the article piece attached, and we would be honored as a department to have this
final recognition of her service bestowed upon her posthumously.

EASTERN

M I C H I GAN U N I V E RSITY

Education First

C O M M UNICATI O N , M ED IA & T H EATRE ARTS

emich.edu/cmta

August 30, 2 0 1 3
T o Wh om It May Concern:
When I first came to Eastern in 1 9 7 2 I i ntended to stay for no more th a n three to
five years. I t seemed like a good stepping-stone for career development. For th e
first few years I shared a 1 2 0 square foot office with Virginia Majeske. She was the
theatre secretary and I was the faculty member responsible for marketing. I n these
close quarters, working along side of "Mrs. M" I came to know Eastern as an
institution unlike most oth er Universities. On a daily basis I ohserved someone wh o
was kind and demanding, patient and exacting, professional and unpretentious,
independent and loyal, tolerant and ardent, h umble and proud. Now, more than 40
years later, I am concluding my career at Eastern still i nspired by those qualities
manifested by Virginia.
I strongly recommend that Virginia Majeske Ellis be awarded staff emeritus status.
Th is posth umous designation will both honor her memory and provide deserved
pubic recognition. It will also h onor Eastern M ich igan University as an i nstitution
that strives to maintain i ts h istorically unique mission.
Sincerelv.

Ken Stevens, Professor

1 2-+ Quirk, Ypsilanti, Ml 48 1 97· 73-1-.487.3 1 3 1 • Fax: 734.487.3.J..J.3

EASTERN

M I C H I G A N U N IVE RSITY

Education First

COMMUNICATION, M E DIA & THEATRE ARTS
emich.edu/cmta

September 9 , 20 1 3
Dear Provost Schatzel :
As interim department head for the Department of Communication, Media & Theatre
Arts (CMT A), I have come to learn and value the importance of a dedicated staff member
who can handle the day-to-day operations of a busy office and at the same time met the
special needs of students as they walk in with very unique and specialized questions . It is
those first impressions that a staff presents to the students that can determine how the
students see the department and University .
From 1966- 1 99 1 , CMTA was privileged to have Virginia Majeske Ellis serve i n this role
for our department. For 26 years, she was the person who greeted students, took care of
faculty requests and managed the office with amazing patience and grace. A highly
qualified office manager, she went well beyond her assigned duties to assure the
department functioned efficiently and effectively, and made it look effortless. Students,
faculty, EMU personnel and community members enjoyed worki ng with V i rginia.
She was a vital part of our growth. I n 1966 , the Speech and Dramatic Arts department
employed approximately 10 individuals which included all faculty and staff. By the time
of her departure in 1 99 1 our department was named Communication and Theatre Arts
and the faculty and staff had tripled i n size and complexity .
This year is the 50th Anniversary of the now named Communicatio n , Media and T heatre
Arts Department. We have planned a number of events to celebrate this joyous time in
our history . Many years ago we began to recognize emeritus faculty by putting a plaque
on the wall highl ighting their contributions to the Department and EMU. At this time,
CMT A wants to extend this tradition to i nclude the outstanding commitment and work of
retired emeritus staff members. V i rginia Majeske Ellis, is one of the most important
persons in the history of our department and certainly a pinnacle example of the
dedicated staff members we want to remember, therefore I strongly support her
nomi nation for recognition as emeritus staff.
Sincerely,

Kathleen Stacey
l nteri m Department Head

1 24 Q1irk, Ypsilanti, MI -1-8197, 73-t.-1-87.3 1 3 1 , Fax: 73-t.487.3H3
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EASTERN M I C H IGAN U N I VERSITY
E M ERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
CP O

The Department/Office o f __ recommends the awarding o f Emeritus Staff Status for the follovving
retiring/retired staff member:
Nam e of staf f member:
Title upon retirement:
Date of hire at EMU:

M � c . {_cA 1" b\ I e:) M s. c l-LA...R..-�

fX e . S'� c....

,;;i..../ / 8 / °l l

Retirement date:

__k{3o / I 3

Number o f years at EMU : � (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Facultv/Staff/Student Directorv.

Home address:
Home telephone:

E-mail address:

Name of spouse: __
Degree( s)Iinstitutio ns/year: B accalaureate:
Masters:
Doctoral:
Please attach 2 letters of support to this application
Recommended by

Date

lo'e�rtment Head anglor Supervisor

Date

Executive Counci I Member

Date

P�es.iclent

Date

Reco1mnehded'PY

Date

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of support to: CFO, I O I Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation will be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chie f Financial O fficer.
Updated 8/24/ 1 2

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Residence Life and Residential Sentices

July 30, 2013

Todd Ohmer
Assistant to the Vice President
Business and Finance
Eastern Michigan University
Dear Mr. Ohmer:
Organizations need historians and staff who help during period of transition a nd change. They are the
glue that hold things together and make sense of everything that is new and different. For this reason I
a m nominating Ms. Mary (Cathie) McClure for emeritus status.
For over 25 years she served the students, faculty, staff and mission of the university faithfully and
loyally in a variety of roles and positions at Eastern Michigan University.
She was a fixture and leader in so many things, including Relay for Life, the Founder's Week and the
Gold Medallion celebration, blood drives, holiday and special event receptions, among others. She also
volunteered as a representative of EMU, including her long-time board work with Ypsilanti Meals on
Wheels. Her positive a nd undying representation of EMU was superior.
Over the past 15 years she ably and professionally supported six supervisors as the student affairs area
and function has shifted from place to place. She has been the institutional memory that has made
these transitions easier and the service to students better. I can still see the look on CFO John Lumm's
face shortly after she a n nounced her retirement. While he was happy for her, it was not the look I saw
when she joined his office.
We have lost a treasure to retirement, but knowing her she will be a loyal supporter for years to come.
She should be honored for her tireless efforts.
Sin,e;hely,
13r�n fiJ� erald'
A1Soc�te Director of Residential Services

June 20, 20 1 3
To Whom It May Concern:
I am pleased to write a letter recommending Ms. Catherine McClure for Staff Emeritus status at
Eastern Michigan University. I have had the pleasure of working directly with Cathie for the past
ten years, but she has more than twenty-two years of service to the University. She has worked in
a variety of offices including the Financial Aid Office, Student Accounting Office, the Vice
President for Marketing, Enrollment and Student A ffairs Office, and most recently in the Chief
Financial Officer's Office. Regardless of the department she worked in, Cathie always provided
exceptional service to the clients and has been an extremely loyal staff member. She has worked
directly for four Vice Presidents.
I am most familiar with her work in the area of student affairs. Cathie loves helping students and
enjoyed working with the staff throughout the division. She really enjoyed working with the
Student Leader Group and the Student Affairs Committee to the Board of Regents. When it came
to working on divisional committees, Cathie was always the first to volunteer. She was a
standing member of the Gold Medallion Committee for both Students and Staff, served on the
United Way Steering Committee, Homecoming Committee, and EMU Pride Day Committee.
Those were just a few of the committee Cathie served on. There were many more.
Cathie is also very active in the community of Ypsilanti. She serves as Board secretary for the
Ypsilanti Meals on Wheels organization, Co-Chair of the Holiday Homes Tour and the Spring
Fling Dinner Planning Committee.
Cathie McClure has proved to be a very dedicated. committed, and loyal employee to Eastern
Michigan University and in my humble opinion she has certainly earned the right to Staff
Emeritus.
Sincerely,

Gregory A. Peoples, University Ombudsman

E ASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
EMERITUS STAFF STATUS RECOMMENDATION
f

The Department/O fice of Student Well Being recommends the awarding of Emeritus Staff Status for the
following
retiring/retired staff member:
Name of staff member: Ann Rentfrow

AUG 1 2 2 0 1 3

Title upon retirement: Administrative Secretary
Retirement date\ 6/2'6/20 1 3

Date of hire at EMU: 1 l/2 l / 1 996

Number of years at EMU: 11 (Minimum of 1 5 years of service required)
Please complete the following information on the retiring staff member for whom you are submitting this recommendation.
This information is needed for inclusion in the EMU Facultv/Staff/Student Directorv.

Home address:
E-mail address: arentfrow(@emich.edu

Home telephone:
Name of spouse:
Degree(s )/institutions/year: B accalaureate:
Masters:
Doctoral:

Please attach 2 letters of support to this application
Recommended by

Date

Recomm&ded by

Date

{) }

D�aiiment �ad an�o�· �pervis9r
-

-

Date

Executiv'e Counci l Member

Date

Pre.sirlP-nt ,

Date

Date Submitted to Board of Regents
After the Executive Council member signs, please forward this form and letters of support to: CFO, l O I Welch Hall. Upon
approval of the President, the recommendation wil I be sent to the Board of Regents. Emeritus Staff status is contingent upon
the approval of the Board of Regents. The above information will be kept on file in the Office of the Chief Financial O fficer.
Updated 8/24/ I 2

EASTERN.
MICHIGAN U N I V E RSITY

Education First

STUDENT \YELL - BEING
emich.edu

June 24, 2013
Vicki Reaume
Vice President and Secretary to the Board of Regents
207 Welch Hall
Dear Ms. Reaume:
I am writing to recommend Ann Rentfrow for staff emeritus status upon her retirement from Eastern Michigan
U niversity, effective June 28, 2013. Ann has served EMU for the past 17 years with dedication and loyalty in a
variety of clerical positions. For her first five years at Eastern she worked for Provost Ron Collins in a Senior
Secretary position.
In 2001, Ann became the Administrative Secretary for Extended Programs under the leadership of Don Loppnow
and when Mr. Loppnow was selected to lead a new Office of Strategic Plann ing and Continuous Improvement, Ann
transitioned into the role of Administrative Secretary in that operation. She had an instrumental role in
maintaining all records and documents associated with a new accreditation process implem ented by the University
called AQIP {for our accreditation by the Higher Learning Commission). Don Loppnow expressed his thoughts about
Ann so eloquently and simply by saying, "She is a wonderful person."
For her last four years, Ann Rentfrow has worked as the Administrative Secretary to the Assistant Vice President of
Student Well Being. She has had a prominent role in assuring the smooth operation of services in Snow Health
Center. Her goal has always been to exceed rather than meet expectations, working hard to produce flawless
work. Ann has carried herself professionally throughout her years at E M U in a way that reflects well on the
department she represents and its leadership. This past year I asked Ann if she would be willing to take on the role
of being the representative for the Student Well Being departments at our information table d u ring Fast Track. She
was the one person who I knew I could count on to reach out to incoming students and their parents in a sensitive
and caring manner, providing them with important information while welcoming them to the E M U family with
open arms.
It is hard to imagine a person more supportive and loyal to her work team and he un iversity than Ann Rentfrow.
Not only is she valued by her colleagues, she is well respected across the u niversity for her commitment to EMU
and our students.
Sincerely,
Ellen Gold
Assistant Vice President of Student Well Being
Snow Health Center, Ypsilanti, MT 48 l 97, 734.487 . 1 107 , Fax: 734.48 1.00SO

June 30. 2 0 1 3
Dear Emeritus Selection Committee:

.

I am honored to recommend Ann Rentfrow· for emeritus stalus at Eastern MichiQan
� Universitv.
Mrs. Rentfrow has served Eastern Michigan University for 1 7 years in varying capacities. l have
had the privilege ohvorking with her in several of these over the last l l years. While Ann \vas
the Administrative Secretary in Continuous Planning and lmprovement she maintained
meticulous fi Jes in order to keep all the separate areas of this office in good order. I f any past
information was needed she could put her hands on it within minutes due to her well organized
fi ling. She also diligently took minutes at all meetings and sent out reminders, agendas, and past
minutes i n a timely manner.
When working in the Office of Institutional Effectiveness, Ann was instrumental in developing
E MU ' s first Systems Portfolio under the AQIP format for the university's successful
accreditation by the Higher Learning Commission. This also entailed setting up numerous
meetings for the nine category groups. as weli as the steering committee. and maintaining
documentation for all these groups.
Ann has always been extremely helpful to anyone who came to her at EMU. She is a standout i n
the area of professional dress, behavior, and phone courtesy. She is always \villing to go the extra
mile when work needs to be done and was often the last person to leave the building, well after
5 :00pm - never asking for extra compensation. She \vill be missed - who else do you know that
can sti !1 take shorthand ! ! !
Sincerely,

Mary Sue Marz, PhD, Rl"""f
Professor, School ofNursing
Former AQIP coordinator

EASTERN

MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Education First

CO UNSELING

AND

PSYC HOLOGICAL S E R VJCES

www.emich. edu/cap,

.I LlllC

2-L 20 1 3

Vicki Reaume
Vice-President and Secretary to the Board of Regents
207 Welch Hall
Dear Ms. Reaume:
I am pleased to support the request that Ann Rentfrovv be given emeritus status upon her
retirement this week. Ann has served E M U for the past I 7 years in a variety of offices on
campus. She worked for the first five years as a clerical employee in the Provost Office. From
there, Ms. Rentfrow went to work in Continuous Improvement where she stayed for nine years.
We were delighted to have her vvork with us in the Snow Health Center for the remainder o f her
time at Eastern. where she has been the secretary for the assistant Vice-President for Student
Well-Being. Ellen Gold.
Although Ann is primarily Ms. Gold's secretary. she has always been happy to help any of the
depa11ments in the building. Ann has wonderful customer service. both with our EMU students.
but also staff and faculty as well. She is \Vann and puts others at ease with her gentle style. l
have never seen Ann angry or short with anyone. Ann has suppo11ed Counseling and
Psychological Services (CAPS) on a number of occasions and I am truly appreciative. Tvv ice in
the three years she has worked vvith us, the CAPS secretary has been out for 3-month periods of
FMLA. Ann assisted me many times without complaint. She didn't have to help me. but she is
supponive to everyone around her and loyal to her EMU vvork team.
Ann is respected and loved by staff and faculty around our campus and I hope that you wi l l
reward her for her years o f service to E M U with emeritus status.
Sincerelv.
Lisa Lauterbach. Ph.D.
Director.
Counseling and Psychological Services

313 Snow Health Center , Ypsilanti, MI 48 1 97 • 734.487.1 1 18 • Fax: 734.48 1 .0050

Glenna Frank M iller retired on June 30, 2013 after 39 years of service at E M U . G lenna was the Assistant
Vice President for Student Life. G lenna throughout her career has had several roles within Student
Affairs. She has provided outstanding leadership and has devoted her professional life to furthering
student interests at E M U . Glenna designed and implemented Eastern's first orientation program model,
the VISION center and perhaps her greatest collaborative venture E M U's student Center a true labor of
love project for Glenna. She has been a tremendous mentor, guide and role model to all students. She
represents the institution extremely well, a lways putting the needs of students first. We are pleased to
award the Emeritus Staff Award to Glenna Frank M iller.
Larry Gates retired o n June 28, 2013 after 33 years of service at EMU. Larry was the Director of Dining
Services. Larry developed and provided leadership for an Award Winning and industry respected Dining
Service Progra m . Larry is the face of Dining Service and his commitment to EMU students is what put
him in class all his own. He developed a Room and Board Program for students who worked for Dining
Services and without this program many students would not have been able to live on campus. His
hard work and dedication to his team will have a n ever lasting impact at EMU. Larry is a true leader and
role model. We are honored to award the Emeritus Staff Award to Larry Gates.
Kathy Orscheln retired on June 28, 2013 after 31 years of service at EMU. Kathy has served in various
capacities ranging from Recruitment and Admission, Residence Life, Financial Aid, Career Services and
Faculty Development Center. She has mentored countless students and staff throughout her tenure a nd
has served on numerous committees. Her dedication and commitment to the campus is unparalleled,
a nd while this is not easily measured, her reputation among peers on campus speaks volumes.
Gregory Peoples retired o n June 30, 2013 after 28 years of service at EMU. Greg served as Associate
Dean of Students, Dean of Students and University Ombudsman. Greg's commitment to advocate on
behalf of students' rights and interests, and his fairness a nd sensitivity in dealing with d ifficult student
concerns. His legacy is one of helping thousands of students to succeed. In addition to his campus
activities Greg has been very active in serving the broader community on several boards with a variety
of roles. Greg has received some of Easterns greatest honors, such as a Gold Medallion and the M LK Jr.
H u m a n itari a n Award. We are pleased to award the Emeritus Staff Award to Gregory Peoples.
Mary (Cathie) McClure retired on June 30, 2013 after 22 years of service at E M U . Cathie has worked in a
variety of offices including Financial Aid, Student Accounting, and Vice President of Marketing, Student
Affairs, Enrollment Ma nagement and Chief Financial Officers office. Cathie has provided exceptional
service to clients and has been a loyal staff member. She is always the first to volunteer and serve as a
member on Gold Medallion Committee, Relay for Life, U nited Way Committee, Homecoming Committee
E M U Pride Day committee just to name a few. Cathie was an active member for Local UAW 1975 and
serve as Trustee and Chair of the Education committee. Cathie's constant professionalism and
dedication is remarkable. We are honored to award the Emeritus Staff Award to Cathie McCl u re .

Ann Rentfrow retired

o n J u n e 28, 2013 after 17 years of service at E M U . Ann has had a variety of
clerical positions including Provost Office i n her first 5 years, Extended Programs, Strategic Planning a nd
Continuous improvement and the last fou r years with the Assistant Vice President of Student Well
Being. Ann was instrumenta l in developing E M U's first Systems Portfolio under the AQI P format for the
U niversity's successful accreditation by the Higher Learning Commission . Ann has always been
extremely helpful to all students, staff and faculty. Her professional dress, behavior and courtesy are
always the highest quality. It's hard to imagine a person more supportive a nd loyal to her team and the
U n iversity. We are honored to award the Emeritus Staff Award to Ann Rentfrow.
retired on J u n e 30, 1991 after 26 years of service at E M U . Virginia was a senior
secretary for the Communication and Theatre Arts department. She spent her entire 26 years of
e mployment in the same department. Virginia l i ked the people and the variety and was quoted to say
that there was never a dull moment in CTA. She was dedicated and took pride in helping faculty, staff
and especially students. Virginia attended most plays and special events and she was voted an honorary
member of the E M U Players student organization. Virginia's commitment to the department will never
be forgotten. We a re honored to award the Emeritus Staff Award to Virginia Majeske Ellis.
Virginia Majeske E l l is

SECTION: 4
DATE:
October 1, 2013

BOARD OF REGENTS
EAS TEIU� MICHIGAN UNIVERSI TY
RECOM MENDATION
E MERI TUS FAC U L TY S TATUS

ACTION REQUESTE D

It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Faculty Status to four (4) former
faculty members: Benjamin Palmer, Department of World Languages from 1970 to 2013
(who retired January 2, 2013 after 42 years); Barbara Scheffer, School of Nursing from 1976
to 2013 (\Vho retired July 20, 2013 after 3 7 years); VenPrata Tummala, Computer
Information Systems from 1981 to 2013 (who retired August 31, 2013 after 32 years); and
Geoffrey Voght, Department of World Languages from 1971 to 2013 (who retired January 4,
2013 after 41 years).
S TAFF SUMMARY

The Collective Bargaining Agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the Eastern
Michigan University Chapter of the American Association of University Professors (AAUP)
provide that a faculty member who has served the University for at least fifteen (15) years
may be nominated for Emeritus Faculty Status upon retirement.
The nomination for this individual has received the support of the department head, the dean
of the college, and the Provost and Executive Vice President.
FISCAL IMPLICATI ONS

None.
ADMINIS TRATIVE RECOM MENDATION

The propo�n has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univepity Executive Officer
Provo)t and Executive Vice President

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNI VE R SITY
E ME RITUS FACULTY STATUS RECO MMENDATION
October 1, 2013

Dr. Benjamin Palmer

Professor, Department of World Languages from 1970-2013
(42 years)

Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

Dr. Barbara Scheffer

No1ihwestem University
Northwestern University
University Connecticut

Pro fessor, School ofNursing from 1976-2013
(37 years)

Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

Eastern Michigan University
University of Michigan
University of Michigan

Dr. VenPrata M. Tummala

Professor, Department of Computer Information Systems from 1 981-2013
(32 years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

Dr. Geoffrev Voght

Michigan State University
Gujarat University, India
Andhra University, India

Professor, Department of World Languages from 1971-2013
(4 l years)
Doctoral
Masters
Baccalaureate

University of Michigan
University of Michigan
Florida Presbyterian College

SECTION:
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DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1, 2013

E ASTERN MICIIlGAN UNIVE RSITY
R ECOMMENDATION

ACADEMIC RETIREMENTS I SEP ARATIONS

ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve thirteen ( 13) retirements and
seventeen ( 17) separations for the reporting period June 1, 201 3 through August 3 1,
20 13.
STAFF SUMMARY

Of the thirty (30) retirements and separations, seventeen (l 7) are male and thirteen (13)
are female. Demographics show that twenty-three (23) are Caucasian, three (3) are
Asian, two (2) are African-American, one ( 1 ) is Hispanic, and one ( 1 ) not indicated.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The prqPosect �on has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univfrsity Executive Officer

Date

Na m e

Term Date

Marion, Michael
Ho�, Ha1tmut
Scaglione, Jamie
Scheffer, Barbara
Lawver, Gerald
Pfister, James
Margerum-Leys, Jon
Holoka, James
Lee, M arini
Tanno, Koji
Keller, Benjamin
Alvarez, Ann
Aristar, Anthony
Berge, Carolyn
Bocklage, Christopher
Brown-Chappell, Betty
Douglass, Richard
Duke, Robert
Etter, Edwin

6/3/20 1 3
7/ 1 /20 1 3
7/1 2/20 I 3
7/l 2/20 13
7/3 1 /20 1 3
7/3 1 /20 1 3
8/9/20 1 3
8/1 5/20 1 3
8/1 5/20 1 3
8/1 5/20 1 3
8/29/2 0 1 3
8/3 1/20 13
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1/20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3

Hersh, Michelle
Infante, Cecelia
Kao, Faye
Knapp, John
Martin, Frances
McDade, Eddia
Rhodes, Robert
Riley, Janice
Seibert, Jennifer
Simmons, Charles
Tummala, V .M. Rao

8/3 1/20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1/20 1 3
8/3 1/201 3
8/3 1 /2 0 1 3
8/3 1/20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1 /20 1 3
8/3 1/20 1 3

EClass

LE

FA
FA
AP
FA
FA
AP
FA
FA
FA
FA
FA
FA
LE
FA
FA
FA
FA
FA
FA
LE
FA
FA
FA
FA
FA
LE
FA
FA
FA

Department

Rank

Term Reason

CMTA
Computer Science
Chemistry
CHHS
STS
Political Science
COE
World Languages
Teacher Educ
World Languages
Computer Science
Social Work
English
English
Art
Social Work
Health Sciences
History & Phil
Accounting &
Finance
Biology
English
Marketing
Psychology
Political Science
Nursing
HPHP
Nursing
Art
English
CIS

Lecturer 1
Professor
Assistant Professor
Associate Dean
Associate Professor
Associate Professor
Associate Dean
Professor
Assistant Professor
Assistant Professor
Professor
Professor
Professor
Lecturer [l
Professor
Professor
Professor
Assistant Professor
Associate Professor

Term - Personal
Term - Retirement
Term - Personal
Term - Retirement
Tenn - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Personal
Tenn - Personal
Term - Personal
Tenn - Personal
Tenn - Personal
Term - Personal
Term - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Personal
Term - Personal

Assistant Professor
Lecturer III
Assistant Professor
Professor
Professor
Assistant Professor
Assistant Professor
Lecturer I
Associate Professor
Professor
Professor

Tenn - Personal
Term - Personal
Term - Personal
Tenn - Retirement
Term - Retirement
Term - Personal
Tetm - Personal
Tetm - Personal
Tenn - Personal
Term - Retirement
Tenn - Retirement

SECTION: 6
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1, 2013

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVER SITY
REC OMMENDATION

FACULTY APP OINT�IENTS

ACTION REQUE STED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve one ( 1) additional new faculty appointment
for the 2013-2014 academic year at the rank, salary, and effective date shown on the attached
listing.
STAFF SUMMARY

Demographics show that the new faculty appointment is female.
�'ISCAL IMPLICATIONS

The salary would be absorbed in the 2013-2014 personnel budget.
AD MINISTRATIVE REC OMMENDATION

The orooosed ac.tion has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

UniversftY Executive Otficer

Date

NEW FACULTY A PPOI NTMENTS
Deborah Collins-Bohler (School of Nursing)
Assistant Professor effective August 28, 20 1 3 at an academic year base salary of $7 1 ,000.
Education
Ph.D.
CERT.
M.S.N
B.S .N .

Wayne State
Wayne State
Wayne State
Wayne State

University, 20 1 2
University, 200 1
University, 1 982
Uni versity , 1 975

SECTION:

7

DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1, 2013

EASTERN M ICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

LECTURER PROMOTION
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the report entitled
Promotion of Lecturer for 2013-2014.
STAFF SUMMARY
The Collective Bargaining Agreement between Eastern Michigan University and the
Eastern Michigan University Federation of Teachers (EMU-FT) provides that lecturers
are eligible to apply for promotion in accordance with the following schedule of years of
service in rank: Lecturer II - three (3) years, and Lecturer III - four (4) years.
The one ( 1) lecturer listed on the attached page meets the general contractual
requirements for promotion as well as the specific performance standards, which have
been defined in his/her respective department evaluation document.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board aooroval.

Univerf ity Executive Officer

Date

PROMOTION OF L ECTURER FOR 20 13-20 1 4

I Name
I Martinez, Laura

Rank
Lecturer II

Department
School of Social Work

SECTION: 8
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1 , 20 1 3

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

ADMINISTRATIVE TRANSFERS
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve seven (7) administrative transfers at the
rank and effective date shown on the attached listing.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The salary would be absorbed in the 20 1 3-20 1 4 personnel budget.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval .

Universi1 Executive Officer

Date

ADMINISTRATIVE TRANSFERS REPORT
Name
Croxall, Colleen

Effective Date Sa lary
7/ L /20 1 3
$1 1 3,000

Rank
Director, School of Health Sciences

de Vries, Susann

7/1/20 1 3

$88,500

Department Head, Library

Ikej i, Augustine

7/l/20 1 3

$ 1 70,874

Department Head, Computer Science

Nybell, Lynn

7/1 /20 1 3

$ 1 2 5,600

Director, School of Social Work

Herman, Christopher

7IL 6/20 l 3

$96,852

Interim Director, School of H P & HP

Karshin, Christine

7/16/20 1 3

$ 1 20,000

Interim Associate Dean, College of Health &
Human Services

Kubitskey, Mary

8/l/20 1 3

$ 108,000

Interim Associate Dean, College of Education

SECTION: 9
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1 , 2013

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSI TY
RECOMMENDATION

MONTHLY REPORT & MINUTES
STUDENT AFFAI R S COMMITTEE

ACTION REQUESTE D

It is recommended that the Student Affairs Committee Agenda for October 1, 2013 and the
Minutes of June 18, 2013 be received and placed on file.
STAFF SUMMARY

The October 1, 2013 agenda for the Student Affairs Committee includes a presentation about
2013-14 Student Leader Group priorities, a presentation about 2013- 14 Student Government
priorities, a report on 2013 First Four Orientation, and a presentation on Student Conduct Code
Revisions.
In addition, several announcements will be made.
FI SCAL I MP LI CA TI ON S

None
AD MI N ISTRATIVE R ECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Uni�ersity Executive Officer

Date

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee

Room 201
Welch Hall

Tuesday, October 1, 2013
10:30 a.m.
Agenda
1. Approval of June 18, 2013 m i nutes

Regent Fitzsimmons

2. 2013-14 Student Leader G ro u p Priorities

Katelyn Coberly &
Melissa Heatlie

3. First Four Orientation Report

Caroline Horste &
Lucas Langdon

4. Student Cond uct Code Revisions

Jesus Hernandez

5. 2013-14 Student Government Priorities

Desmond M iller &
Nino Monea

6. Announcements

Eastern Michigan U niversity
Board of Regents
Student Affairs Committee
Minutes of June 18, 2013
MEMBERS PRESENT
Regents:

Beth Fitzsimmons, Floyd Clack

Admi nistration: Perry Francis, Melissa Ginotti, Glenna Frank Miller, Provost Kim Schatzel
Students:
GUESTS

Katelyn Coberley, M elissa Heatlie, Caroline Horste, Bryan Michalowski, Nino Monea,
Erica Mooney, Brent Myrand, Ameila Parnis, Jumanah Saadeh, Renee Walton

Administration: (as signed in) Akosua Dow, Meredith Blaine, Elise Buggs, Jim Carroll, Meg Castro,
Lynette Findley, Larry Gates, Robertta Goeffeney, Ellen Gold, G loria Hage, Jesus
Herna ndez, Erin Hunt-Carter, Keith J ason, Casey Jordan, Sarah Kersey-Otto, Ann
Klaes, Walter Kraft, Lucas Langdon, Goeff Larcom, Lisa Lauterbach, Kevin Lawson,
Greg Peoples, Carl Powell, Eric Reed, Chris Shell, Rebecca Sipe, Monica Thiagarajan,
Cynthia Van Pelt, Melody Reifel Werner
Students: Hiba Baghdadi, Ben Elmgren, Desmond M iller
G uests: Josh Lelonek, M u ayad Mahmoud, Regina Royan
Regent Fitzsimmons convened the meeting at 10:30 am. Minutes of Apri l 16, 2013 were approved as
presented.
Student Leader G roup members for 2013-14 introduced themselves and stated the area of the
Student Body that they will represent.
LeaderShape
M elissa G inotti, Casey Jordan and H iba Bagdahdi shared a presentation about LeaderShape, a six day
retreat. 2013 marked the lih time that E M U has participated in LeaderShape. 57 E M U students
attended, including students from G reek Life, the Honors College and Student Government. Four
cluster facilitators also participated.
Casey stated that the LeaderShape experience is developmentally appropriate in a safe a n d
supportive community. Participants identify core ethical a n d personal values, develop respectful
relationships with all participa nts, create a vision for the greater good of the commu nity, and develop
group and team work skills to accomplish a vision.

The university gains an increased depth of conversation about cam pus issues, student commitment
to positively im pact the campus commu n ity, d iverse partnerships and supportive relationships,
collaborative initiatives and engaged students.
Elyse Buggs attended as one of the cluster facilitators. She found it to be a very rewarding experience,
and returned i nspired, energized and ready to serve students. Melissa would like to see faculty and
staff from both Academic and Student Affairs areas volunteer to be cluster facilitators in future years.
Regent Fitzsimmons attended an evening of LeaderShape. Students told her that they were gaining
much from the experience and learning a lot about each other.
Student Leader Group Transition Day Retreat
Bryan Mich alowski and Brent Myrand shared i nformation about the 2013 Student Leader Grou p
Transition Day retreat, which was held o n M ay 10, 2013.
Student Leader G roup has been in existence for nearly 40 years and has had a part in several key
initiatives on campus, including the building of Halle Library, the construction of the Student Center,
funding for a permanent staff member for the Women's Resource Center and U niversal Restrooms.
Brent stated that the morning activities consisted of team building events, which were both mental
and physical. These events allowed committee members to get to know each other and begin
building trust. The afternoon activities included brainstorming and discussing goals and p riorities.
Bryan felt that people were respectful and open-mi n ded. Brent thought that 2013-14 priorities would
be finalized at Transition Day, when in fact, the group would take several more weeks to determine
the priorities. People were willing to listen to each other and he sees a promising future for this
group.
Student Government Priorities
Desmond M iller greeted the Student Leader G roup and guests, and stated that he would not be
sharing priorities, but wanted to take a few moments to honor Glenna Frank Mil ler, advisor to the
Student Leader G roup. Desmond stated that Glenna was an advocate with a passion for students,
that she was dedicated and caring, and had been the "Mother" of the Student Government and the
Student Body.
Glenna thanked Desmond and stated that she has been thrill ed to have been part of the EMU family
for almost 40 years, and that she feels blessed to have had a career at E M U .
Announcements
•
•
•

Caroline Horste shared details about Homecoming, which will be held on September 2 1, 2013.
Homecoming Court recruitment will be done over the summer. Applications will be due on
Friday, September 6.
TrueEMU Day at Comerica Park will be held on July 10 at 7 :00pm.
Fall Orientation (Fusion) will occur August 3 1 - September 3, 2013.

•
•
•
•

J umanah Saadah shared information about the National Conference for College Student
Women Leaders (NCCWSL}, which occurred May 30-June 1, 2013. Eleven E M U studef)ts
attended the conference.
Lucas Langdon, I nterim Campus Life Director, was introduced.
Nino Monea annou nced that a ceremony for the new walk-in Advising Center in the Student
Center would be held at 3 :00p m today, June 18. The summer hours of the center will be
M onday-Friday, 8:00am-5 :00pm.
Regent Fitzsimmons thanked Glenna Frank Miller for a l l that she has done during her time at
the university.

The meeting adjourned at 1 1 :02am .
Respectfully submitted,

Michele Rich
Student Affairs Comm ittee Recording Secretary

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G AN U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION: 10
DATE:

October 1 , 2013

RECOMMENDATION
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the working agenda for the
October 1 , 2013 meeting and the June 1 8, 2013 minutes.

STAFF SUMMARY
• Approval of Tuesday, June 1 8, 2013 Minutes
• Organizational Structure
• Eagle Unite Games
• Reese and Jacoby Cup-Education and Awareness
• Branding Initiatives - Block E
• Fundraising Updates
• Fall Sport Reports

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
To be determined

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval

University Exe-cefive Officer

Date '

Macintosh HD·Users.lgrohowsk:OoC1.Jments:Board of Regents:BQard Recommendal\on Ocotober 1 , 201 3.doc
13-Sep- 13 sl b

BOARD OF REG ENTS
ATHL ETIC AFFAIR S COMMITTEE
October 1, 2013
201 Welch Hall
8:30am
AGENDA

A.

Approval of Tuesday, June 18, 2013 Minutes

B.

Organizational Structure
a. Platform for communication
b. Organizational changes

c. Involvement in University Athletics
d. Department CPR Training

e. Community Service Initiative

C.

Eagles Unite Games

D.

Reese and Jacoby Cup - Education and Awareness

E.

Branding Initiatives- Block E

F.

Fundraising Updates
a. Short term facility or sport program needs

b. Upcoming opportunities to entertain potential donors

G.
HL/lb

Agenda October I 2d 1 1.doc

Fall Sport Reports

Members:
Regents:
Athletics:

Eastern Michigan University
Board of Regents
ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Minutes of June 18, 2013
Chair Mike Hawks, James Stapleton, Floyd Clack
Dr. Melody Reifel Werner, Interim Director of Intercollegiate Athletics

Regent Mike Hawks called the Athletic Affairs Committee meeting to order at 9:35 am.
Minutes approved by James Stapleton.
Melody Reifel Werner stated that we are continuing with the Coaches program that we developed last
meeting. She introduced Scott Hall, Head Women's Soccer Coach.

Soccer:
Scott Hall graduated from Eastern Michigan University with a Bachelor Degree in Elementary Education.
During the years 1989-1994 he played for the EMU Men's Soccer Team. He was a two-year captain. He
has been a part of the EMU Women's Soccer Program since its Inception in 1995. Women's Soccer has a
139-107-40 record overall, 90-51-22 MAC overall record. They have had two regular season Mid
American titles, one trip to the NCAA Tournament, 8 top 5 finishes, 7 seasons of 10 or more wins, 2
seasons of 15 or more wins and 12 out of 14 years making the Mid American Tournament. Off the field,
Women's Soccer has a 100% graduation success rate and a 975 APR. Soccer has recently made the move
from B owen to the Indoor Practice Facility, with a new Locker Room, a meeting room and Coaches Office
waiting for them; along with new bleachers and press box at Scicluna Field, Home Field of the Women's
Soccer Team. What Women's Soccer needs in the future; Scicluna Field to have more of that Stadium feel,
being to travel further for competitions to raise their RPI ranking and additional staffing. August 23,
2013 is their opening day vs. University of Detroit�Mercy.
Athletic Training:
Steve Nordwall, Head Athletic Trainer discussed the Athletic Training program here at Eastern Michigan
University. Including himself there are four Assistant Trainers, five Graduate Assistants, who are
working towards a Master's Degree or already have a Master's. There are currently 40 students in the
Athletic Training Education Program. The Athletic Training Program at Eastern Michigan University is on
the cutting edge of services, with a Concussion Specialist and Dietician on hand. The Athletic Training
Department covers 2 1 Varsity Teams. The Athletic Training program faces many challenges. They need a
Trainers presence at all games and practices, right now Tennis and Golf have no coverage. They need an
insurance coordinator to collaborate with health care facilities. There is an increased liability with
concussion issues, sickle cell trait, SCA, exertional heat illness, and budget limitations.
Fund.raising Update:

Nikki Borges, Director for Athletics Development said in terms of fundraising we have fallen behind this
year, though last year we received $150,000 gift, so growth in actuality is the same. On a positive note,
the endowment has increased from 3.2 million to 3.7 million. A 17% growth.
Budget:
The 2013-14 Department of Intercollegiate Athletics General Fund Operating Budget and Game
Guarantee are on file. We are up to 2.6 year to year; 3.6% general fund and 10,726,889 personal costs.
The game guarantee net revenue of 171,618. 2014-15 revenue will increase due to APR bonus and BCS
p ayment; 10% Football and 25 % Basketball.

Good News for Athletics:
Two members of the EMU baseball team were named to the All-MAC teams. Men's Basketball had two
players named to the Academic All-MAC Honorable Mention after having successful redshirt-junior
campaigns during the 2 0 12-13 season. Chelsea Hite earned academic AU-MAC Honorable Mention
honors for Women's Basketball. Women's Golf Alyssa Kwon was named to the Academic All-MAC Team.
Sophomore Gymnastics Anna Willette has been named an Academic All-MAC honoree. KC Anderson was
named to the 2013 Division 1 All-Central Region Second Team for Rowing. In Softball, Katy Blaharski
was named the All-MAC First Team shortstop and Amanda Stanton was named to the All-MAC First Team
second base. Six athletes from Men's Swimming & Diving and five athletes from Women's Swimming &
Diving were named to the Academic All-MAC Conference team. Ankita Bhatia, Nino Mebuke and Mariya
Toncheva all earned Academic All-MAC Honorable Mention honors for Tennis. Jay Saunders from Men's
Track & Field has been named to the Academic AH-MAC team. Five Women's Track athletes earned
Honorable Mention All-MAC team honors for their performance both on and off the field. Aaron Sulzer
was named to the 2013 National Wrestling Coaches Association for the third year. The Green Bay
Packers signed former quarterback Alex Gillett.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori Barron
Administrative Secretary

B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S IT Y

SECTION: 1 1
DATE:
October 1 , 2013

RECOMMENDATION

ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the employment agreement for Vice
President and Athletic Director, Heather Lyke.
STAF F SUMMARY

Heather Lyke's contract is for a term of five years, from July 22, 2013 through July 21, 2018.
Pursuant to Board Policy 3 .1.1.2, employment agreements in excess of three years must be
approved by the Board of Regents.
FISCAL I MPLICATIONS

Yes, including
• annual compensation of $245,000; and
• standard fringe benefits and incentives. (See attached)
A DMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.
Univ ersity Executiv e Offic er
Gloria A. Hag e
Gen eral Couns el

Uate

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
VICE PRESIDENT/ATHLETIC DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This Employment Agreement is made this 28th day of June, 2013, by and between the Board of
Regents of Eastem Michigan University (h�reiuafter the "University") of Ypsilanti, Michigan and
Heather Lyke (hereinafter the "Employee") and is subject to approval by the University's Board of
Regents.
RECITALS
University needs the services of a Vice President/Athletic Director to manage, supervise
A.
and promote the University's intercollegiate athletic program.
B.
Employee represents that she meets University's qualifications for the position, that the
information she has provided concerning her education and professional background is accurate and
complete, and that she i s available for employment in this capacity by University.
TERMS
In consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions in this Agreement, University and
Employee agree as follows:
1 .0

Employment

I.I
Subject to the conditions stated in this Agreement, University employs Employee as Vice
President/Director of Intercollegiate Athletics at University, and Employee agrees to and accepts the
terms and conditions for employment outlined in this Agreement.
1 .2
Employee shall work under the immediate supervision of the President of the University
("President") or the President's designee, and shall confer with the President on all significant issues.
1 .3
Employee shall manage and supervise the University' Intercollegiate Athletic Program,
and perform such other duties in the program as may be assigned. University reserves the right to
reassign Employee to duties other than as Vice President/Director of Intercollegiate Athletics, while
retaining the salaries aud benefits stated herein.
2.0

Term

2.1
Employee's employment shall begin on July 22, 20 1 3 1md continue for a period of five
(5) years until July 2 l, 2018, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. Employee shall be a member
of the Administrative Professional job classification. Except as modified in this Agreement, all policies
applicable to Administrative Professional employees will apply to Employee.

Vice PresideuUAlhlelic Director Employment Agreement
PHge 2 of9
2.2
This employment in no way grants Employee a claim to tenure in employment, or any
years of employment attributable to tenure within University.

3 .0

Compensation

3.1
In consideration for Employee's faithful, diligent, and successful performance of the
services set fo1th in this Agreement, the University agrees to provide the following salary and fringe
benefits to Employee during the term of this Agreement.
3 . 1 . 1 � University shall pay Employee an annual sala1y of $245,000 ($1 0,208.33
semimontl1ly) in full payment for the satisfactory performance of all duties required under this
Agreement, less any applicable state and federal tax deductions or deductions authorized in
writing by Employee. Employee will not be eligible for a salary increase until October I , 2014.
Subsequent salary increases shall be based on annual review by the President or his/her designee.
3 . 1 .2
Fringe Benefits. Except as modified by this Agreement, University shall provide
Employee with the same fringe benefits and on the same tenns as provided to non-bargained for
Administrative Professional employees as of the date of this Agreement.
University shall provide Employee with a leased vehicle for her use on
3 . 1 .3
University business or a vehicle allowance of $500 per month. Upon termination or early
termination of this Agreement, Employee shall immediately return the automobile to the
University.
3 .1.4
For each year dming the term of this Agreement in which the University's
varsity Football Team wins a Mid-American Conference (MAC) Divisional Championship,
Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of$2,500.
3 . 1 .5
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
varsity Football Team participates in a post-season bowl game, Employee shall be entitled to a
lump sum bonus payment equal to one month of the Employee's base salary as set forth in
Provision 3 . 1 . 1 . I n addition, for each year during the term of this Agreement i n which the
University's varsity Football Team pa1iicipates in a Bowl Championship Series bowl game,
Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment equal to one month of the Employee's
base salary as set fo1ih in Provision 3 . 1 . 1 .
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
3 . 1 .6
varsity Football Team's actual home game attendance averages 15,000 or more, Employee shall
be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $5,000.
For each year during the te1m of this Agreement in which the University's
3 . 1 .7
varsity Women's Basketball Team wins a MAC Divisional Championship, Employee shall be
entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $ 1 ,000.

2

Vice President/Athletic Director Employment Agreement
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3.1.8
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
varsity Women's Basketball Team participates in the National Invitation Tournament (NIT),
Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $3,500.
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
3. l .9
varsity Women's Basketball Team participates in the National Collegiate Athletic Association
(NCAA) Tournament, Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $5,000. In
addition, for each year during the tenn of this Agreement in which the University's varsity
Women's Basketball Team participates in the NCAA Tournament and makes it to tbe NCAA
Elite 8 round, Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $2,500.
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
3.1.10
varsity Women's Basketball Team home game attendance averages 2,500 or more, Employee
shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $2,000.
3. 1 . 1 1
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
varsity Men's Basketball wins a MAC Divisional Championship, Employee shall be entitled to a
lump sum bonus payment of $1,000.
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
3.1 . 12
varsity Men's Basketball Team participates in the National Invitation Tournament (NIT),
Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of$3,500.
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University's
3 . 1 . 13
varsity Men's Basketball Team participates in National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA)
Tournament, Employee shall be entitled to a hunp sum bonus payment of $5,000, In addition,
for each year during the tenn of this Agreement in which the University's varsity Men's
Basketball Team particip11tes in the NCAA Tournament and makes it to the NCAA Elite 8 round,
Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of$2,500.
For each year during the tenn of this Agreement i n which the University's
3.1.14
varsity Men's Basketball Team's home game attendance averages 3,500 or more, Employee shall
be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of $2,000.
3.1.l5
For each year during the tenn of this Agreement in which a University 11011revenue generating varsity sports team wins a MAC Championship, Employee shall be entitled to
a lump sum bonus payment of $ 1 ,000 for each MAC Championship.
3.l.16
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University wins
the MAC Reese Cup, the Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of$2,500.
3.1.l7
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University wins
the MAC Jacoby Cup, the Employee shall be entitled to a lump sum bonus payment of$2,500.

3
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3. 1 . 1 8
For each year during the term of this Agreement in which the University wins
both the MAC Reese Cup and the MAC Jacoby Cup, the Employee shall be entitled to a lump
sum bonus payment of $2,500.
To the extent eight or more tickets are made available to the University for
3. 1 . 1 9
the NCAA Tournament Men's Basketball Championship game, University shall provide
Employee with fom complimentary tickets to the Championship game. To the extent eight or
more tickets are made available to the University for the NCAA Tournament Women's
Basketball Championship game, University shall provide Employee with four complimentary
tickets to the Championship game.
3 . 1 .20
Moving Expenses. Upon submission of appropriate invoices, the University
shall pay Employee's moving company the standard costs associated with her moving from her
current residence to the Ypsilanti, Michigan area. University's payment shall include packing
and unpacking fees. The moving company must be selected based on two competitive bids.
Preapproval from the University must be obtained before the moving company is hired.
Yearly Academic Progress Rate ("APR"), as calculated by the NCAA and
3 . 1 .21
issued in the Spring of each year:
$1 ,000 for 960 or better APR (average of all teams); or
$1 ,500 for 970 or better APR (average of all teams); or
$2,000 for 980 or better APR (average of all teams).
3 . 1.22 Percentage of all student-athletes identified as scholar athletes (3.0 cumulative
GPA or better) at the end of each Spring semester by EMU pursuant to established standards:
$ 1,000 for a scholar athlete rate of 60% or better for the academic year; or
$1,500 for a scholar athlete rate of 65% or better for the academic year, or
$2,000 for a scholar athlete rate of70% 01· better for the academic year.
4.0
follows:

Employee's Duties
4.1

In consideration of the annual salary and other benefits, Employee promises and agrees as

4. 1 . 1 Faithfully and conscientiously perform all duties related to the establishment,
direction and development of an educationally sound, fully compli11nt, and competitive
intercollegiate athletic program, and to perform all duties prescribed herein and assigned by
University's Board of Regents, President, and President's designee within the budget allocated.

4
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4. 1 .2
Plan, direct, and implement all phases of University's intercollegiate athletic
program, including managing, supervising and ensuring legal and rule compliance by athletic
program administrators, coaches and other employees; recruitment of academically and
athletically qualified students of sound character; developing competitive schedules; budget
preparation and supervision for the program; public relations activities; and fund raising.
Attendance is expected at the President's executive team meetings, community events, and other
appropriate University activities;
4. 1 .3 Devote full-time attention and energy to the duties of Director of Intercollegiate
Athletics as required herein, to the promotion of the University's Athletic program; and to avoid
any business or professional activities or pursuits that would prevent Employee from devoting
full time to performance of the duties under this Agreement, or that would embarrass University
or detract in any maimer from the duties outlined herein;
4 . 1 .4
Know, recognize and comply with the laws, policies, rules, and regulations
gove111ing the University and its employees and the rules of the National Collegiate Athletic
Association (NCAA) and the Mid-American Conference (MAC), as now constituted or as they
may be amended d11ring the term hereof, to supervise and ensure that program administrators,
coaches and a11y other employees for which Employee is administratively responsible for comply
with the aforesaid policies, rules, and regulations and to immediately advise the President if
Employee has cause to believe violations have occurred or will occur;
4.1. 5
Develop programs and procedures with respect to the evaluation, recruitment,
training, and coaching of student athletes to compete successfully while assuring the welfare of
student athletes;
4.1. 6
University;

Observe and uphold all academic standards, requirements, and policies of

4. 1 . 7
Encourage student athletes to petform to their highest academic potential,
obtain the highest grndes possible and graduate.
4.2 It is further agreed that Employee will not receive outside compensation (including but not
limited to income, annuities, spo1ts camps, housing benefits, complimentary ticket sales, television and
radio programs, and endorsement 01· consultation contracts with athletic footwear, apparel or equipment
manufacturers) without prior written consent of the University's Board or President, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld and shall disclose to the University President all outside compensation
Employee receives and the source of such compensation.
4.3 Employee shall maximize radio and television coverage favorable to University, but shall
receive renumeration for such appearances, for any endorsements, or public presentations only upon
securing prior written consent as noted in Section 4.2.
5.0

Travel

s
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Employee shall conduct such travel within the allotted budget 11s is necessary to carry out duties
as Director of Intercollegiate and Employee shall be entitled to reimbursement for transportation and per
diem expenses at the rate provided to University's non-represented Administrative Professional
employees.
6.0

Termination for Just Cause

6 . 1 University has the right to terminate this Agreement for Just C11use, in which case prior to
termination but st1bject to the provisions concerning suspension, Employee shall be given written notice
and an opportunity to be heard. In addition to its normally understood meaning in the employment
context, the tenn "j t1st cause" shall be understood to include, but not be limited to, all of the following:
6. 1 . 1 A deliberate or serious violation of the duties set fot1h in this Agreement or
refusc1l or unwillingness to perform such duties in good faith and to the best of Employee's
abilities.
6.1.2 As of the effective date of this agreement, a significant, repetitive or
intentional violation (or a pattern of conduct which may constitute or lead to a major
violation), as reasonably determined by University, by Employee (or any other person
under Employee's supervision and direction, including but not limited to coaches) of any
laws, University rules and regulations or governing athletic rules (including but not limited
to NCAA or Mid-American Conference Rules);
6.1.3
Agreement;

A violation by Employee of any of the other terms and conditions of this

6. 1.4 Any conduct of Employee that constitutes moral turpitude, or which would tend
to harm the reputation of the University, or failure to follow the high moral and ethical standards
commonly expected of Employee as the leading representative of the Department of
Intercollegiate Athletics at University;
6.1.5 A deliberate or serious violation of any law, regulation, rule, constitutional
provision or bylaw of University or knowledge of violation by a member of the Athletic
Department and failure to report such violation to the President of the University or another
appropriate person.
6 . 1 .6

Prolonged absence from duty without University's consent;

6 . 1 .7

Engaging in criminal activity, or misuse of University funds or resources; and

6. 1 .8 Any conduct which violates the rights of sh1dent athletes under the law, the EMU
Student Code of Conduct, EMU Athletics Dep11rtment policy, or NCAA policies.
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6. 1 .9 Failure of a team within the Department of Intercollegiate Athletics to earn a
minimum Academic Progress Rate (APR) to be eligible to participate in post-season competition
for three consecutive years with no plan for improvement in place during those three years.
6.2
The President shall have administrative authority to immediately suspend Employee on a
pre-heal'ing basis from performance of some or all duties for a period of up to one month without
termination of this Agreement for causes set fotth in this Section 6.0 et. seq.
6.2. 1
Employee shall have the procedural right, upon written request, for a review and
hearing relative to any such suspension ordered by the President. Any such hearing shall be
governed by the normal University's grievance procedures provided for non-bargained for
administrative employees, as now or hereafter amended, unless other procedures are agreed upon
by the parties in lieu thereof.
6. 3.1 In the event University terminates this Agreement with cause, all salary and
benefits shall cease as of the date of termination of the Agreement. University shall pay to
Employee, as liquidated damages, an amount equal to 6 months of the Employee's base salary, itt
the University's option in one lump sum or on a monthly basis pro-rated over the remainder of
the term of this Agreement. To be eligible for either payment, Employee shall execute a release
!llld waiver agreement within such timelines and subject to such terms and conditions as are
established by University, including, but not limited to, a waiver of any and all legal claims or
potential legal claims Employee has or may have against University and any of its related entities,
its regents, officers, employees and agents. University shall not be liable for any liquidated
damage or loss o f any collateral business oppottunities or any other benefits, or income from, any
sources that might ensue as a result of University's termination of this Agreement without cause.
6.3.2
The pa1ties have bargained for and agreed to the foregoing liquidated damages
provision, giving consideration to the fact that Employee may lose ce1tain benefits, supplemental
compensation or outside compensation relating to her employment at University, which damages
are extremely difficult to determine with certainty, or fairly or adequately. The parties fu1ther
agree that payment of such liquidated damages by University and acceptance thereof by
Employee shall constitute adequate and reasonable compensation to Employee for damages and
injmy suffered because of such tennination by University. The foregoing shall not be, nor be
construed to be, a penalty.
6.3.3 The Employee is required lo m itigate University's obligations under this
Section 6 by making reasonable and diligent effo11s to obtain a vice president/athletic
director or other comparable employment position as soon as practicable following such
termination.
6.3.4 If the Employee is employed elsewhere post-termination, the University's
obligations to pay Employee as set faith in Section 6.3.1 shall be reduced by the
E m p l o y e e's total compensation from all sources related to such position. University
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shall pay such revised amount, after the Employee's date of hire to the new position, in
monthly installments for the remaining term of the Agreement.
6. 4
Ill no case shall University be liable to Employee for any liquidated damages, or loss of
any collateral business opportunities or any other benefits, or income from any other sources.
7.0

Termination Without Cause

7.1
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate
automatically if Employee dies or becomes totally or permanently disabled (as defined by University).
Any such termination shall not be reason for payment of any liquidated damages set fo1ih below.
7.2
At any time after commencement of this Agreement, University may terminate this
Agreement without cause by giving written notice to Employee.
7.2 . 1 In the event University terminates this Agreement without cause, all salary and
benefits shall cease as of the date of termination of the Agreement. University shall pay to
Employee, as liquidated damages, an amount equal to 12 months of the Employee's base salary,
at the University's option in one lump sum or on a monthly basis pro-rated over the remainder of
the term of this Agreement. To be eligible for either payment, Employee shall execute a release
and waiver agreement within such timelines and subject to such terms and conditions as are
established by U niversity, incl11ding, but not limited to, a waiver of any and all legal claims or
potential legal claims Employee has or may have against University and any of its related entities,
its regents, officers, employees and agents. University shall not be liable for any liquidated
damage or loss of any collateral business opportunities or any other benefits, or income from, any
sources that might ensue as a result of University's tennination of this Agreement without cause.
7.2 .2 The pa1iies have bargained for and agreed to the foregoing liquidated damages
provision, giving consideration to the fact that Employee may lose certain benefits, supplemental
compensation Ol' outside compensation relating to her employment at University, which damages
are extremely difficult to determine with certainty, or fairly or adequately. The parties further
agree that payment of such liquidated damages by University and acceptance thereof by
Employee shall constitute adequate and reasonable compensation to Employee for damages and
injmy suffered because of such tennination by University. The foregoing shall not be, 11or be
construed to be, a penalty.
7.2.3 The Employee is required to mitigate University's obligations under this
Section 7 by making reasonable and diligent efforts to obtain a vice president/athletic
director or other comparable employment position as soon as practicable following such
termination.
7.2.4 Ifthe Employee is employed elsewhere post-termination, the University's
obligations to pay Employee as set forth in Section 72.I shall be reduced by the Director's
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total compensation from all sources related to such position. University shall pay such
revised amount, after the Employee' s date of hi.re to the new position, in monthly
installments for the remaining term of the Agreement.
8.0

Outside Employment

Employee agrees not to personally, or through any agent accept other full-time or part-time
employment of any nature during the term of this Agreement without first having obtained written
consent from the President of University.
9.0

Relationship Between the Parties

The relationship between Employee and University shall be determined solely by the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.
10.0

Goveming Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Michigan, the
courts of which shall be the forum for any lawsuit arising from or incident to this Agreement.
1 1 .0

Severability

If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be void, invalid, unenforceable or
illegal for any reason, it shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition and the validity and
enforceability of all the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby.
12.0

Entire Agreement: Modification

Th is Agreement contains all the terms between the parties and may be amended only in writing
signed by both parties.

flu

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employee and the authorized representative(s) of University have
executed this Agreement on th is gg
day of June, 20 13.
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

EMPLOYEE:

By: _

By: _c

Date: -�----��-

Date:

- ----
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B OARD OF REGENTS
E A S TE R N M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION: 1 2
DATE:

October 1 , 2013

RECOMMENDATION

ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the employment agreement for Head
Women's Softball Coach, Melissa Gentile.

STAFF SUMMARY
Melissa Gentile's contract is for a term of five years, from August 19, 2013 through August 18,
2018. Pursuant to Board Policy 3. 1.1.2, employment agreements in excess of three years must
be approved by the Board of Regents.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
Yes, including
• annual compensation of $75,000; and
• standard fringe benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

University Executive&)fficer
Gloria A. Hage
General Counsel

Date

C:\Users\vreaume\AppOataliocal\Temp\boaro of Regents Action Request Recommendation Form Melissa Genti te-Ldoc
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EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITYij
ATHLETIC COACH EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
I.

Introduction

This Employment Agreement made this _ 19th_ day of August 2013 _by and between the Board of
Regents of Eastern Michigan University (hereinafter the "University"), of Ypsilanti , Michigan and
Melissa Gentile (hereinafter the "Employee") of Ann Arbo:· state of Michigan. It is subj ect to the
approval of the University's B oard of Regents.
The University agrees to em ploy the Employee in the capacity of Head Coach, Softball to perfonn all
duties related to the establishment, direction and development of an educationally sound and competitive
athletics program, and to perform all duties prescribed by the University's Board of Regents, President,
Director of Intercollegiate Athletics, Associate Athletics Director, and Assistant Athletics Director. Such
duties will include but not be limited to the following:
A. Plan, direct and implement all phases of a varsity intercollegiate athletic program , including
recruitment of academically and athletically qualified students of character; developing competitive
schedules ; budget preparation and supervision of all aspects of the program. Including the academic
progress and conduct of the student-athletes in the program ; conduct practice sessions, conditioning
programs, clinics, public relations activities ; and fund raising. Attendance is expected at staff meetings,
community events, and other appropriate athletic activities.
B.
Conduct all related duties consistent with the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA)
and Mid-American Conference (MAC) by-laws , constitution, regulations, and any other directives
governing University athletic competition. A coach who is found in violation of NCAA or MAC
regulations shall be subj ect to -disciplinary or corrective action as set forth in the p rovisions of the
NCAA or MAC enforcement procedures, including suspension without pay or termination of
employment for significant or re p etitive violations.
C.
The employee agrees to devote his/her energies to faithfully, diligently and successfully perform
his/her duties set forth in this Agreement. Further, during the term of this Agreement, the Employee
agrees not to render services or engage in activities for any other person or entity which are identical or
similar to the services and activities required by this Agreement, without written notice to and the written
approval of the University's Director of Intercollegiate Athletics.
University and Employee further agree that the employment relationship will be subj ect to the following
terms and conditions :
2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT
a. This Agreement and the term of emp loyment shall commence on August 19, 20 13 _and shall continue
in full force and effect until August 1 8 , 201 8 subj ect, however, to the right the parties to tenninate the
Agreement early pursuant to Provisions 2(b ) or 2 (c).

b. Notwithstanding any other prov1S1on to the contrary, this Agreement, and the employment
relationship between the University and the Employee, may be terminated without cause by the
Employee or the University at any time, with or without notice.
(1) In the event the Agreement is terminated early by the University without cause pursuant to this
provision, the University agrees to pay the Employee,
as liquidated damages, an amount equal to six (6)
i
months of the Employee's annual salary as specif ed in Section 3 or the remaining portion of the salary
amount which would have been due Employee from the date of early termination of the Agreement
through the original Agreement expiration date, whichever is less. The payment of liquidated damages
shall be made within thirty (30) days of the specified early termination date. To be eligible for this
payment, Employee shall execute a release and waiver agreement within such timelines and subject to
such terms and conditions as are established by University, including, but not limited to, waiver of any
and all legal claims or potential legal claims Employee has or may have against University and any of its
related entities, their regents, directors, officers, employees, insurers and agents.
The parties have bargained for and agreed to the foregoing liquidated damages prov1Ston, g1vmg
consideration to the fact that Employee may lose certain benefits, supplemental compensation or outside
compensation relating to his/her employment at University, which damages are extremely difficult to
detennine with certainty, or fairly or adequately. The parties further agree that payment of such
liquidated damages by University and acceptance thereof by Employee shall constitute adequate and
reasonable compensation to Employee for damages and injury suffered because of such termination by
University and shall be in full and complete satisfaction of all claims against the University- under this
Agreement. The foregoing shall not be, nor be construed to be, a penalty.
c. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, this Agreement, including the employment
relationship between University and Employee, may be terminated for just cause by the University with
written notice to Employee. Just cause for termination includes, but is not limited to, the following
grounds:
( 1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Violation of any of the terms of this Agreement, including the duties prescribed above;
Engaging in any criminal activity, or misuse of University funds or resomces;
Any conduct which violates the rights of student-athletes;
Failure to follow instructions or directions of the University's Board of Regents, Presiden�
Director of Intercollegiate Athletics, Associate Athletics Director, and/or Assistant Athletics
Director;
(5) Violation by Employee of t.1-ie constitution, by-laws, or regulations of the MAC or the NCAA or
any other directive issued by these athletic organizations, as determined by the University, the
MAC or the NCAA, or knowing of a violation or potential violation and failing to promptly
re[>ort it to the Athletic Director;
(6) Any act of misconduct by Employee.

In the event University terminates this Agreement for Just Cause prior to the end of this
Agreement, all obligations of University to make further payments and/or to provide other
consideration hereunder shall cease on the termination date.

2

3. COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

That in consideration for Employee's faithful, diligent and successfal performance of the services set
forth in this Agreement, the University agrees to provide the following salary and fringe benefits to
Employee during the term of this Agreement.
a. Salary. University shall pay Employee an annualized salary of $75,000 paid according to the
University's nonnal payroll procedures, in full payment for the pe1formance of all duties required ur.der
this Agreement, less any applicable state and federal tax deductions or deductions authorized in writing
by Employee. All salary increases shall be based on the Pay for Performance Compensation Program if
University funds are available.
b. Fringe Benefits. University shall provide Employee with the same fringe benefits and on the same
terms as provided to non-bargained for administrative employees as of the date of this Agreement.
c. Leave of Absence. A leave of absence may be provided pursuant to Eastern Michigan University
policies, rules and regulations. A request for a leave of absence must be approved pursuant to the
University' s procedures. A leave of absence shall not extend beyond the term of the Employment
Agreement.
4. OUTSIDE INCOME AND BENEFITS

The employee annually shall report all athletically related income from sources outside the instihltion
(including, but not limited to, income, annuities, sports camps, housing benefits, complimentary-ticket
sales, television and radio programs, and endorsement or consultation contracts with athletic footwear,
apparel or equipment manufacturers) through the Director of Intercollegiate Athletics to the University's
President.
Reports must be made on an annual basis. The Athletic Director shall determine the due date of the
report. The document must include information concerning athletically related outside income for the
previous contract period.
5. AMENDlVIENTS AND WAIVERS
No change or modification of any part of this Agreement, including this paragraph, shall be valid unless
such change or modifk,ation is made in writing and signed by the University President, Director of
Intercollegiate Athletics, and Employee. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid
unless in writing and signed by the party alleged to have waived its right under the Agreement.
6. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement incorporates and supersedes all prior negotiations, communications, understandings and
agreements between the parties hereto regarding the subject matter hereof, whether written or oral. No
such prior negotiations, communications, understandings, or agreements shall be of any further force or
effect.
3

7. GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Michigan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employee and the authorized representatives of University have executed this
Agreement as of the date set fo1th above.

EASTERl\l MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
(UNIVERSITY)
Date:

By :_ ..,--, ··����
Heather Lyke
Director of AthletiU

EMPLOYEE
Date:

Melissa Gentilel7"
Head Coach, Softball
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SECTION: 1 3

DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICH IGAN UNI VE R SI TY

October 1, 2013

RECOMMENDATION
M ONTHLY R E PORT
FACUL TY AFFAIR S COMMI TTEE

ACTION REQUE STED

It is requested that the Faculty Affairs Committee Agenda for October 1, 2013 be received and
placed on file and the Minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting be received and placed on file.
STAFF SUMMARY

The topic for the October 1, 2013 Faculty Affairs Committee meeting is "Globalization."
FI SCAL I M PLICATI ONS

There is no fiscal impact.

ADMINI STRATIVE RECOMl\lfENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univer ,ity Executive Officer

Date

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
Facultv Affairs Committee

October 1 , 2 0 1 3
9:30-10: 1 5 am
205 Welch Hall
AGENDA

Regular Agenda Items

Monthly Report and Minutes (Regent Stapleton, Chair)
Discussion Topic

"Globalization"

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF REGENTS
FACU LTY AFFAIRS C OMMITTEE MINUTES

April 16, 2013
9:30-10: 15 a.m.
205 Welch Hall
Attendees (seated at tables): 0. Baker, M. Brake, M. Bretting, H. Bunsis, J. CaiTOl!, D.
Clearwater, P. Francis, B. Jones, J. Kindred, P. Koehn, S. Norton, Regent Parker (Vice Chair), G.
Plagens, M. Rahman, Provost Schatzel, L. Shetron-Rama, and Regent Stapleton (Chair)
Guests (as signed in): A. Dow, B. Francis, P. Francis, G. Frank Miller, M. Reifel Werner,

Regent Stapleton opened the meeting at 9:30 a.m.

Monthlv Report and Minutes {Regent Parker, Chair) (Section 9)
Regent Stapleton requested that the Faculty Affairs Committee Agenda for April 16, 2013 and
the Minutes of the February 19, 2013 meeting be received and placed on file.
Discussion Topic - "Role of the Facultv in Accreditation"
Sandy Norton, Professor of English and Faculty Senate President, introduced the discussion of
"University and Programmatic Accreditation: The Critical Role and Expanding Role of Faculty."

W. Douglas Baker, Professor of English, discussed the value of accreditation and its current
challenges.
Accreditation is university-v..ide through the Higher Learning Commission and also program
specific through specialized professional associations. Cunent program-specific accreditation
strives for continuous improvement through annual evaluation of student learning outcomes.
Annual accreditation requires increased demands for faculty time, administrative support and
technology resources.
Students who graduate from accredited institutions are competitive in the job market, and many
fields require a student to graduate from an accredited program to obtain a professional license.
Gregory Plagens, Assistant Professor of Political Science; Lynn Shetron-Rama, Associate
Professor of Health Sciences; and Mary Brake, Professor of Engineering Technology; shared the
benefits and difficulties of their programs' accreditation.
Sandy Norton suggested and it was agreed upon, that this topic be discussed further next year.

Regent Stapleton thanked all and adjourned the meeting at 10: 15 a.m.

Facultv Affairs Committee Meeting M inutes Apri I I 6. 20 I J. continued

Respectfully submitted,

Debbie Clearwater
Executive Assistant, Office of the Provost
Academic and Student Affairs

SECTION

DATE:

BOARD O F REGENTS

October 1, 2013

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

EDUCATIONAL POLICIES COMMITTEE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES
ACTION REQUESTED
It is requested that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for October 1 , 2013 and the
Minutes of the June 18, 20 13 meeting be received and placed on file.

SUMMARY
The primary items for the October 1 , 2013 Educational Policies Committee meeting include:

Report and Minutes; Emeritus Faculty Recommendations; Academic Retirements and
Separations; Faculty Appointments; Lecturer Promotion; Academic Administrative Transfers;
Proposed Modification to Fall 2014 Calendar; Proposed New Public Health Major; Proposed
M.A. in Philosophy; Proposed Ed.D. to Ph.D. Revision; Charter School Board Member
Appointments; Commencement Speaker and Honorary Degree Recipient; Progress Update on
Retention/Student Success; Overview of Career Services Center.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
The fiscal impact of the actions taken is listed in the appropriate sections and in the Board
minutes.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Unived[y Executive Officer
Provost and Executive Vice President

Date
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
Board of Regents
Educational Policies Committee

October 1 , 20 1 3
8:30-9: 1 5 am
205 Welch Hall
AGENDA

Agenda Items

Report and Minutes (Regent Fitzsimmons)
Emeritus Faculty Recommendations (Rhonda Longworth)
Academic Retirements and Separations (David Woike)
Faculty Appointments (David Woike)
Lecturer Promotion (David Woike)
Academic Administrative Transfers (David Woike)
Proposed Modification to Fall 2014 Calendar (Rhonda Longworth)
Proposed New Public Health Major (Rhonda Longworth)
Proposed M.A. in Philosophy (Rhonda Longworth)
Proposed Ed.D. to Ph.D. Revision (Rhonda Longworth)
Charter Schools Board Member Appointments (A1alverne Winborne)
Commencement Speaker and Honorary Degree Recipient (Kim Schatzel)
Discussion Items
Progress Update on Retention/Student Success
Overview of Career Services Center

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNI VERSITY
BOARD OF REGENTS

EDUCAT IONAL POLICIES COM MITT E E MINUTES
June 18, 2013
9:30 a.m. - 10:15 a.m.
205 Welch Hall
Attendees: (seated at tables) J. Carroll, 0. Clearwater, Regent Fitzsimmons (Chair), R. Longworth,
Regent Morris (Vice Chair), Provost Schatzel, M. Winborne and 0. Woike
Guests: (as signed in) A. Dow, C. Shell, L . Findley, S. Kersey Otto, C. Powell, C. Van Pelt.

Regent Fitzsimmons convened the meeting at 9:30 a.m.
Report and Minutes (Section 15)
Regent Fitzsimmons requested that the Educational Policies Committee Agenda for June 18, 2013 and
Minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting be received and placed on file.
Emeritus Faculty (Section 11)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth, Associate Provost and Associate Vice Presidentfor Academic Programming
and Services, recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Status to four (4) former faculty
members: RaoufHanna, Department of Economics from 1977 to 2013 (who retired May 15, 2013 after
3 5 years); Vannie Kay Hodges, Department of Psychology from 1989 to 2 0 12 (who retired November
16, 2012 after 24 years); Anthony Iannaccone, Department of Music and Dance from 1971 to 2013 (who
retired April 2013 after 42 years); Barbara Leapard, Department of Mathematics from 1993 to 2013
(posthumously; she had been at EMU for 20 years).
Academic Program Phase-Out: Master of Sociology - Family Specialty (Section 16)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth, recommended that the Board of Regents approve an Academic Program Phase
Out: Master of Sociology- Family Specialty (SOCF).

SUMMARY
After a program review process in Fall 2011, the SOCF program was shelved due to low enrollment.
The Sociology, Anthropology & Criminology faculty discussed the possibility of bringing back the
program as well as resources required to do so. Their conclusion was that the program in its shelved
form should be phased out. Since the program was already shelved in 2 0 1 1 , no new admits have begun
the program since that time. Existing students have graduated or transitioned to other programs in the
area.
Academic Minor Phase-Out: Minor in Spanish Literature (Section 1 7)
Dr. Rhonda Longworth, recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file notification of
an Academic Program Phase-Out: Minor in Spanish Literature

SUMMARY
This Minor has been phased-out as a result of the newly approved Spanish Culture and Literature Minor.
Students currently enrolled in the Spanish Literature minor have seven years from the date of their
matriculation to EMU to complete that minor or they may transition to the new program if desired.
Newly admitted students will enroll in the newly approved program.

Educational Policies Committee Meeting Minutes June 1 8, 2 0 1 3, continued
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Academic Calendar Approval {Section 1 8)
Dr. Rhonda Longworlh, recommended that the Board of Regents approve the proposed Academic
Calendars for 201 5-20 1 6, 201 6-201 7 and 201 7-2018.

SUMMARY
An Academic Calendar Committee works with the Provost's Office and the Registrar to develop the
University Calendar. Faculty Senate appoints members to the Calendar Committee and the full body
provided input on the structure of the calendar in May 201 3.
Academic Affairs Academic Retirements and Separations {Section 5)
Dr. David Woike, Assistant Vice President for A cademic Affairs, recommended that the Board of
Regents approve three (3) retirements and three (3) separations for the reporting period March 1 6, 201 3
through May 3 1 , 201 3 as shown on the listing provided to the Board.
Faculty Appointments (Section 6)
Dr. David Woike, recommended that the Board of Regents approve thirty-two (32) Faculty appointments
for the 2013-14 academic year at the rank, salary, and effective date shown on the listing provided to the
Board.
Faculty Reappointments {Section 7)
Dr. David Woike, recommended that the Board of Regents accept the report from the Division of
Academic Affairs pertaining to the reappointment of 1 0 1 probationary faculty members for the 201 3- 1 4
academic year.
Faculty Promotions {Section 8)
Dr. David Woike, recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the report entitled
Promotion of Faculty Members, pertaining to the promotion of forty-two (42) faculty members,
effective Fall 201 3.
Faculty Tenure Appointments (Section 9)
Dr. David Woike, recommended that the Board of Regents approve the granting of tenure, effective
beginning with the 2 0 1 3 fall semester, for sixteen ( 16) faculty members.
Lecturer Promotions (Section 10)
Dr. David Woike, recommended that the Board of Regents accept and place on file the report entitled
Promotion of Lecturers for 201 3-20 1 4.
RE ISSUANCE OF CHARTER - ANN ARBOR LEARNING COMMUNITY (K-8), HOPE ACADEMY
(K-8), GAUDIOR ACADEMY (K-8) (Section 19)

Dr. Malverne Winborne, Director of Charter Schools, recommended that the Eastern Michigan
University Board of Regents reissue the charter for Ann Arbor Learning Community and authorize the
President of the University to execute a new four-year contract which will expire June 30, 201 7. A
school profile is provided.
Dr. Malverne Winborne, recommended that the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents reissue
the charter for Hope Academy and authorize the President of the University to execute a new three-year
contract which will expire June 30, 2016. A school profile is provided

Educational Policies Committee Meeting M i nutes June 1 8, 20 I 3, continued

Dr. Malverne Winborne, recommended that the Eastern Michigan University Board of Regents reissue
the charter for Gaudior Academy and authorize the President of the University to execute a new two
year contract which will expire June 30, 2 0 1 5 . A school profile is provided.
Progress Update on Retention and Student Success
Dr. Kim Schatzel, Provost and Vice President, and Dr. Rhonda Longworth, presented an update on
Retention and Student Success.

Regent Fitzsimmons thanked those in attendance, and adjourned the meeting at 1 0 : 10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Debbie Clearwater
Executive Assistant, Office of the Provost
Academic and Student Affairs
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Retention U pdate
Ed ucati o n a l Policies C o m m i ttee
Boa rd of Regents
October 1, 2013

Semi-Annual Uodate to the Board of Reaents
Annual Report- October
FA 2011

Update-:: February

FA 2012

Wl 2012

Student Characteristics

,·

Percent Pell Grant Eligible

FTIACs - 49.4%
UG - 50.5%

FTIACs - 55.1 %
U G - 52.9%

Average High School GPA

3.10

3.17

21.1

21.4

Average Credi t Hours Per
Semester

U G - 11.7
GR - 5.2

UG - 11.8
GR - 5.4

Average Credit Hours Per
Academic Year

UG - 21 .8
GR - 10.9

UG - 21.3
GR- 10.8

.

Average ACT Score
Progress to Oegree

Wl 2013

..

UG-11.6
GR - 5.3

U G - 11.6
G R - 5.4

'

Percent of Students wi th GPA
Less than 2.0

FTIACs - 1 9.1%
UG - 9.3%

FTIACs - 18.0%
UG - 8.8%

Percent of Students with
Course Completion Rate
Below67%

FTIACs - 1 6.1%
U G - 8.0%

FTIAC s - 12.7%
UG-6.6%

,·

Success Metrics
Fall 2011 Cohort 91.1%

Retenti on Rate - Semester-to·
Semester
Retention Rate - Year-to-Year

- ··- � -�

Graduation Rate - 6 -year
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Fall 2010 Cohort 76.1%

Fall 2011 Cohort 75.3%

Fall 2006 Cohort Fall 2005 Cohort 37.2%
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Degree Com.pleliQ.n/Re. tention
('DR.CJ Plan Prop. o s,al
0 Inventory Analysis Final ized
0 Straw Man Proposals - Completed Sept ' 1 3

Next Steps
0 Faculty, Staff, Student I np ut - Oct ' 1 3
0 Final Degree Com pletion/Retention ( D RC) Plan to
EPC - Dec ' 1 3

2

9/16/13

U niversity Advising & Ca reer
Development Center
Ed ucational Pol icies Comm ittee
Board of Regents
October 1, 2013

Three areas of support: Career Coaches, Hands-on Job
Preparation, Corporate Relations
An average of 5, 300 students per year advised 1 : 1 (' 1 1 /' 1 2)
99% satisfaction rate with services
93% job placement rate*
3 1 % used on-campus job fairs, 2 1 % used career planning
services, 2 1 % used resume critique or interview advising* .
*/RIM Alumni Survey 2011

1

9/16/13

Career C.oach.e s
G Focus on Freshmen and Sophomores
0 Clear l i n k between selection of major and
persistence
0 Utilize variety of tools to inventory interests,
personality preferences, values, etc.
Goals: decrease % students undeclared after 60
hours, d ecrease the # UG students remaining
"intents" in competitive 2 nd admit programs after
admission decision.

Hands:�an J�o.b P,reparati.Qo
0
0
0
0
0

Student employment
Part-ti me/summer off-campus jobs
I nternships/cooperative education
Practica , clinicals, field work, student teaching
New i nitiative to tie skills to campus/part-time
j obs
0 Major push with in state for internships

-3,500 students work on campus each year

2

9/16/13

Corporate Relations
0 7-8 job fai rs per year
• 500-600 companies/school districts per year
• -4,000 candidates attend annually

0 On-campus recruiting (year round)
0 Online posti ng system, accessible 24/7
• 3,000-4 ,000 internship and degreed positions posted
each year

0 Email and social media marketing

3

SECTION 15
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October I, 2013

EAS TERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
R ECOMMENDATION

ACA DE MIC YEAR 2014/20 1 5 CA LE NDAR UPDATES
ACTION REQUES TED

It is requested that the Board of Regents approve modifications to the 2014-15 Academic
Calendar.
SUMMARY

The attached revision moves the Fall 20 14 Commencement Ceremony from Sunday, December
21st to Saturday, December 20th. The attached calendar also specifies beginning and end of
term dates for the academic calendar.
FISCAL IMP LICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to these revisions.
AD MINIS TRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The propose� has been reviewed and is recommended for Board aooroval.

Unive �sity Executive Officer

Date

Fall 20 1 4 Full Term Academic Calendar- current
August 30 (Saturday)

Freshman Residence Hall Move-in Day

Aug 30-Sept 2 (Saturday-Tuesday)

Freshman Orientation

November 26 (Wednesday)

No Classes - Iniversity Open

December 1 (Monday)

Classes Resume

August 31-Sept 1 (Sunday-Monday)
September 3 (Wednesday)

Upperclass Residence Hall Move-in Day
Classes Begin

Nov 27- 30 (Thursday-Sunday)

Thanksgiving Recess- University Closed

December 14 (Sunday)

Last Day of Regular Classes

December 21 (Sunday)
December 21 (Sunday)

Close of Fall Semester
Commencement

December 1 5-21 (Monday-Sunday)

Dec 24-Jan 1 (Tuesday-Wednesday)

Final Exams

University Closed

Fall 2014 Full Term Academic Calendar- proposed (changes underlined)

August 30 (Saturday)

August 31-Sept I (Sunday-Monday)

Freshman Residence Hall Move-in Day

Upperclass Residence Hall Move-in Day

Aug 30-Sept 2 (Saturday-Tuesday)

Freshman Orientation

November 26 (Wednesday)

No Classes - Iniversity Open

December 1 (Monday)

Classes Resume

September 3 (Wednesday)

Classes Begin

Nov 27- 30 (Thursday-Sunday)

Thanksgiving Recess- University Closed

December 11 (Thursday)
December 12-18 (Friday-Thursday)
December 18 (Thursday)
December 20 (Saturday)

Dec 24-Jan 1 (Tuesday-Wednesday)

Last Day of Regular Classes
Final Exams

Close of Fall Semester
Commencement
University Closed

Fall 2014 Part of Term 4 Academic Calendar- current

October 22 (Wednesday)

Beginning of Classes

November 26 (Wednesday)

No Classes - Iniversity Open

Nov 27- 30 (Thursday-Sunday)

Thanksgiving Recess- University Closed

December 1 (Monday)

Classes Resume

December 14 (Sunday)

Last Day of Regular Classes
Final Exams for part of term 4 classes will be held
during the last scheduled class section

December 21 (Sunday)
December 21 (Sunday)

Close of Fall Semester
Commencement

Dec 24-Jan 1 (Tuesday-Wednesday)

University Closed

Fall 2014 Part of Term 4 Academic Calendar- proposed {changes underlined)

October 22 (Wednesday)

Beginning of Classes

November 26 (Wednesday)

No Classes - Iniversity Open

Nov 27- 30 (Thursday-Sunday)

Thanksgiving Recess- University Closed

December 1 (Monday)

Classes Resume

December 1 1 (Thursday)

Last Day of Regular Classes
Final Exams for part of term 4 classes will be held
during the last scheduled class section

December 18 (Thursday)
December 20 (Saturday)

Close of Fall Semester
Commencement

Dec 24-Jan 1 (Tuesday-Wednesday)

University Closed

SECTION:
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS
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October 1, 2013

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
RECOMMENDATION

NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAM
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a new Undergraduate Academic Program:
Public Health Major.
SUMMARY
The proposed undergraduate major focuses on issues surrounding health and disease in large
population groups. Public Health majors would be prepared for work in both the public and
private sectors. Public sector positions for graduates cluster in government health departments in
areas such as food and drug safety protection and inspection of production and packaging
facilities, environmental protection, health education programs and policy administration, policy
evaluation and data analysis. When combined with graduate study, public health majors may
find work as clinical researchers, administrators and epidemiologists. Those interested in
working for non-profit groups find jobs in areas such as health advocacy, policy development,
program management, or conducting research for health focused organizations. In the private
sector, graduates seek employers such as pharmaceutical companies (random trials), health
insurance, health promotion, and other related companies.
The proposed major's course work develops competency in areas including: research
methodology (especially statistical techniques), epidemiology, health care systems including
reform proposals, management within the heath care environment (law, financial management,
clinic management, policy analysis), change strategies to enhance health of populations.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None at this time. Program will be funded through the re-allocation of faculty, staff and other
resources. It is proposed by existing faculty and builds on a range of existing courses in the life
and social sciences, health administration and clinical lab administration. It involves the creation
of a limited number of new or exclusive introductory and specialized courses.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed �ion has been reviewed and is recommended for RnMrl �nnrmrnl

Universi\y Executive Officer
Provost and Executive Vice President

Date

SECTION: 1 7
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS

October 1, 2013

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVER SITY
REC OMMENDATION

NEW ACADEMIC PR OGRAM
AC TION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a new Graduate Academic Program:
Masters in Philosophy.
SUlVIMARY
The proposed Master's degree in Philosophy builds on an existing foundation of graduate
coursework in the History and Philosophy department. These courses were created for inclusion
in other EMU Master's degree programs that have been in place for some time including
programs in Women and Gender Studies and Social Sciences. The graduate program builds on
an undergraduate program in philosophy that has grown significantly in the past five years as the
philosophy faculty section developed instructional and research foci in: ethics and social justice
policy, logic and argumentation, food and environmental issues, and media and film. The degree
is interdisciplinary by design with focused course offerings in philosophy and complementary
coursework in cognate areas drawn from existing graduate programs. The program is not
designed to prepare graduates for a specific vocation or profession. However, it is designed to
provide rigorous training and development in skills and competencies that are in increasing
demand from doctoral level graduate and professional schools and employers.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None at this time. Program will be funded initially through the re-allocation of faculty, staff
and other resources.
AD MlL'l'ISTRA TIVE REC OMMENDATION
The proposed Bo.ai:d..action has been reviewed an5! is recommended for Board approval.

Univtrsity Executive Officer
Provost and Executive Vice President

Date

SECTION:
DATE:

BOARD OF REGENTS
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVER SITY
REC OlYJ.MENDATION

October 1, 2013

NEW ACADEMIC PR OGRAM
AC TION RE QUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the creation of a new degree award- the
Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) in Educational Leadership. Upon approval, new graduates of the
doctoral program in Educational Leadership would receive the Ph.D. rather than the current
degree award, the Doctor of Education (Ed.D.) in Educational Leadership.
SUMMARY
EMU's current Ed.D. award requires the successful completion of an original dissertation along
with completion of required preparatory coursework. When the program was originally designed
and approved, the Ed.D. award was the prevailing choice among benchmark and competitive
peer universities. Over time, disciplinary practice has shifted towards the granting of Ph.D
degrees in programs that require the completion of a dissertation, with Ed.D. awards granted
from non-dissertation doctoral programs. The change is degree award keeps EMU practice
consistent with disciplinary benchmarks and competitors in Michigan. The change will more
clearly communicate the work completed by program graduates.
FI SCAL IMPLICATIONS
None at this time. This is a revision to degree award and requires no additional resources.
ADMINISTRATIVE REC OMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Univerf ity Executive Officer
Provost and Executive Vice President

Date

18

SECTION: 19

B O A RD O F REGENTS

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNI VERSITY

DATE:

October I , 20 1 3

RECOMMENDATION

APPOINTMENT OF CHARTER SCH OOL S BOARD ME MBERS
ACTION REQUE STED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents appoint Renee Newman to a three-year term on the
Board of Directors of the Academy For Business and Technology; Julie Hare to a three-year
term on the Board of Directors of the Grand Blanc Academy; and Elizabeth Taylor to a three
year term on the Board of Directors of the Dr. Joseph F. Pollack Academic Center of Excellence.
STAFF SUMMARY
According to the resolutions which establish these public school academies (charter schools),
vacancies on their Boards of Directors shall be filled by the Eastern Michigan University Board
of Regents.

A cademy For Business and Technology

Renee Newman has been the Founder and President of Dyslexia & Dyscalculia Support Services
in Dearborn, Michigan since 1992. She is also the President of RM Newman Communications
in Dearborn, Michigan since 1995. She earned a Bachelors in Arts in Advertising from Michigan
State University in East Lansing, Michigan in 1988. She received a Master of Science degree in
Special Education from LaSalle University in Mandeville, Louisiana in 1999. She received the
Spirit of Detroit Award in 2011. She is a member of Michigan State University Alumni
Association.
Grand Blanc A cademy

Julie Hare is the mother of two students at Grand Blanc Academy. She is very active with a
variety of volunteer activities at this school including: classroom assistant, "Family Math Night"
tutor, "March is Reading Month" tutor and field trip chaperon. She is dedicated to helping all of
the students at Grand Blanc Academy. Julie Hare worked as a Teacher's Assistant at Alpha
Montessori in Flint, Michigan. She received her K- 1 2 education from the Flint School System.
She attended Mott Community College in Flint, Michigan from 1994-1996. Ms. Hare fulfills the
requirement of a parent member of the Grand Blanc Academy school board.

Dr. Joseph F. Pollack Academic Center of Excellence
Elizabeth Taylor has been the Community Relations Specialist for Black Family Development,
Inc. in Detroit, Michigan since the Summer of 2012. She has been the Chair of the Education
Sub-committee in the Mid-Michigan sector of Michigan Leadership Collaborative for Civil and
Human Rights since the Spring of 20 1 2. She has been the Assistant to the Executive Director and
Director of Member Services and Development of the National Association of Social Workers in
Lansing, Michigan since Fall of 201 1 . She earned a Bachelor of Science, Double Major in
Psychology and Family Studies from Central Michigan University in Mt. Pleasant, Michigan in
20 1 0. She received a Master of Social Work with a concentration in Organizational Community
Practice, Graduate Certification in Community Engagement from Michigan State University, in
East Lansing, Michigan in 2012. She is a member of Phi Alpha Honor Society, Phi Beta Delta
International Honor Society, National Association of Social Workers and Division 45 of the
American Psychological Association.
FISCAL IMP LICATIONS

None.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The propose:rl Rruii'rl-.action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Universi y Executive Officer
\

Date

2

Renee M . Newman
E-portfolio: ReneeNewmar1.net
PROFESSIONAL WORK
• Director of Education & Communications • Project Manager • Small Business Owner • Non-Profit Founder
• ED Communications Strategist: Social Media, Cloud Computing, Educational Gaming, Compliance & Reporting
• Leaming Disabilities Specialist: Diagnosis, Remediation, Inclusion, Law, Assistive Technology
Founder / President

Dyslexia & Dyscalculia Support Services - Dyscalculia.org

• math LD & dyslexia expert

• workshops / training

President

RM Newman Communications - RMnewman.com

• school communications

• Web hosting & design

Adult Educator

FocusHOPE! & ACCESS & Henry Ford Comm. College M-TEC

• computer training

• business writing

Communications Director

American Arab Chamber of Commerce - Dearborn, Ml

• E-news, Websites, PR
• Publicity: radio, print, TV

• major event management
• board communications

Special ED Coordinator

Advanced Technology Academy High School - Dearborn, Ml

• case management

• legal compliance & reporting

Data Security Specialist

Memorial Hospital & Healthcare System - Owosso, M l

• HIPAA Project Manager

• HIPAA Security Officer

• research & analysis

Adjunct Faculty

Baker College - Owosso, Ml

Baker.edu

• curriculum development

• CS, CIS, INF, WEB, ENG

• Web Club & Kids' Club

• strategic planning

• E-Learning

• E-Business

• work skills training

• author speeches, articles
• grant writing

• 150 students I semester

Present - 1992
• global reputation
Present - 1995
• writing & editing
2009
• weatherization bt:siness
2006-2005
• da�abase administrator
• supervised i nterns
2005-2003
• computer APPS teacher
2003-2002
• policies & procedures
2002-1999
• taught 19 courses

EDUCATION
2011 Certificate
2009 PD Cert. {20 credits}
1999 MA Degree
1988 BS Degree
1985-1983 (40 credits)
2007 Certifications
2005 Certificates
2004 Trainer Certification
2004 Certificate
2003-2002 Certificates
2001-2000 Certificates
1994-1991 Certificates
1993 Trainer Certificate

Detroit Future Media Workshops: Education Media
Detroit, Ml
Distance Education: Univ. of Wisconsin - School of Education
Madison, WI
Master of Science: Special Education - LaSalle University, LA
Suma Cum Laude
Bachelor of Arts: Advertising - Michigan State University CCAS
E. Lansing, Ml
University of Wisconsin: Integrated Liberal Studies Program
Madison, WI
Diagnostician & Therapist - Dysl',!xia Institutes of America
Champaign, IL
Michigan Special ED Compliance & MIS Reportin g - W-RESA
Wayne, M l
Ford Motor Co. Partnership for Advanced Studies
A n n Arbor, M l
Board Governance & Leadership - Natl. Charter Schools I nstitute
M t . Pleasant, Ml
HIPAA Privacy & Security Regulations; IT Enterprise Security
Cross Country University
Special Education Law; Michigan ED Rules; IEP Writing; FERPA;
Assistive Technology
Orton-Gillingham Language Therapist; K-8 Math Instr. for Dyslexics Michigan Dyslexia Institute
Project Success for Dyslexic College Students - Univ. of Wisconsin
Oshkosh, WI

COMMUNITY SERVICE

• PTSA • Boy Scouts • Band & Sports Boosters • Neighborhood Assoc. • Church • Schools

10 1 2 Resume & Portfolio of Rene� M. Hamtlton-t\�,.,.-rnan
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Resume Et Portfolio
of
Renee M. ��ewrnan

HIGHLIGHTS

EXPERIENCE

cdi;cation consultant: ed tech, clou.: cc111putmg, leen,ng d1;11brnt1es, asslst,ve :echnotogy, special
ed.icat1011. Leacer rn t�chnology, education and 'Neb comrnurications . Prcfess10nol �.r, trainer,
instructional desig11er. Non-profit crganization founder, gr,rnt " - t<:!r, chamber of com:ne;ce
:omnunic3tions cirector, high school soe�lal educaticn ccordi:1ator, 11osi::1tal niPAA Security Officer ar.o
H:PAA Project Manager, ISP co-founder anc executi',•e board rrcmber, charte: ;cl'ool executive bo2rd
member. B.A . in /ldvert:sing. M.S. in Special Ed..1cation. Distance Education Cert from UoiW!- ·'1adison.
Detroit Future Media fo, Education gr2:. Professional K-12 and col'ege lns:ructor: spe:ial educa:ion,
softv.a,e, !nterr-e:/CIS, Web prograr:1ming, remedial English ard math. Business marketing, strategic
planninq, operations efficiency, and development.

1992-Presen�.
Founder I
Director

1995-Prcsenl
Owr:er

·1994-Present
Administrator

2009
Instructor
·Job Skills

2009
lr.StriJCtor.
'Neatnerization
�loyment
Skill�

812005-712006
Commun•cat:ons
Director

Dysc?.lculia.orQ

De'1rtorn, Michi;pn

Michigan nonprofit organization with a global reputation. Prc)'lid"' prr,f�ss'cnal tra l n i na, LD
diagnosis, ed planning, networking, support, remediation and cons.ilting. Certified Orton
GiPingham practitioner. Spedal education law and prncess. Provide research, resources,
pcblications, advocacy arid publicity for specific learning disabilities: dyslexia, oyscalculia,
':1y5qraphia, and ADD/ ADH D.
R. M. Newman Comrn1.1r, ications

Dearbort1, Michigan

Education communication and tec!1no!ogy services : cloud comput.ng for schools, teachers and
students; instructiot1 & program design; teaching P, lea, ni11y t!:ch; green in1t:Jat1ves. Internet
services: websites, progr?.mrning, e-commerce, hosting, social media, anj site management. E
Business services: research, strategic planning, writing, editing, advertising, marketing, PR,
communications and project management. Clients: Dearb_Qffi School ,, Detroit Sc:hoois, ACCESS,
FocusHQ�, Enaineering Society Detroit, Mec�o He3lthcare, ov�lexia Institutes, Dearborn Cha�c.
Aviatior. 51;!:> 1 American A:-?.b Chamber, City o f Detrcit, Deuborn Soccer <;;!J.!.Q, ATA, fill, CTu,1 , St_
Alphonsus, Fordson Hioh, PTSA, Profe_ssional Educ�tlon Services GroL:o (2008/9).
Michigan S�ace Construction Co.

Dearborn, Mir.higan

Business oF.ice administra�ion, bookkeeping, tax planning, legal ompliance, marketing, website,
strategic planning, forms, contracts, estimates, proposals, invoices, training manuals,
communications. Procure equipment, materials, labor and subcontractors.
ACCESS - Arab Community Center for Economic &. Social Services

Dearborn, Michigan

Provided Job skills training to SEMCA JET clients at M-TEC: resumes, cover letters, Job search and
placement assistance, interviews, dress for success, Dale Carnige trai ning, elevator ;peech,
employment-related coorespondence, No Werk.er Left Behind or"entaticn.
Foc�s: HOP�J.
Provided employment skills training to Weatr,erizaticn stude!"1ts: cor.:;: W"'.iltherizat1on skii!-2,
portfolios, resumes, cover letters, coorespor.dence, job search plan, targeting employers,
resea r::h, interview plan, networking, Davis-Bacon wage ru!es, employee vs. subcontractor,
cus;omer service, professional development, government weatherizatic,r. programs, field guidance
and legal complia:,ce, entrepreneur basics, building codes & ind!JS�ry resources. Google Earth,
[nternet basics.
American Arah Chamber of (OfT?.rnerc_st

Dearborn, Michigan

MaJor event p:annlr.g: Arab international Festival, a,tended by 3:JQ,.Q.QQ; Annual Banqt.et, 1,000;
dign itary lurcheon. 500; AAPN A�ia,ds D,nner, 500; Comrnunit'/ Meetings, 70; Board Meetings,

http://reneenewman.nell
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30. Handled radio, TV, and print publicity; marketing and pubilc relations; grant writing, speech
a'ld article writing, r. onthly newspaper ard weekly e-newsletter publication; intraoffice ano
interoffice commLnications; Weblink database administration; soft.,,,are. hardware; board minutes
and packets; and i r. tranet and Ir.terr.et sites.
7/201H·81 2005
Special Education
Coord:r.atcr I
CIS Faculty

Dearburn, .V,;ch ·gan

!ldvarce(! Technotcg'1 Ac.�cemy Higb Sch-X'l

Served as Special Education Coordinator wrth focus on inclusion, assis:tive �echnoiogy,
dOC!JIT'entac:on, 2nd SPED law compliance. Taught c::;urses ::iver:ng cornpure� hardware and
software, keyboarding, Internet, HTML, JavaScript, Java, DHTML, XML, and Microsoft Office
applications: Ex,:;el, Access, Word, 0ower Point, Publisher, and Front Page. Led Teacher Trai0ir.g
Wnrls__c;noo on Instructional Technology.

�.rnr:.m,;.lli� -

7 l2002·6t2GC3
Dat3 Security
Specialist i
Hl?AA 5-;!,.;ur\ty
Oificer

1 999 -2003
Aciunct F.;cul.;.:L

1 995-2001
Substitute
Teacher

FORMAL EDUCATIOM
20C9·2012

Responsible for cor;orare compll,mce ,vith Health Insurance Portability and AcccuntaJiilty Act
( HIPAA). Organized HlPAA transaction, privacy, and secmty committees and created/;nanaged
H I P.A.,\ croject plan and documentation Re·,iewed/altered/wrote policies, procedures and
presentations. erected and maintaine::l online HIPAA resources for committee members and
physicians. Created Internet and 1ntrar.et pages for a Physician's Por�al, prescription refills, privacy
survey, patient registration, OccL.pationai Medicine, & gift shop flower orders. Eanied Most Wired
Awad. Reported to tre Chief informa�i::>n Oi'icer.
Baker Colleqe

Founded the Vleb Design Club, giving st•J den�s paid commerc11:I experiences. Cla sses taught: !nfo
Systems Theory, Introduction to the World Wide Web, WWW Des:gn, HTML, Dynamic HTML, CG!
Programming in C and Perl, XML, Java, JavaScript ing, E-commerce, MS Excel, M S Access, MS
Word, rv:s FrontPage, MS Advanced Software Solutions, Re3ding & Study Skills, Math Lab, ilnd
Kids' Computer Club. Consult on learning disabilities, internships, and professional and curriculum
development.
Shiawassee Re(lional EdtJcation Service District

U1�iver;itv of Wiscor.sin·Sctcool of Ecucti<Jn.i Profess;onal Certif'cate-Di5tance Education
Mi\disor
�01 .L4 CEUs (20 Credits) Mobile Learnirul & Project Management in DISTED
LaSalle University
M aster of Science. Soec'al Educatiofl

1988

Mich;gan Sta ,e Universilv
Bachelor of Arts in �dv,:,rt1sina. Am. Jlc1v. FP,J .

1983

CERTiFICATtS
2011

Corunna, Michigan

Filled in for absent teact1ers ir. all preschool, elementary, m1cdle s.:hool and high school regiilar
and special education ciassroorns. Specialties: English, Composition, Spelling, Reading, Special
Education, Computers, Business, and French.

1 999

1983·1985

Owosso, Michigan

Summa Cum Laude

Mandeville, Louisiana
Official Transcript

East Laming
Tr'lnscrlpt. lnternship: Metro. 0(;troit Magazine

University of Wisconsin
Early admission as H. S. Junior.
Fuli schol3rshio.
lntegnted Liberal Studies PrOQram

Advanced olacement.

Madison
,Y,ajor; Pre·law
omcial Transcript

St. A!phonsus High School
O'!aroorr., .'-/,ichigan
0ioloma. 4 years of French, Swim Team, Hor.ors Program, Michigan Comoet1live Scholarshin.
Dual enrollment in Yhyr.e Cot.ntv Corr.mur'i1'1 Colle2e and Bre1thauot Technical.

Cer':ificat�
Detroit, M1cl'igan
'.Jet.r')it Fe1ture M-=dia Wor·��hoos
Web Clas> (120 hours clcss time) • Educat:on T,ac�.: Use of Internet media and tei:linalogy to advance ,1ecess
to tools and skills for commt;;-nty 1)r3ani2ing, communicacior., education, personal and 3rnup empowerrner.t
and social jt.s,ice. Fows on OpenSot1rce, social media, digital jvstice, instructional design, a1;dio, video,
�r�phics <?nd Internet techr.ology. Detr-)it F·1'.ure Me,:;ia Confererce 2C 1 1 BLOG, Giirouo, Tools, �11 5h,�.

http://reneenewman.ne'c.'
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20Cd

Global Compliance Network
Pcrtland, M1chiga:1
Substituce Teaching Bloodt>orne Pal.hocie:-:s. F->.de, al & StacE' Cle,s.-oori Laws. Sexua:. h3ras,me11t. FEP.?A.
Hazard Comrnunica�'ons.

20C7

i)yslexia lnsti:u�es of America
Mat·J on, lll1ncis
i
D I A Certif ed Therciriist. DIA Certified D1acnost1cia n . Tests certified to adrrinister: i;;:_u!ture Fa r lQ,
KTEA· II, Dvslex•a Ea riv Screen:nq T�st. Pre< lvslel<'ie Coc,na Test. Dvsle�,;i_Qetem1inaii on Test,
Q:t.sle.,:1a Screener for First Graders..,, Adult Dvs!exia Test , V M [ (Visual-M otor), �&u a l Perceotion,
V·/oodc'.'lck-Johns01, Lea�ning Effec;�r,-::v Te� Visual .''.\ ur;1I D,rnt Soar., CTOPf, GORT, TVA�, ?PA.

20G-1

Ford Motor Co. P2rtnershio for Advdnced Studies
Dearborn, Michigan
Program Tra iner Ce;tific2te. Ma:h & Sc,en:e: M 7 - Planr.·ng For Business Succe5s, M8-Ersuring
Qua!,ty, M9-Frcm Data to Knowledge. Technolo,:iy: M l O· Re·,erse Engineering, M l l-Differen� by
Design, M 1 2-Energy for Future. Workshops: Business Collaboration, Svsiness/Educat1on Advisory
Council, ArcView GlS, and Pro/DESKTO?.

:OC4

Mational Charte, School; Institute
.V.t. Pleasant, Mi<:l1igan
Board Governance & Le�dership Training: Charter Schools Overview, New Board Member
Orientation, Roles and Functions of the School Board, Parliamentary Procedure, the O rganizational
Meeting, Effective Board Meetings, Liability Issues, Freedom of Inforrna�ion Act, Open Meetings
Act, Conflicts of Interest, Decision-Making and Conflict Resolution, Board Assessment,
Admin istrator Assc!ssrnent, Budget Process and Planning, Strategic Planning, and the! Educational
Serv:ce Provider Relationship.

2003

TechP.epublic
tc!Chrepublic.com
IT Security S u rvival : Risk A5sessment & Prevention, Admin i s�rative Security, Securing the
Collaborative Workspace, Securing Windows Networks, !IS Secunty, User Support end Education.

2003

Grai'ld Rapids, M:c�i5an
Lorman Education
H IPAA (Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act of 1996) Security [ssues in Michigan:
H IPAA, Security Technotogy, Definit;ons & General Rules, Admini strative/Technical/Prysical
Safeguards, Privacy-Security Overlap, Organizing the Security Project.

2C02

(r')55 Country University
H rn;�A: Flnai HHS Pri,,.icy Reoula;ions & State Medical Records Law.

2002

inteii1aticnat Center for Leadei-shj0 in EducaJion

Tl1e Future of Education- Instructional Technology

Over!and Parl<. K<1nsas
Rl!xforJ, New York

2001

lv\ici1igan's Assistive TecllnoloQ.::,, Resource
St. Johns, Michigln
Assistive Technology Training: Legal overview, Sectio:i 504 & ADA, Assistive Technology Act,
Organizational Policies & AT, AT & IEPs, AT & Tech 2000, AT & IDEA Reauthorization, Integrating
AT i nto the Standard Curriculum, AT Process, Guidelines for Assessment, Wayne County AT
Guidelines, Instructional Accommodations & Classroom Modifications.

1994-2000

Michi�a;, Protecton a Advoocv Se:vtce
U•1or.ia, Michigan
Certificates : Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 1997, Inclusion Group Action Planning,
Special Education Advocacy Training, Outcomes Training Projecc · Special Education, Partners In
Care: Coll aboration as Systems Cha'1ge.

199]

University of \'foco;1sin
Proiec::t Success for Dyslexic College Stucents.

1991 - 1 994

Oshkosh
Professo r : Dr. Robert T. Mash

,\l,ichigan Dvslezia lnmtute
Lansing
Certificates: Advanced Linguistics· Orton-Gillingham Affix Training; Hands-On Math Training for K·
8 Teachers : MEAP Objectives, A:gebra ; and The O.r:on ·Giliinah:irn Method. Lingu,st;c Tra1nina for
Ieacho;f.2..QLQY.sleli:s. Student teachrng : M D I and Flint Public Schools

COMMUNITY SERVICE
201 \
Web Ser.,ices

Detroit. F•Jture Jv,,ed;a
Detroit, Michigan
Provide marketing a n d websites for cornmunity organizations: Hubbard Fa;ms N,eigt>t:orhooc1
Associatio n ; The H�h House; Q.�tro1t Youth Green Ec:orioCJ;v Summit..

2008-Pn,sen�
S!P, PTSA, Booster

P3renc Teach?.r Student Assoc;a�:011 & Fordson Scheat Improvement Team
Fcrdson Hi3h School Ban<:i Boo1ter President

http ://renee newman. net/

Forr.l5on High School
Dearborn, 1.;ichig3n

5/28/20 1 3

:w l 2 Resume & Portfolio of Renee :d . H:unilton-Ne\\Tnan
2005·Pr,see1t

,'.!cCLl\:-it,!Ib,·Unis School Parent Te3cher Student A5,oc1>.tion

2.tlCc,-=>resent

Historic Aviation Propert.y Owrers· /lssoci3,'0i:!
Executive board member.

i'lebmaster
2004
Goverr.'ng
B1Jard
Mcrr, :ler

2004
Vice Pres1dcm
1995·200?.
Executive Boa,c,
Board Secretary,
,\\arketing
Comrr-,ittee

AWARDS

ME,V,BERSHiPS

Page 4 of-\

Deurborn, .\·\ "ch iga11
Dearborn, ,\\icl1i�an

Advance,1 Technologv Academy H:gh Sci>ool
Dearborn, M•chigan
Responsible to maintain organizat10·1's mission, 01,;rpo5e a id strategic plans; monitor
organizat:on · s performance; ensure compliance witl1 Charter contract, curriculum standards and
federal and state la•11s; prov:de vision and d1rect:on; crea:e/acopt board pol' cy ; hire an:l evaluate
competent leadersr11p; and develop, adopt and monitor rhe budget. Created !nternet Board Portal
as a virtual work space and document a;chive, and a Pa�ent Advisory GroLp Web Portal 2006
£!.g_gue.
A.:aoern't ('Jr t,11:;ines:-: a:1<1 TE:c�hnoloq'{ �lemi:?•;ic:r·,
Dearborn, Michigan
Parent lrwolvement Committee, VP and Histonan. Created school website to showcase the sc.hool,
staff, programs, achievements and stud�nt portfolios.
ShiaNet Communitv Network
Ov>'osso, MlCnigan
Co-founder, ShiaNet.org, Internet Service Provider and department of the Ov.csso-Corunna Area
Chamber of Commerce (US Cr.amber 5-Star Accredited) . Sh,aNet was c,eated to bring toll·free
lnte,net service to rural Shiawassee County's 70,000 residents. Roles in ma,ket research, strategic
planning, fundraising and business and education partnerships. When ShiaNet had 6,000+
customers, we sold to Earthlink.

201 1 Spirit of Detroit 1
2011 Soirit of Detroit 2
201 1 Detroit Future Media
2010 Fordson HiP.h School
200'3 University of \'i isconsin

2007 Dyslexia lnsti�utes of A1-;-,erjca 1
2007 Dvslexia ln;titut-es oi Arr.erica 2
2006 Adva1,ce,j_ Techno\o5y Acader.w
2004 f!,tior.al C.!'larter Schools Institute
2004 Ford PJrtr.ershjQ_for Adv?.11Ced Stud i es

2002 Cross (O_ld.Ql!:i...Y.!:i�Ii!Il.
1999 La5alla Universitv
1 992 Micr.igan Dystex:a Institute
1988 Michi1:?an St;,te University
1933 St. A!phonsus Hi?,h Scl1ooi

Mic.h,gan State Ur.ivcrs1t/ Alumni ,1\�u-clatlon; Univt!rsitv er \Viscons1r.·;\�<1d1�cn {1V,otcr C itv aod2er5) Alu1nni
Association; St. Alphc;n�us Alumni As;ociaticn; Sc. Alphonsus Chur:h; Gro��e YJ(ht;_�lub; Detroit Scierce
.
Cent�; Detroit Hisrorical Societ •t: Friends of Belie Isle; !,istoric Aviat1on Propertv Owners' Association;
Michigan A;socia,ion of Comp<Jter U�er, in Learning; �cluToD:a; Michi�an PubllC Radio; Edu20.org; Bov Scouts oi
Ame�ica; Detroit lnstit1Jte of Arts; 1,1ichiga'l PTSA; Oearnorn Chamber of Commerce; Fria�,ds of De�rborn
Library; Lear.1ing AHy; Fordson High Band Boost�rs; Dearborn Soccer Club; Detroit P•Jblic Television.

http://reneenewman.neU
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J U LI E l. HARE

EDUCATION :

09/89-06/94

Northwester High School

WORK EXPERIENCE:

04/02-08/06

Alpha M ontessori/Teacher's Assista nt

Hobbies:

09/94-04/96
06-Present

Mott Comm u nity College
Stay Home Mom.

Painti ng, Exercising, Crafting, Being involved with my children.

Elizabeth 0 . Taylor

EDUCATION
Master of Social \'fork

Concmtratioli: Orga,..izatior:a! Comm!lni'.) Pr,xt:c-e
Graduate Certifi,atio11 in Communi(), Engagement. Spring 2012
1

tvlichigan State University, East Lansing, MI

:\ fay 2010

Bachelor of Science

Double Majo1: Ayd10/ogy, Fami!J Stu:!ies

Cencral l\!uchigan University, [\.fount Pleasant, ti. II
J O B RELATED SKILLS
Group Facilitation
• Community Outreach
Needs Assessment

• Program Development/Evaluation
• Research-Data collection
• Public Speaking/ Presentation

• Straregic Planning
• Proposal \'\:'ricing
•Policy Analysis

C0�1MUNITY OUTREACH At'JD ENGAGEMENT
Black Family D evelopment, Inc.

S11mmer 20 12-Prmnt

Commrmiry Relations 5,beciaiist

Decroit, rvIT
• Provide community ouc:each and engagement to Promise Neighborhood residents and leaders of institutions
located in the Detroit, Osborn community. Organize comnrnnity events to promote capacity building,
advocacy, empowerment, and community engagement. Distribute resources and surveys to residents to
promote and assist residents in block club development.
Michigan Leadership Collaborative for Civil and Human Rights

Chair of the Education Sub-committee i11 the Mid-Michigan secto1;

Spring 2012-Present

lvfichigan Department o f Civil Rights, Lansing, NIT
• Collaborate ·with stakeholders throughout :tvlichigan to develop a strategic plan to improve the state of
Nuchigan by addressing issues \vithin education, immigration, and discrimination.
National Association of Social Workers

Ajsfrtant to the Exemtive Director and Director of Member Services and Devdopment

Fall 201 1 -Present

National Association of Social Workers, Lansing, tvIT
• Particip ate in development of community partnerships and coalitions, program planning, development,
policy analysis, legislative development, outreach, advocacy initiative and other related tasks to advocacy and
social justice. Assisted with the development of the Prisoner-Family Support pilot program, to decrease
recidivism races among 1vt:ichigan prisoners.
Clinton Eaton Ingham Community M ental Health-Wraparound

Fa/1 201 0-Spring 2010

PaciJitator

Wraparound, Lansing, 1'.IT
• Facilitated team meetings \vith various service prm-iders to assist families in need through a System of Ca.re
a pproach. Duties include case management, p roviding community resources and services to clients, strength
based planning \vith the child-family team, and p roduction of progress notes.
GEAR UP/ College Day
GEAR UP/ College Day, Central Ivuchigan University, .\fount Pleasant, i\II

Spring 2010

Elizabeth 0. Taylor

•

2

Assisted the program director ir1 meeting program goals of mocinting minority high school students from
Flint, ?vuchigan to pursue higher educarion. Duties include organizing, program planning, mentoring
students. conducting outreach and engagement actiYities, and other related duties.

INTERNATIONAL EXPERIENCE
Ghana, Africa
Summer 20 1 1
• Participated in a four week foreign studies expl'rience focused on social denlopmen t, including aspects :.>f
public health, and cducarjon. Volunteered ,vith Gban;ijan youth ii1 Chokor, Ghana, at a non-profit
organization calied Brothers and Sisters in Christ Serving (B.A.S.I.C.S.). De,-eloped a !T'4'lnual ,vh.ich assists
in the identification of learning rusabilicies, ho,v to address learrung abilities, and mater:ial on phonecic5 co
assist with learning English.
Oaxaca, r-..Iexico

l>ztm:aiiona! Engagement Reflection leader
•

.
Spnng 201 1

Volunteered at a non -profit organization named Caruca, ,vhich focuses on decreasi:1g child labor ch.rough
encouraging parents to enroll their children to attend school.
Led daily reflection activities to assisL a group of students from .\lichigan Srate Criversity in reflecting on
their experience throughout a:1 international engagement service learrung project in Oaxaca, l\lexico.

RESEARCH Al'JD PRESENTATION EXPERIENCE
Inaugural Conference of the Society for the Psychological Study of Ethnic
Summer 20 10
Minority Issues, iunerican Psychological Associat:ion-Division 45, Ann Arbor, t.,[I
Orally presented research on The Road Bet\-,1eeo Science and Practice: Preliminaq Attempts to Infuse
S cience into a Conununity-based Prejudice Prevention and Progr:1.m
Ronald E. McNair Research Scholar, Cenrral 1uch.igan Uruversity

Evah1<1ti11g a 1vfodelfo r Communi!J Engagement and Intergroup-relations in Cu!tura!!J-direrse Youth

•

Sprir,g 2009- Spn·ng 20 1 0

Designed surveys and analyzed data to evaluate a diversity a\vareness youth program, A>!}town. Used
s tructural equation model.i.n.g to explain individual effects in ruverse youth who attended this program to
explain the program's effectiveness.

McNair Spring Research Symposium, Fall 2009, Spring 2009

Orally presented a research proposal and results on Evaluating a Model for Community
Engagement :md Intergroup-relations In Culturally-ciiYerse Youth to 50 professionals and
researchers.
M,Nair Summer Research Corfmnce, \'(!ayne State Uruversity, Detroit, rvIT, Summer 2009
o Orally presented a research prnposal and results on Evaluating a iYiodel for Commun.icy
Engagemen t and Intergroup-relations In Culturally-diverse Youth to 35 faculty and s tudent
scholars.
Research Assistant, Central 1vfich.igan University
Spn'ng 2008
o

The E.lfectJ· of60HDA Lesions on Discrimination Learning Tasks
•

,,ill

Examined cognitive deficits of Parkinson's, such as good memory and executive functions that occur m che
help to determine insufficiencies prior to motor symptoms being present.
bra.in. ,\nalysis of deficics

ADDITIONAL EMPLOThIENT/ ASSISTANTSHIPS
Graduate Assis tantship, J:,,fich.igan Seate Cniversity, East Lansing, i\H
Sales Associate, Kohl's, i\fount Pleasant, MI
Teaching Assistant, Central Michigan Uruversity, Mount Pleasant, i\[1

Fa!l 2010-Preseni
S11mmer 200 7-S11mmer 2010
Summer 2009

Elizabeth 0 . Taylor

3

SCH OLARSHIP A\v'ARDS

•
•

Community Ourre;ich and Engagement Schobrsh.ip
c-,'[SUFCU Endowment Srudy .-\broad Scholarship
,-\ cadem.ic .-\ch.ievement Graduate i\ssLStJ.ntship

Fall 201 1
Spn11g 20 1 1
fall 20 f0-Pres,1:t

ASS O CIAT IONS

•
•
•
•
•
•

Phi Alpha Honor Society
Phi Beta Delta International Honor Society
National r\ssociacion of Social Workers
D ivision 4S of the .,\meric:m Psychological Association
Ronald E. i\kNai.r Post-baccalaureate .'\ch.ienment Program
Multicultural P,ycbology Student Society, President 2008-2009
National ,-\ssociaci.on for the Adnnccment of Colored People

Fall 20 f f -Pme!!t
Fall :!01 !-Present
Fall 201 1-Pment
Spn·ng20 1 1 -Present
Springl009- Spring 20/0
Spring 2008-Sp1i11g 2010
Fa!! 2007-Spn.ng 2010

BOARD OF REGENTS

EASTERN M I CHIGAN UNIVERSITY

SECTION: 20
DATE:
October I , 2 01 3

RECOMMENDATION
FINANCE AND INVE STMENT COMMITTEE
ACTION REQUE STED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the minutes from the June
1 8, 2 0 1 3 Finance and Investment Committee meeting and the Working Agenda for the October
1 , 20 1 3 meeting.
STAFF SUMMARY
June 1 8. 20 1 3
Agenda items discussed at the June 1 8, 2 0 1 3 Finance and Investment Committee meeting
included a financial update and the committee reviewed recommendations to the Board for:
• Fiscal Year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 Tuition Fees
• Fiscal Year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 General Fund Operating Budget
• Fiscal Year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 Auxiliary Activities Operating Budgets
• Fiscal Year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 Capital Budget Recommendation and Three-Year Capital Plan
October 1 . 20 1 3 Meeting Agenda
Agenda items include the following recommendations
•
•
•
•

June 30, 20 1 3 Financial Statements and Audit recommendation
Fiscal Year 20 1 4- 1 5 Financial Aid Authorization Recommendation
Fiscal Year 2014- 1 5 State Capital Outlay Recommendation
Emeritus Staff Awards

F I SCAL IMPLICATIONS
None
ADMINISTRATIVE R ECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Urove�sity �xecutive Officer

Date

Eastern M ichigan University
Finance and Investment Committee
Meeting M inutes
June 1 8, 2013
The meeting was called to order by Regent Mary Treder Lang at 1 1 :30 a.m.
Section 20:

Recommendation: Monthly Reports - Finance and Investment
Committee, Information Reports and Financial Updates

A motion was made, seconded and approved to accept the minutes from the April 1 6, 2 0 1 3 Finance and
Investment Committee meeting.
The agenda includes 4 items pertaining to the Fiscal Year 20 1 3- 1 4 budget.
Section 2 1 :

Recommendation: Fiscal Year 2013-14 Tuition and Fees

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a 3. 7 5% increase in tuition and fees for the 20 1 3 - 1 4
academic year. This recommendation builds upon Eastern's commitment to provide students a high
quality education at an affordable price. Eastern continues to be the State's leader in tuition restraint.
With this recommendation, Eastern will have had the lowest dollar tuition increase over the last 5 years of
any of the 1 5 public universities in the State. Eastern's tuition increases will have averaged 3 . 0% over the
same 5-year timeframe.
For an Undergraduate Michigan resident student taking 30 credits, the annual cost for tu1t1011 and
mandatory fees would be $9,364, a 3 .75% increase over last year. This equates to an increase of $ 1 1 .27
per credit hour.
Section 22:

Recommendation: Fiscal Year 2013-14 General Fund Operating Budget

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a University General Fund operating budget of
$296.4 million for the 20 13-14 fiscal year.
Recommended revenues include $2 1 8.4 million of tuition and fees, a $67.6 mill ion state appropriation
($66.5 million base appropriation and $ 1 . 1 million in one-time funding), and $ l 0.4 million of other
revenues. The revenue budget reflects the tuition and fee recommendations contained in Section 2 1 .
The recommended expenditure budget includes $39.2 million in University-sponsored financial aid, an
increase of $3.8 million ( 1 1 %) compared with the fiscal year 2 0 1 2 - 1 3 budget. Over the last six years,
Eastern's University-sponsored financial aid will have grown by over 80% from $2 1 .4 million in 20072008 to $39.2 million in 201 3-20 14. The recommended budget also reflects $2.2 million in funding for
new academic programs and Strategic Plan initiatives to support continued enrollment growth including
Eastern's new Physician's Assistant Program planned for launch in May 2 0 1 4 .
Section 23:

Recommendation: Fiscal Year 2013-14 Auxiliary Activities Operating Budgets

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve fiscal year 201 3-2 0 1 4 Auxiliary Activities
operating budgets totaling $44.4 million which reflects increased housing occupancy for Fall 2 0 1 3 . It is
expected that the number of students living on campus this Fall in residence halls and university-owned

apartments will increase by 9% to approximately 4, I 00, representing the third consecutive year of
increase. This Fall, 800 more students (24%) will be living on campus than in the Fall of20 I 0. The
expenditure operating budget is recommended at $40.9 million leaving $3.5 million for operating surplus
which provides funding for the asset preservation and capital investment in our auxiliary facilities.
In the last five years we have invested more than $22 million in our housing facilities and are working on
Best Hall now and Wise Hall next. We are working with a consulting firm to look at housing demands in
the future and potential alternatives to address the demand.
Section 24:

Recommendation: FY 2013-14 Capital Budget Reco m mendation and Three-Year
Capital Plan

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve a fiscal year 2 0 1 3 - 1 4 University Capital budget of
$9.2 million. It is also recommended that the Board receive and place on file the three year capital plan
for the fiscal years 20 1 3 - 1 4 through 2 0 1 5-16.
The five years from fiscal year 2008-09 through 20 1 2 - 1 3 represented a period of unprecedented capital
investment at Eastern. Over the period, capital spending totaled $220 million. Two-thirds of the spending
( $ 1 46 million) was invested in academic facility enhancements, l 0% ($22 million) in housing and dining
facility renovations and improvements, with the balance ($23% or $52 million) invested in campus
infrastructure (buildings, grounds, parking, roadway improvements), IT infrastructure and campus
technology, and other student and athletic facilities.
Over the next three years, capital spending of $26.4 million is planned. In addition to ongoing
investments in technology and academic buildings which represent over half of the spending ($1 4.2
million), $5.2 million in investment is p lanned for housing, dining and student facility renovations with
Wise Hall the next residence hall to undergo a major renovation.

It is recommended that the Board of Regents grant Emeritus Staff Status to two (2) staff
members: Barbara Gorenflo, Assistant Dean for Field and Clinical Experiences, Office of
Academic Services in the College of Education, who retired on April 30, 2 0 1 3 after 23 years;
and Patricia McLean, Account Clerk in Accounts Payable in Business and Finance, who retired
after 32 years on November 3 0, 2 0 1 2 .
John Lumm recognized Cathie McClure, Recording Secretary for the Finance and Lnvestment
Committee, for her 2 2 years of service to the University at her last Board meeting before
retiring on June 2 8 .
The meeting was adjourned a t I I :49 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Cathie McClure
Executive Assistant to the
Chief Financial Officer

BOARD O F R E G E NTS
E a s t e r n M i c h i g a n U n i v e r s i ty
2 0 1 \,V e l c h H a l l
(734) 48 7-24 1 0

FINANCE and INVESTMENT COMM ITTE E
Tuesday, October 1 , 20 1 3
1 1 : 3 0 a.m.

REGULAR AG ENDA
• Minutes from June 1 8, 2 0 1 3
• October 1 , 20 1 3 Finance and Investment Committee Agenda
o June 3 0, 2 0 1 3 Financial Statements and Audit Recommendation
o Fiscal Year 20 1 4- 1 5 F inancial Aid Authorization Recommendation
o Fiscal Year 20 1 4- 1 5 State Capital Outlay Recommendation
o Emeritus Staff Awards

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S TE R N MICH I G A N U N I V E R S ITY

SEC TION: 2 1
D A TE:

October 1, 2 0 1 3

RECOMMENDA TION
CONSOLI D A TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION A S OF JUNE 30, 2013
AC TION REQUE STED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents receive and place on file the University's audited
fiscal year 2012- 1 3 financial statements and auditor's repo1i.
STAFF SUMMARY

The Financial Statements and Supplementary Information as of June 30, 20 1 3 together with the
Auditor's report are attached. Plante & Moran has issued its opinion indicating that the
statements present fairly, and in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for Eastern and the Foundation.
Financial Statement highlights include:
• Total Net Position at June 30, 2 0 1 3 of $237.4 million including $200. 1 million in Capital
Assets (net of debt), $ 1 2.6 million in Restricted-Expendable Net Assets, and $24.7 million in
Umestricted Net Assets. Total Assets at June 30, 2 0 1 3 of $565 . 1 million and Liabilities of
$327.7 million.
• An increase in Net Position for the year ending June 30, 2 0 1 3 of $ 1 4.9 million primarily
reflecting an increase in the fair value of Eastern's interest rate swap agreements (non-cash,
accounting adjustment)
• Umestricted and Restricted-Expendable Net Assets of $37.4 million at June 30, 20 1 3 , an
increase of $0.6 million compared with June 30, 20 1 2 .
During their audit, Plante & Moran did not identify any significant deficiencies o r material
weaknesses related to the University's controls, accounting practices, accounting estimates, or
financial statement disclosures.
Representatives of Plante & Moran will be attending the Board's Finance and Investment
Committee meeting to present a smmnary of the results of their audit including benchmark
comparisons with other universities and to discuss any comments or questions the Board may
have regarding the financial statements or audit.
FISCAL IM PLICA TIONS

None

ADMINISTR ATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board aooroval.
..

Univj1"SI\V Executive utncer

Date
C:\Documents and Selli ngs�lummVv1y Oocumenls\Oct 201 3 BOR - Audi ted Fi nancials Resolution.doc
23-Sep-13 ste
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Independent Auditor's · eport

To the Board of Regents
Eastern Michigan University
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eastern Michigan University, a component
unit of the State of Michigan ("the University"), and its discretely presented component unit as of and for
the years ended June 30, 20 1 3 and 201 2, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Eastern Michigan University's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
M anagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i n the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
The discretely presented component unit was not audited under Government Auditing Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether clue to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Eastern Michigan University as of June 30, 20 1 3 and 201 2 and its
discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 201 3 and 20 1 2 and the respective changes in net
position for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 1 and S to the basic financial statements, effective July 1 , 2012, the University
adopted new accounting guidance under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 6 1 , The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. Statement No. 6 1 is an amendment to Statement 1 4
and Statement 34, modifying certain requirements for inclusion of component units i n the financial
reporting entity. The University also adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred

I

§t!,

Outflows of Resow�ef
of Resou,:es, and Qosition :� G� Statement No. 65,
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These statements introduce and define those
elements as a consumption of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period,
and an acquisition of net asset by the University that is applicable to a future rep01ting period,
respectively. The standards also incorporate defen-ed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources, as defined by GASB Concepts Statement No. 4, into the definitions of the required components
of the residual measure of net position, formerly net assets. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
these matters.
Other Matters
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion & Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a pa1t of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Eastern Michigan University's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Net Assets by Fund
Group and Revenues, Expenses, and Changes i n Net Assets by Fund is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures i n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted i n
the United States o f America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects i n
relation t o the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October, XX,
YEAR on our consideration of the Eastern Michigan University's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.
October XX, 2 0 1 3
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following discussion and analysis of Eastern Michigan University's ("University") financial
statements provides an overview of the University's financial activities for the years ended June 30, 20 1 3,
20 1 2, and 201 1 . Management has prepared the financial statements and the related footnote disclosures
along with the discussion and analysis. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this
information rests with University management.
The University's financial report include tlu·ee financial statements: the Statement of Net Position, the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. These
statements were prepared in accordance with criteria established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) for determining the various governmental organizations to be included in the
reporting entity (GASB Statement No. 6 1 ). These criteria include significant operational or financial
relationships. Based on the application of the criteria, the University has one component unit -- the
Eastern Michigan University Foundation. The Foundation's statements are discretely presented as part of
the University's reporting entity in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).
Eastern Michigan University offers a supportive, accessible, affordable, and quality learning and living
environment. The University' s distinct mix of comprehensive academic resources, strong community
initiatives, focus on education first, and nationally recognized undergraduate research achievements set it
apart.
Founded in historic Ypsilanti. in 1 849, the University occupies 880 acres on the main campus with 122
buildings. In addition, there are seven convenient off-campus locations in Brighton, Detroit, Flint,
Jackson, Livonia, Monroe, and Traverse City for a student body of almost 23,000 students.

Financial Highlights
The University's financial position remained strong at June 30, 201 3 , with assets of $565 miUion and
liabilities of $328 million.
In 201 3 the University adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position (GASB 63). This standard introduces and
provides financial reporting guidance for deferred inflows and outflows of resources and defines those
elements as consumption of net position by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period,
and an acquisition of Net position by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period,
respectively. The University had no deferred inflows or outflows as of June 30, 201 3 , 20 1 2, or 201 1 . In
conjunction with the adoption of GASB 63, the University early-adopted GASE Statement No. 65, Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. As a result of this adoption, the University had a
restatement of $2.2 million net position as of July 1 , 2010 due to the requirement to expense bond
issuance costs. Under previous standards these costs had been capitalized and amortized over the life of
the associated debt.
Due to fluctuation in interest rates, the fair value of the derivative liability decreased by $2 1 .2 m.illion in
20 1 3, followed by an increase of $30.8 rnillion in 2012, and a decrease of $6.7 million in 20 1 1 .
In 201 3 the University received the final $.O l million from a capital outlay allocation for the Pray-HaITold
renovation. In 20 1 2 and 201 1 the University received $ 1 0.5 million and $20.98 111.illion, respectively.
This was the first State Building Authority funding received since 1996.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following chart provides a graphical breakdown of net position by category for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2013, 201 2, and 201 1 .
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$1 50
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$-

201 1

201 2

201 3

Years

l!!I Restricted - Expendable

a Unrestricted

o Total Net Position

o Net investment in capital assets

The University has committed the unrestricted net position to provide for identified future needs. These
needs include contractual obligations, debt service, student loans, capital outlay, msurance reserves,
future retirement costs, and academic programming needs.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Statements
The University's financial report includes the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is sirnilar to
the accounting used by most private sector institutions. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Net position is one indicator of the
current financial condition of the University and is measured by assets plus deferred outflows minus
liabilities and deferred inflows.
Following is a summary of the major components of the net pos1t1on and operating results of the
University for the years ended June 30, 201 3 , 2012, and 201 1 as restated:

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets - Net of depreciation
Other
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

49.2

$

465 . 1
50.8
565 . 1

$

5 1 .7
275.9
327.6

$

200.J
1 2.6
24.8
237.5

$

5

201 1

2012

2013

Net Position as of June 30 (In millions)

$

43.6

$

460.9
65.4
569.9

$

54.7
292.7
347.4

$

1 85.8
9.6
27. l
222.5

$

$

6 1 .9

$

433.I\
89.3
584.6

$

65.8
265.2
3 3 1 .0

$

205.3
10.0
38.3
253.6

$
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Results for the Years Ended June 30 (in Millions):
Operating Revenues
Tutition and fees - Net
Grants and contracts
Auxiliary activities - Net
Other
Total operating revenues

1 68.5
1. 1 .7
36.3
1 0.7
227.2

$

201 1

2012

2013
$

1 67.4
12.9
35.3
9.5
225 . 1

$

1 62.7
1 6.4
33.4
8.9
221 .4

Operating Expenses
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operations and maintenance of plant
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary activities - Net
Depreciation
Other expenditures
Total operating expenses

1 20.0
4.1
1 1 .4
3 1 .7
29. 1
30.3
26.4
35.4
25.9
1 6.5
0.3
33 1 . 1

1 25.3
5.0
1 1 .4
26.5
30.2
3 1 .3
25.9
34.3
28.2
14.1
0.4

:rn.6

1 22.3
6.3
1 2.4
23.8
31.1
32.6
28.3
34. 1
25.6
1 5.8
0.4
332.7

Net Operating Loss

(103.9)

(107.5)

(111.3)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations
Gifts
Change in value of derivative instruments
Pell grants
Other nonoperating expenses

66.5
4.5
2 1 .2
34. 4
(7.8)

64.6
3.9
(30.8)
34.6
(7.4)

76.0
4.3
6.7
35.3
(7.7)

Net Nonoperating Revenues

1 18.8

64.9

1 14.6

0.0
0.1
0.1

1 0.5
1 .0
11.5

2 1 .0
0.4
21.4

Other Revenues
Capital appropriations
Capital gifts
Total other revenues
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Position - Beginning of year, as restated
Net Position - Encl of year

15.0
222.5
237.5

$

6

$

24.7
(31.1)
228.9
253.6
222.5 $
253.6
=====
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Revenues
Operating revenues include all transactions that result from the sales and/or receipts of goods and services
such as tuition and fees, housing, and other auxiliary units. In addition, certain federal, state and private
grants are considered operating if they are a contract for services and not for capital purposes.
Student tuition and fees revenue increased as a result of a Board of Regents approved tu1t1on and
mandatory fee weighted average increase of 3.95 percent effective Fall 201 2, partially offset by additional
scholarships.
The following i s a graphic illustration of operating revenues by source:

Operating Revenues by Source
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses are all costs necessary to perform and conduct the programs and primary purposes of
the University. Operating expenses were up modestly, reflecting increases in the costs of compensation,
utilities, student financial aid, library acquisitions, academic programming, and depreciation.
The University is committed to providing financial support to students. The University has long
sponsored its prestigious National Scholars program which attracts some of the brightest and most
promising students.
The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses by source:

Operating Expenses
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Nonoperating Revenues
Nonoperating revenues are all revenue sources that are primarily non-exchange in nature. They consist
primarily of state appropriations, Pell grant reimbursements, investment income (including rea1ized and
unrealized gains and losses), and restricted development funds that do not require any services to be
performed. Nonoperating revenue was significantly impacted by the following factors:
•
•
•
•
•

State operating appropriations increased $ 1 .9 million in 20 1 3 to $66.5 million and decreased
$ 1 1 .4 million in 2012 to $64.6 million due to the State's economy.
Investment income decreased $0.3 million to $2.8 million in 201 3 and decreased $3.6 million to
$3. 1 million in 201 2 clue to market conditions.
The fair market value of derivative liability decreased $21 .2 million in 20 1 3, following a $30.8
million increase in 2012, also due to market conditions.
Pell grants decreased $0.2 million to $34.4 million in 201 3 and decreased $0.7 million to $34.6
million i n 2012.
In 201 1 , the University retired $7.5 million of expired library subscriptions with accumulated
depreciation of $4. 1 mill ion purchased between 2003 and 201 1 .

Other Revenues
Other revenues consist of items that are typically nonrecurring, extraordinary, or unusual to the
University. Examples would be capital gifts, capital appropriations from the state or federal government,
and transfers from related entities. Capital appropriations for the Pray-Harrold renovation amounted to
$0. 0 1 million, $ 10.50 million and $20.98 million in 201 3, 201 2 and 201 1 , respectively, for the first State
Building Authority capital outlay from the State of Michigan since 1 996. Capital gifts amounted to $0. 1
million in 20 1 3 , $ 1 .0 million i n 2012, and $0.4 million i n 201 1 .
Statement of Cash Flows
Another way to assess the financial health of the University is to look at the statement of cash flows. Its
primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the
University during a period. The statement of cash flows also helps users assess:
• The University's ability to generate future net cash flows
• Its ability to meet obligations as they come clue
• Its needs for external financing
Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30 (in millions)
2012

2013
Cash Provided by (Used in):
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities

$

201 1

(92.7) $ ( 102.6) $ (87.6)
100.7
l 16.6
102.0
(33.8)
(25.4)
(1 l l .6)
29.2
30.2
53.1

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

3.4

4.2

(29.5)

Cash - Beginning of year

8.2

4.0

33.5

$

Cash - Encl of year

9
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$
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Cash and Investments
Cash and investments, collectively, decreased by $ 1 0.4 million to $52 . 1 million as of June 30, 201 3
primarily due to spending bond proceeds on capital projects.
The most significant components of cash flows provided from operating activities are tuition and fees,
auxiliary activities, grants, and contracts. Net cash used in operating activities was $92.7 million. To
offset this, the net cash provided from non-capital financing activities, which consisted primarily of State
appropriations, was $ 1 00.7 million. This is compared to net cash used in operating activities in the
amount of $ 1 02.0 million and $87.6 million for the years ended June 30, 201 2 and 201 1 , respectively.
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities was $ 1 02.0 million and $ 1 1 6.6 million for the years
ended June 30, 201 2 and 20 1 1 , respectively.
Cash used by capital and related financing activities amounted to $33.8 million in 201 3 , $25.4 million in
2012, and $ 1 1 1 .6 million in 201 1 , primarily on capital additions.
Capital Assets
At June 30, 20 1 3, the University had $465 . 1 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $302.7 million. Depreciation charges totaled $ 1 6.5 million for 201 3 compared to $ 1 4.0
million in 2012. In 201 3, the University completed part of the Rackham renovation and other projects to
improve classrooms, residence halls, technology infrastructure, athletics, building energy efficiency, and
security. Capital projects in progress at June 30, 201 3 primarily include additional work on Rackham,
Information Technology infrastructure replacements, renovation of the Best residence hall, and
improvements to the Halle ventilation system.
At June 30, 20 12, the University had $460.9 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $287.5 million. Depreciation charges totaled $ 1 4.0 million for 20 1 2 compared to $ 1 5 .8
million in 201 1 . In 201 2, the University completed the Science Complex and Pray-Harrold renovations
and projects to improve auxiliary building energy efficiency, security, and classrooms. Capital projects in
progress at June 30, 201 2 primarily include the Rackham renovation, Information Technology
infrastructure replacements, and improvements to the Hoyt residence hall.
Debt
On November 30, 201 2, the University issued $75,000,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 20 l 2A, and $60,795,000 of General Revenue V ariable Rate Demand Revenue
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 2B. These bonds refunded $ 1 25,795,000 General Revenue Variable
Rate Demand Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A&B, redeemed $ 1 ,685,000 Series 2000 Bonds, redeemed
$250,000 Series 2002B Bonds, and provided $7 ,885,500 for capital projects.
At June 30, 2013, the University had $239.7 million in obligations outstanding, versus $234. 1 million in
201 2 and $237.4 million in 201 1 . All of the outstanding debt instruments are general revenue obligations
of the University. Principal payments of $2.7 million, $3.2 million and $3.6 million were made in 201 3 ,
20 1 2 and 20 1 1, respectively. Included in the outstanding obligations are three interest rate swap
agreements with notional amounts of $ 1 27. 1 million, $ 1 26.9 million, and $ 1 25.8 m.illion as of June 30,
20 1 3, 2012 and 201 1 , respectively. The terms of the swap agreements call for the University to post
collateral to the counterpa1ty under certain conditions tied to the prevailing rating of the University and
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
the mark to market valuations of the swaps. The University posted collateral of $5 million to the
counterpa1ty as of June 30, 201 2. The collateral is reflected in long-term restricted investments. No
collateral was required to be posted as of June 30, 201 3 and 201 1 , respectively.
For the University's $ 125,795,000 of enhanced variable rate debt refinanced in 2009, the credit ratings
assigned by Moody's Investor Services (Aaa/VMIG-1 ) were unchanged in 201 3 from 2012 and 201 1 .
Standard and Poor's ratings (AANA- 1 ) were unchanged in 20 1 3 from 201 2 and 201 1 . For the
University's $ 1 02,380,000 of fixed rate debt, separate ratings were assigned by each agency for the
insured portion of the debt and the uninsured portion. Moody's ratings were Aa2 (insured) and A2
(uninsured); Standard and Poor's ratings were AAA/A-1 (insured) and A- (uninsured). The highest
achievable ratings are "Aaa" and "AAA", respectively. The University's capacity to meet its financial
obligations is considered to be strong by the rating agency and reflects limited additional borrowing
capacity as of June 30, 201 3.
Funding for a Successful Future
Eastern Michigan University's focus remains on investing in its students and faculty, in academic quality,
and in maintaining and improving facilities that help educate students. Through diligent efforts at fiscal
stewardship and cost containment, the University has set a standard for tuition restraint in recent years
while still continuing to invest in facilities and programs that help EMU students succeed i n today's
economy.
For the fifth consecutive year, the University's Board of Regents has maintained its statewide leadership
role in restraining higher education costs for Michigan students and their families.
The University's Board of Regents approved a tuition and mandatory fee increase of 3.75 percent for fall
201 3 as part of the 20 1 4 fiscal year budget. The increase matches this year's state tuition restraint
threshold, set earlier this spring by the Michigan legislature for the state's 1 5 public universities. By
setting its tuition at this rate, the University qualifies for additional state performance funding related to
tuition restraint. Eastern now has the lowest dollar increase i n tuition over the last five years of any of the
1 5 public universities in the state. The University's tuition increases have averaged 3 percent over that
time frame.
The University's $296.4 million General Fund budget for fiscal 201 4 reflects a $3.8 n:lillion increase i n
University-sponsored financial aid. Over the last six years, the University's financial aid has grown by
more than 80 percent, from $2 1 .4 million in 2007-08 to $39.2 million in 201 3- 1 4. The trend further
underscores the University's commitment to helping students and their families cope with the increasing
costs of attending college. The budget also reflects $2.2 million in funding for new academic programs
and Strategic Plan initiatives, such as support for the University's new Physician Assistant Program,
which is planned for launch i n May 20 1 4.
The Board of Regents also approved an auxiliary activities operating budget of $44.4 million. The budget
includes revenues and expenditures associated with EMU's dining services, residence halls, apartments
and parking.

11

ra

EASTERN MICHIGAN U
MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The auxiliary activities budget reflects increased housing occupancy for fall 201 3 . It is expected that the
number of students Jiving on campus this fall in residence halls and University-owned apartments will
increase by 9 percent to approximately 4, 100 students, representing the third consecutive year of increase
at the University. This fall, 800 more students, an increase of 24 percent, will be living on campus than in
the fall of 2010.
Yet, even during this period of tuition restraint, the University has undergone an unprecedented period of
capital reinvestment i n its academic and student-centered facilities. The University's $220 million, five
year capital plan included last fall's completion of Phase II of the $90-million, self-funded Science
Complex. The capital improvement program has included academic facility enhancements, such as the
renovation of the Pray-Harrold Building; housing and dining renovations and improvements in campus
safety and security, IT infrastructure, classroom technology and athletic facilities.
Eastern Michigan University's successful future depends on the collective efforts of its stakeholders.
These efforts build on a solid foundation of exceptional academic programs that prepare students for real
worlcl experience.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
STA TEMENT O F NET POSI TION
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted (Note 2)
Accounts receivable - net (Note 3)
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable - net (Note 3)
Long-term investments - unrestricted (Note 2)
Long-term investments - restricted (Nole 2)
Capital assets - net (Note 4)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

1 1 , 563, 199
2 1 ,400,437
1 2, 084,827
1 , 1 63,375
2,969,89 9
48,636
4 9 ,230,373

$

$

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll, taxes, and fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable (Note 7)
Total current liabilities

$

Noncurrent I iabilities:
Accrued compensated absences (Note 6)
Long-term debt (Note 5)
Fair value of derivative instruments (Notes 5 and 8)
Federal Perkins
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment i n capital assets
Restricted- University development and Perkins loans
Unrestricted, as restated (Note 5 )
Total net position

2012

2013

$
$

$

10,230,657
36,621,722
3,93 1 ,959
465,075,754
5 1 5,860, 092
565,090,465

2,330,000
20,700,145
19,01 0,041
7,57 1,072
2,1 32,774
5 1 ,744,032

$

1 1 , 1 57,0 1 0
43,341,834
1 0,9 74,439
460,87 0 , l 08
526,343,391
$ ===56=9==9=1=9==9=21=

$

2,965 ,000
23,694,246
1 8,665,438
7,486,339
1 ,893,5 02
54,7 04,525

2,448,992
237,350,000
25,307,160
1 0 ,7 9 6,240
275,902,392
327,646,424

4,2 1 6,476
23 1 , 1 80,000
46,521,031
10,796,240
292,713,747
$ ============
347,4 18,272

200,088,594
12,647,620
24,707,827

$

237,444,041

185,757,787
9,588,044
27, 155,818

222,501,649
$ =============

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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8,212,735
18,712,762
12,6 12,382
1 ,2 1 8, 107
2,7 03,779
1 1 6,765
43,576,530
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Accrued interest and dividends
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable (Note 3)
Life insurance cash surrender value
Property and equipment - Net
Investments (Note l )
Investments held under split-interest agreements (Note 1 )
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Liabilities under split-interest agreements
Total liabilities

$

$

349,085
4,474
537,560
89 1 , 1 1 9

$

$

$

1 , 1 40,61 8
1 7 ,830,983
40,975,326
59,946,927

$

60,838,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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60,838,046

$

Total liabilities and net assets

$

$

$

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

2013
1 ,0 17,935
46,650
1 0,767
509,480
294,900
1 ,960,796
56, 1 67 , 1 96
830,322

$

$

2012
2 , 1 88,573
49,932
9,0 1 3
907,08 1
283,070
1 ,95 1 ,00 1
48,874,561
850,956
55,114,187

588,088
9 , 1 06
557,825
1 , 1 55,0 1 9

299,01 0
14,353,588
39,306,570
53,959, 168

55,114,187
$ ===========
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
2013
OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net student tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities revenue - Net (Note 1 )
Other
Total operating revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses - Net (Note 1)
Depreciation
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Gifts
Investment Income
Change in value of derivative instruments
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Federal Pell grant program
Other
Net nonoperating revenues
OTHER REVENUES
Capital Appropriations
Capital gifts
Total other revenues
Increase (Decrease) in net assets
NET ASSETS • Beginning of year, as restated (Note 5)
NET ASSETS · End of year

$

2 10,753,019
(42,288,869)
168,464,150
6,797,632
1 ,578,566
624,949
723,380
1 ,984,099
8, 1 26,452
36,343,679
2,589,7 1 7
227 ,232,624

2012
$

1 1 9,974,535
4,044,763
1 1 ,448,532
3 1 ,702,396
29,1 27,868
30,369,776
35,386,073
26,412,450
25,972,21 7
1 6,482,0 1 1
266,398
3 3 1 , 1 87,019
( 103,954,395)

1 25,299 ,662
5,032,390
1 1,441 ,475
26,543,859
30,212,938
3 1 ,350,4 1 4
34,275,204
25,89 1 , 1 60
28,222,868
14,010,21 1
344,893
332,625,074
(107 ,508,29 1)

66,526,774
4,538,943
2,773,709
2 1 ,2 13,876
( 12,688,334)
1 ,880,893
34,394,008
143,819
1 1 8,783,688

64,619,095
3,895, 174
3,098,096
(30,786,866)
( 1 2,551 ,502)
1 ,880,893
34,627,248
1 60,532
64,942,670

1 2,461
100,638

10,509,153
951, 175

1 1 3,099

1 1 ,460,328

14,942,392

(31, 1 05,293)

222,501 ,649
237.444,041

$ ===2=22=.5=0=1=.6=49=

253,606,942

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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205,261 ,228
(37,907, 177)
1 67,354,05 1
7,245,487
2,274,675
292,9 1 7
658,130
2,500,058
7 , 1 6 1 ,685
35,333,355
2,296,425
225, 1 1 6,783

ar

EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVER - TY FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended June 30, 2013

20 1 2

20 1 3
REVENUE, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Contributions
Investment income
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses)
Administrative and management fee
Other revenue
Total revenue, gains and other support
EXPENSES
Contributions to EMU:
Expendable contributions
Contributions from endowment income
General and administrative - Foundation management
Fundraising
Total expenses

$

4 , 144,402
1 ,043,740
6,397,3 1 7
1 ,828,000
67,594
1 3,48 1 ,053

$

7,2 1 5,434
779, 139
( 1 ,034, 138)
1 ,903,000
78,737
8,942, 172

$

2,726,733
1,302, 1 63
537,2 1 I
2,991,879
7,557,986

$

3,025,963
1 ,456,024
564,592
3,034,639
8,08 1 ,2 1 8

$

$

860,954

5,923,067

Increase in Net Assets Before Other Changes in Net Assets
OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Funds transferred from EMU
Change in value of split-interest agreements

1 26,150
2 1 5 , 1 82

1 02,999
(38,307)

Increase in Net Assets
NET ASSETS - Beginning of year
$

NET ASSETS - End of year

5,987,759

1 ,202,286

53,959, 1 68

52,756,882

59,946,927

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
STA TEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For th e years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from students for tuition and fees
Cash received from auxiliary activities
Cash received from other sources
Grants and contracts
Student loans granted - Net of repayments
Scholarship allowances
Cash paid to su ppliers and employees
Cash paid for financial aid
Net cash used in operating activities

2013
$

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from State appropriations
Federal Pell grants
Gifts received from EMU Foundation
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

208 , 567,265

42, 92 2 , 554
1 2 ,054,3 2 3
1 0 ,23 2 ,064
874 , 573
(48 ,4 1 8,7 67 )
(24 I ,2 9 8 ,080)
( 7 7, 6 1 2, 1 8 6)
( 92 ,67 8 ,2 54)

2012
$

6 1 ,725 ,873
34,394, 008
4 , 5 3 8 ,94 3

6 3,488 , 1 1 5

1 00 , 65 8 ,824

1 02 ,0 1 0 , 5 37

3 4,627,248
3, 895 , 1 74

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
l 0 ,000 ,000
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Principal payments/defeasance under debt obligations
( 4,465 ,000)
Cash received from State Building Authority
875 ,9 1 7
Interest paid
(12,688 , 334)
Purchases of capital assets
(27, 5 1 5 ,42 9)
Net cash used i n capital and related financing activities
(33, 792 , 846)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided b y investing activities

(3, 205 ,000 )
3 0 ,62 4 ,08 3
( 12,55 1 ,502)
(40 ,25 7, 1 97 )
(2 5 ,3 89 ,6 1 6 )

( 5 3 , 1 1 2, 664)
79 ,43 0 ,05 3
2 , 845 ,35 1
29 , 1 62, 740

Net i ncrease in cash and cash equ i val en ts

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of year

2 0 3, 1 2 8 ,49 3
3 9 ,688 , 27 2
1 0 ,3 1 7 , 684
1 5, 07 6 ,998
87 0,2 87
(42 ,90 8, 7 2 1 )
(25 6,58 0 ,42 3)
(7 2 , 1 82,38 1 )
( 1 0 2, 5 8 9, 7 9 1 )

( 1 06,20 3,4 1 7)
1 33,1 9 5 ,0 1 3
3, 1 7 0 ,38 8
30 , 1 6 1 ,984

3,3 5 0,464

4, 1 93 , 1 1 4

8 ,2 1 2,735

4,0 1 9,62 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of year

$

1 1 ,563,199

$

8,212,735

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH ITEMS
Disposal of fixed assets, net of depreciation

$

90,47 5

$

83, 1 03

$

1 0 0 ,6 38

$

95 1 , 1 75

Capital gifts received in kind

The accompanying notes are an integral p art of this statement.

17

ra

t

EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2012

2013
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash from
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
from operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - Net
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Student loans receivable - Net
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Payroll taxes and accrued fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Accrued compensated absences
Total change i n assets and liabilities

$

$

Net cash used in operating activities

( 1 03,954,395)

( 1 07,508,29 1 )

1 6,482,01 1

14,01 0,2 1 1

( 1 ,824,799)
54,732
(269,765)
926,353
(2,993,522)
22,626
3 2 1,977
84,733
239,272
( 1 ,767,477)
(5,205,870)

1 ,641 , 1 68
(268,3 1 2)
( 1 , 1 74,404)
968,3 1 3
(6,499,049)
373,958
(3,248,550)
(528,753)
(68,474)
(287,608)
(9,09 1 ,7 1 1 )

(92,678,254)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIV RSITY FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

201 3
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Change i n value of split-interest agreements
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Contribution received - Janel held for investment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Contributions receivable
Accrued interest and dividends
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of equipment
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale of investments
Net cash used in investing activities

$

$

397,601
3,282
( 1 ,754)
(239,003)
(4,632)
( 1 , 786 ,207)

2,599, 182
(3,9 1 2)
6,476
(21 1,798)
180
647,5 1 l

$

(72,321 )
1 3 ,749
1 ,668,756
1 ,6 10 , 1 84

$
$
$

(41 ,054)
(24,066,592)
1 9,654,881
(4,452,765)

$

(9 1,695)
69,775
3,867,845
3,845,925

( 1 , 1 70,638)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

1 ,202,286
1 1 0,276
1 ,034, 138
(2 15,1 82)
(6,290)
(3,867,845)

$

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

1 10,136
(6,397,3 1 7 )
38,307
( ] 1 ,830)
( 1 ,668,756)

( 1 1 9,93 1 )
(24,529,963)
23,655,279
(994,615)

$

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payments on split-interest agreements
Proceeds from new split-interest agreements
Proceeds from contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Net cash provided by financing activities

5,987,759

201 2

40,67 1

2 , 1 88,573

2,1 47,902

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Encl of year

$

1,017,935

2,188,573

Supplemental Cash Flow Information - Cash paid for:
Interest

$

$

1 10,632

$

1 1 3,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization - The University is an institution of higher education located in Ypsilanti, Michigan, and is
considered to be a component unit of the State of Michigan (the "State") because its Board of Regents is
appointed by the governor of the state of Michigan. Accordingly, the University is included in the State's
financial statements as a discrete component unit. Transactions with the State of Michigan relate
primarily to appropriations for operations, grants from various state agencies, and payments to state
retirement programs for the benefit of University employees.
Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of Eastern Michigan University (the "University") have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The University implemented GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA
Pronouncements. The objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB' s authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial guidance that is included in the following pronouncements
issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting research bulletins of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), Committee or Accounting Procedure.
The University follows the "business-type" activities reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34.
GASB 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and
requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following categories:
•
•

•

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement in those assets.
Restricted, expendable - Net position subject to externally imposed constraints that they may be
maintained permanently by the University, or Net position whose use by the University is subject
to externally imposed constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to
those constraints or that expire by the passage of time.
Unrestricted - Net position that are not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted
Net position may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of
Regents (the "Board") or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside
parties. The University has committed the unrestricted Net position to provide for identified
future needs, such as debt service, contractual obligations, capital outlay, academic programming,
and postemployment benefits.

These statements have also been prepared in accordance with criteria established by GASB for
determining the various governmental organizations to be included in the reporting entity (GASB
Statement No. 6 1 , Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus). These criteria include significant operational or
financial relationships with the University. Based on application of the criteria, the University has one
component unit.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UN VERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Component Units of the University - The Eastern Michigan University Foundation financial statements
are discretely presented as part of the University's reporting entity. These statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB). The officers of Eastern Michigan University Foundation include certain
University adm.inistrative officials, but the University does have controlling interest in the Foundation's
board. The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the Foundation is tax exempt under Section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The Eastern Michigan University Foundation exists for the sole purpose of soliciting, collecting, and
investing donations for the benefit of Eastern Michigan University. A complete copy of the audited
financial statements of Eastern Michigan University Foundation is available at the Foundation offices
located near the campus of the University.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Investments - As a matter of cash management, the University invests substantially all of its
cash in interest-bearing instruments. Investments are reported at fair value, based on quoted market
prices, with changes in fair value reported as investment income in the statement of revenue, expenses,
and changes in Net position. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less.
Inventories - Inventories consist primarily of supplies, food, pharmaceuticals, and bookstore items, and
are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined by the retail method.
Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost if purchased or at appraised value at the date of the gift
for donated property. Certain net assets have been designated to provide for significant repair and
maintenance costs to residence facilities. Physical properties, with the exception of land, are depreciated
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful service lives of the respective assets. Estimated
service lives are as follows:
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Library holdings

1 2 to 60 years
1 2 to 20 years
40 to 60 years
5 to 1 0 years
5 to 1 0 years

Unearned Fees and Deposits - Unearned fees and deposits primarily include unearned tuition and fee
revenue for future semesters, exclusivity contract unearned revenue, and agency balances held in custody
for others. Retirement benefit costs are funded as accrued.
Accrued Compensated Absences - Accrued compensated absences are comprised of the portion of
unused sick leave accrued as of June 30 but not expected to be paid within one year. The portion of sick
leave expected to be paid within one year and all accrued vacation leave are included in accrued payroll,
taxes, and fringe benefits. In 201 3 the University modified the sick leave and short-term disability policy
to eliminate sick leave accruals and retirement payouts for certain employees. In addition, the revised
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U ·IVERSITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
policy established a new short-term disability plan to provide income protection for certain employees
unable to work for an extended period because of non-work- related illness or period of incapacity. The
current portions of accrued sick leave and vacation leave were approximately $400,000 and $3,374,000 as
of June 30, 2013, respectively. The current portions of accrued sick leave and vacation leave were
approximately $400,000 and $3,468,000 as of June 30, 201 2, respectively.

Change in Accounting Principles - Effective with the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 3 , the University
adopted the following GASB Statements:
•

Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net position. This standard provides financial reporting guidance for deferred
inflows and outflows of resources and defines those elements as consumption of net position by
the University that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of Net position
by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. The University had
no deferred inflows or outflows as of June 30, 201 3 , 2012, or 201 1 .

• Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Statement No. 65
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This
Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial
statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. The
University has no assets or liabilities that would be considered deferred inflows or outflows as of
June 30, 201 3 and 2012.

Use of estimates - The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
Auxiliary Activities - Auxiliary activities consist of the following as of June 30, 201 3 and 201 2 :

Operating Revenues:
Auxiliary Activities, Gross
Less: Internal Sales
Less: Scholarship Allowances
Auxiliary Activities Revenue - Net
Operating Expenses:
Auxiliary Activities, Gross
Less: Internal Sales
Less: Scholarship Allowances
Auxiliar·y Activities Expenses - Net

2013
42,844,406
(370,829)
(6,1 29,898)
36,343,679

$

$ ===========

$

$

32,472,944
(370,829)
(6,129,898)
25,972,2 1 7

===========
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2012
$
$

$
$

40,688,1 2 1
(353,222)
(5,001 ,544)
35,333,355

33,577,634
(353,222)
(5,001 ,544)
28,222,868

==========
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EASTERN MICHIGAN U IVERSITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues - The University's policy for defining operating activities as
reported on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is to report those activities
that generally result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing services and
payments made for services or goods received. Nearly all the University's expenses are from exchange
transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as nonoperating
revenues as defined by GASB Statement No. 34, including state appropriations and investment income.
Restricted and unrestricted resources are spent and tracked at the discretion of the University's
department within the guidelines of donor restrictions, if any. Federal Pell grant revenue is classified as
nonoperating due to its nonexchange nature. The amounts received for 2013, 20 12, and 201 1 are $34.4
million, $34.6 million, and $35.3 million, respectively.
Note 2 - Cash and Investments
The University utilizes the pooled cash method of accounting for substantially all of its cash and cash
equivalents. The University's investment policy, as set forth by the Board of Regents, authorizes
investment in securities of the U.S. Treasury and agencies, corporate bonds and notes, commercial paper,
time savings deposits, Eurodollars and certain external mutual funds, separate managed funds and other
pooled funds. Restricted cash and investments represent unspent bond proceeds utilized for capital
projects.
Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 20 1 3 :

Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted:
Time deposits
Money market funds
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Long-term investments:
Unrestricted:
Corporate bond mutual fund
Government bonds
Domestic equities
Foreign equities
Total long-term unrestricted investments
Restricted:
Certificates of deposit
Time deposits
Government bonds
Total long-term restricted investments
Total cash and investments

Fair Market
Value
$
$

$

$

$

Less than 1
year

1 0,675,634
887,565
1 1 ,563,199

s

1 0,675,634
887,565
$ 1 1 ,563,199

25,394,087 $
77,951
9,421 , 1 67
1 ,728,5 1 7
36,62 1,722 $
-

3,931 ,959

$

3,931 ,959

$

52, 1 1 6,880
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1-5 years

More than 10
years

6-10 years

s

-

$

$

-

$

-

$

$

25,394,087

$

-

$

$

9,42 1 , 167
1 ,728,5 1 7
1 1 , 149,684

$

-

$

-

$

$

$

3,931 ,959

$

s

$

$ 1 5,495, 158

$

s
$

3,931 ,959

25,394,087

25,394,087

$

1 1 , 149,684

$

s

77,951
77,951

77,95 1
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
Cash and investments consisted of the following as of June 30, 20 12:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted:
Time deposits
Money market funds
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Long-term investments:
Unrestricted:
Corporate bond mutual fund
Government bonds
Domestic equities
Foreign equities
Total long-term unrestricted investments
Restricted:
Certificates of deposit
Government bonds
Corporate bond mutual fund
Total long-term restricted investments
Total cash and investments

Fair Market
Value
$
$

s

$

Less than I
yeai·

7,393,950 $
8 1 8,785
8,21 2,735 $

30,438,297
8 1 ,458
1 0,756,905
2,065 , 1 74
43,341 ,834

7,393,950
8 1 8,785
8,21 2,735

s

1-5 years

$

$

$

$

30,438,297

$

-

$

$

$

4,833,959
5,000,058
I, 140,422
1 0,974,439

$

62,529,008

$ 1 9, 1 87 , 1 74

$

$

30,438,297

$
-

$

30,438,297

$

s

$

$

4,833,959
5,000,058
1 , 140,422
1 0,974,439

$

-

$

More than JO
years

6-10 years

$

$

1 0,756,905
2,065 , 1 74
12,822,079

$

$

-

$

$

1 2,822,079

$

Target
70%
15%
7%
4%
4%

The University is also exposed to risk indirectly since its mutual fund investees hole! investments such as
futures, options, and collateralized mortgage obligations (generally referred to as "derivatives"). This
risk is minimal.
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8 1 ,458

$

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses due to rising interest rates,
the University's operating investment policy provides for a diversified portfolio comprised of short,
intermediate, and long-term investments. The investment policy does not specifically limit or restrict asset
allocation except for the long-term investment pool. The asset allocation, as a percentage of the total
market value of the long-term investment pool, is targeted as follows:
Asset Category
Fixed Income Securities
Domestic Large Cap equities
Domestic Mid Cap equities
Domestic Small Cap equities
Global/International equities

8 1 ,458

8 1 ,458

�e
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
Credit rusk - Investment policies for cash and investments as set forth by the Board of Regents shall be
to preserve investment principal while deriving a reasonable return consistent with the prevailing market
and economic conditions. The University is not cmTently restricted to a minimum rating by Moody's .
Investor Service or equivalent rating. At June 30, 201 3 and 201 2, the University's debt instruments
(subject to fluctuations in interest rates) and related ratings consisted of the following:
2012

2013
NRSRO
Rating

Market Value
Bond Mutual Funds:
Corporate Bonds
U.S. Government Agency Bonds
Total

$
$

25,394,087
77,95 1
25,472,038

AA

Market Value
$
$

30,438,297
8 1 ,458
30,5 1 9,755

NRSRO
Rating
AA

The nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO) utilized were Moody's Investors
Services or Morningstar. The corporate bonds NRSRO rating is based on a weighted average of the
individual investment ratings.
Custodial Credit rusk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in tbe event of the failure of the bank or
counterparty, the University will not be able to recover the value of its deposits or investments that are in
the possession of an outside party. The University's cash investment policy does not limit the value of
deposits or investments that may be held by an outside party. Investments in external investment pools
and in open-ended mutual funds are not exposed to custodial credit risks because their existence is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. All cash and cash equivalents are held
in the University's name as of June 30, 201 3 and 2012. As of June 30, 2013, the banks reported balances
in the disbursement accounts at $ 1 1 ,086,955. Of these balances, $500,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance and $ 1 0,586,955 was uninsured and uncollateralized. As of June 30, 2012, the
banks reported balances in the disbursement accounts at $8,228,042. Of these balances, $500,058 was
covered by federal depository insurance and $7,727,984 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of investment in a single issuer. The University's investment policy provides that investments will be
diversified within equity and fixed income securities so as to provide a balance that will enhance total
return while avoiding undue risk concentrations in any single asset class or investment category. The
diversification does not necessarily depend upon the numbei> of industries or companies in a portfolio or
their particular location, but rather upon the broad nature of such investments and of the factors that may
influence them.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
The following investments comprise more than 5 % of the total investments portfolio as of June 30, 201 3
and 201 2:
June 30, 20 1 3 :
Instrnment

Fair Market Value

JPMorgan Core Bond Select

$

PIMCO Total Return Bond Fund

3,857,806
14,083,550

Loomis Sales Bond Fund Inst!

4,252,091

Vanguard Small Cap Index-Signal

1 ,877,759

Vanguard Inst Index VINJX
Total

$

7,543,408
3 l ,6 1 4, 6 1 4

June 30. 20 1 1 2
Instrument

Fair Market Value

JPMorgan Core Bond Select

$

PIMCO Total Return Bond Fund

4,599,304
1 8 ,075,9 1 8

Loomis Sales Bond Fund Inst!

4,623,427

Barclay's Capital
Vanguard Inst Index VINIX
Total

$

5,000,000
8,551 ,855
40,850,504

Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign cmTency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. At June 30, 201 3 and 2012, the University had $ 1 ,728,5 1 7 and
$2,065 , 174, respectively, invested in mutual funds that have funds invested i n various countries
tlu·oughout the world and therefore, exposes the University to foreign currency risk indirectly. The
University did not have any direct investments or deposits denominated in foreign currencies at June 30,
201 3 and 2012.
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 2 - Cash and Investments (continued)
Investments at the Eastern Michigan University Foundation are as follows:

2013
40,443,282 $
3 ,786,769
4,705,569
573,546
55,000
6,82 1 ,0 1 8
56,385 , 1 84 $

Corporate stocks
$
Corporate bonds
Treasury/Federal securities
Certificates of Deposit (Long Term)
Real estate
Mutual funds
Total
$

2012
33,56 1 ,9 1 5
3 ,920,207
4,704,404
603,0 1 8
55,000
6,268,639
49, 1 1 3, 1 83

Net gains/losses from security transactions for the years ended June 30, 201 3 and 2012 are as follows:

Unrealized gain (loss)
Realized income
Total

$
$

2013
3,865,645 $
3,575,4 12
7,44 1 ,057 $

2012
(2,038,265)
1 ,783,266
(254,999)

Trustee and brokerage fees associated with the maintenance of the endowment securities portfolio were
$333,5 1 7 and $405,760 for the years ended June 30, 201 3 and 2 0 1 2 , respectively, for Eastern Michigan
University Foundation. For recording purposes, these fees have been netted with investment income.
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Note 3 - Receivables
University accounts receivable consist of the following as of June 30, 201 3 and 2012:
Sponsor accounts
Student accounts
Charter school appropriation
Third party tuition
Other
Subtotal
Less allowances for possible collection losses
Accounts receivable - Net

20 1 3
4,365,630
6,751,478
4,544, 1 12
535,384
6,7 16,227
22,912,831
( 1 ,5 12,394)

$

$ 2 1 ,400,437

201 2
3,57 1 , 8 1 5
6,53 1 ,595
4,072,428
660,228
5,354,594
20,190,660
( 1 ,477,898)

$

1 8,7 1 2,762

$

In addition, the University has student loans receivable of $ 10,230,657 and $ 1 1 , 1 57 ,0 1 0, net of the related
allowance of $358,666 for both June 30, 2 0 1 3 and 2012.
Included in contributions receivable for the Foundation are the following unconditional promises to give
at June 30, 20 1 3 and 201 2:
2012

2013
Contributions receivable:
Gross contributions promised
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Subtotal
Less unamortized discount
Net unconditional promises to give

$

$

Amounts due in:
Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total

$
$

28

1 ,453,745
(939,46 1)
5 1 4,284
(4,804)
509,480

$

1 ,057,619
360, 1 26
36,000
1 ,453,745

$

$

$

1 ,655,1 2 1
(740,365)
9 1 4,756
(7,675)
907,08 1
1 ,266,978
333, 143
55,000
1 ,655 , 1 2 1
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Note 4 - Capital Assets
The following table presents the changes in various fixed asset class categories for the year ended June
30, 201 3 :
Additions/
Transfers

20]2
Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable

$

1 1 ,653,978 $
5,489,522
1 7,1 43,500

Retirements/ Transfers
-

4,274, 1 79
4,274, 1 79

Depreciable:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total depreciable
Total capital assets

37,387,443
3,408,874
564,357,221
46,496,097
79,565,299
7 3 1 , 2 1 4,934
748,358,434

I, 1 65,233
1 38,691
1 6,805,894
1 ,084, 1 10
2,799,547
2 1 ,993,475
26,267,654

Less: Accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

26,238,680
3,408,874
149,333,433
4 1 ,300,394
67,206,945
287,488,326

969,0 1 3
1 3,869
1 0,389,022
1 ,5 1 5,592
3,594,5 1 5
1 6,482,0 1 1

Capital assets - Net

$ 460,870, 108

$

29

9,785,643

$

$

-

(5,489,522)
(5,489,522)

20 1 3
$

1 1 ,653,978
4,274, 1 79
1 5,928, 1 5 7

( 1 ,283,606)
( 1 ,283,606)
(6,773 , 1 28)

38,552,676
3,547,565
5 8 1 , 1 63, 1 1 5
47,580,207
8 1 ,081 ,240
751 ,924,803
767,852,960

( 1 , 1 93, 1 3 1 )
( 1 , 1 93, 1 3 1 )

27,207,693
3,422,743
1 59,722,455
42,81 5,986
69,608,329
302,777,206

(5,579,997) $

465,075,754
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Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued)
The following table presents the changes 111 various fixed asset class categories for the year ended
June 30, 2012:

Non-depreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable

Additions/
Transfers

20 1 1
$

l 1 ,653,978
42,927,407
54,581 ,385

Depreciable:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total depreciable
Total capital assets

34,726,276
3,408,874
49 1 , 1 27,675
45,038, 1 94
79,457,927
653,758,946
708,340,3 3 1

Less: Accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Library holdings
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

25,261 ,869
3,408,874
1 42,071,590
39,553,391
64,606,826
274,902,550

Capital assets - Net

$ 433,437,781

$

2012

Retirements/ Transfers
-

5,489,522
5,489,522

$

-

(42,927,407)
(42,927,407)

$

( l ,507,538)
( 1 ,507 ,538)
(44,434,945)

37,387,443
3,408,874
564,357 ,22 1
46,496,097
79,565,299
73 1 ,214,934
748,358,434

( 1 ,424,436)
( 1 ,424,436)

26,238,680
3,408,874
149,333,433
41 ,300,394
67,206,945
287 ,488,326

2,66 1 , 1 67
73,229,546
1 ,457,903
l ,6 1 4,9 1 0
78,963,526
84,453,048
976,8 1 1
7,261 ,843
1,747,003
4,024,555
14,0 1 0,2 1 2
$

70,442,836

$

1 1 ,653,978
5,489,522
17,143,500

(43,0 I 0,509) $

460,870, 1 08

The University has encumbrances of $3,994,967 on various construction projects in progress as of June
30, 201 3.
Certain University facilities, including the Bruce T. Halle Library, John W . Porter CoJlege of Education,
Boone Hall, Everett L. Marshall College of Health and Human Services Building, the William H. Smart
Physical Plant, the Student Center, and the Pray-Harrold Building have been financed in whole or in pait
by State Building Authority ("SBA") bond issues which are secured by a pledge of rentals to be received
from the State of Michigan pursuant to lease agreements between the SBA, the State of Michigan, and the
University. During the lease terms, the SBA will hold title to the respective buildings, the State of
Michigan will make all lease payments to the SBA, and the University will pay all operating and
maintenance costs. At the expiration of the individual leases, the SBA has agreed to sell each building to
the University for one dollar.

30

urart �
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 5 - Long-term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 2 0 1 3 and 2 0 1 2:
Outstanding PrinciQal
Retirements/
Additions
Defeasance

Interest
Rates

Maturity

Refunding Bonds
o f 2 0 1 2B

variable

2037-2049

Refunding Bonds
of20 1 2A

variable

2038-2049

Build Ame1ica
Bonds of 2009D

4.21 - 7.2 1

2014-2038

79,220,000

79,220,000

General Revenue
Bonds of 2009C

4.00 - 5.00

2022-20?7

23,1 60,000

21, 1 60,000

Refunding Bonds
of2009B

variable

2038-2049

50,795,000

50,795,000

variable

2038-2049

75,000,000

75,000,000

2.00 - 5.00

2013-2014

2,040,000

1 ,000,000

3.00-5.00

20 1 3

250,000

250,000

5.8

2013-2014

1 ,995,000

1 ,530,000

5 .00-6.00

20 1 3

1 ,685,000

Less current portion long-term debt
Long-term debt

234,145,000
2,965,000
23 1 , 1 80,000

Refunding Bonds
of 2009A
Refunding Bonds
of2003A
General Revenue
Bonds of 2002B
General Revenue
Bonds of 2002A
General Revenue
Bonds of 2000

20 1 2
-

$

$ 60,795,000

5

201 3
-

75,000,000

$

31

$

60,795,000

Current Portion

$

75,000,000
825,000

1 ,040,000

1 ,040,000

465,000

465,000

1 ,685,000
$ 1 35,795,000

5 1 30,260,000

239,680,000 $
2,330,000
$ 237,350,000

2,330,000
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 201 2 and 201 1 :

Outstanding Princi12al
Retirements/
Additions
Defeasance

Interest
Rates

Maturity

Build America
Bonds of 2009D

4.2 1 - 7.2 1

2014-2038

General Revenue
Bonds of 2009C

4.00 - 5.00

2022-2027

23,! 60,000

23,! 60,000

Refunding Bonds
of2009B

variable

2038-2049

50,795,000

50,795,000

variable

2038-2049

75,000,000

75,000,000

2.00 - 5.00

2012-2014

3,0 1 5,000

975,000

2,040,000

1 ,000,000

3.00-5.00

2012-201 3

490,000

240,000

250,000

250,000

5.8

2012-2014

3,785,000

1 ,790,000

1 ,995,000

l,530,000

5.00-6.00

2 0 12-2024

l ,885,000

200,000

1 ,685,000

1 85,000

Refunding Bonds
of 2009A
Refunding Bonds
of 2003A
General Revenue
Bonds of 2002B
General Revenue
Bonds of2002A
General Revenue
Bonds of2000

Less current portion long-term debt
Long-term debt

20 1 1
$

$

79,220,000

237,350,000
3,205,000
234, !45,000

$

$

$

$

2012
-

3,205,000

$

79,220,000

Current Portion
$

234, 1 45,000 $
2,965,000
$ 23 I , 1 80,000

On November 30, 201 2, the University issued $75,000,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 20 l 2A, and $60,795,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand Revenue
and Refunding Bonds, Series 200 1 2B . These bonds refunded $ 1 25,795,000 General Revenue Variable
Rate Demand Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A&B, redeemed $ 1 ,685,000 Series 2000 Bonds, redeemed
$250,000 Series 2002B Bonds, and provided $7,885,500 for capital projects. 201 2 Series A&B bonds
amortize over 37 years with principal payments beginning June 30, 2038 and June 30, 2037, respectively.
The refunding resulted in a reduction of total interest payments of $53.9 million and an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the interest payments on the old and new debt) of $3,1 19,479.
On May 5, 2009, the University issued $75,000,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009A, and $50,795,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009B. These bonds refunded $ 125,795,000 General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009. 2009 Series A&B bonds amortize over 40 years with principal payments
beginning June 30, 2038.
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
On June 10, 2009, the University issued $ 1 02,380,000 of General Revenue Bonds, Series 2009C and
2009D, to fund capital projects. Series 2009C for $23,1 60,000 are tax-exempt bonds. Series 2009D for
$79,220,000 are taxable issuer Build America Bonds authorized by Section 153 1 of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The University will receive payments from the Federal
Treasury equal to 29.9% of the total coupon interest paid by the University.
On April 10, 2008, the University issued $ 125,795,000 of General Revenue Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Bonds, Series 2008. These were issued to refund the $41 ,395,000 General Revenue and
Refunding Bonds 2001 and the $85,680,000 General Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2006A bonds.
The Series 2008 bonds were refunded during fiscal year 2009 as indicated above due to market
conditions.
As bonds are defeased, certain funds that will be paid to bondholders are deposited in trust and
distributions are made by the trustee accordingly. The trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not recorded as assets or liabilities in the financial statements of the University. At
June 30, 201 3 and 2012, the aggregate amount of outstanding principal on all bonds which have been
defeased is $70,000 and $36, 192,250, respectively.
Certain debt agreements require student fees to equal or exceed 200% of the related debt service. The
University is i n compliance with these covenants.
Principal and interest on long-term debt are payable from operating revenues, allocated student fees and
the excess of revenues over expenditures of specific auxiliary activities. The obligations are generally
callable. The future amounts of principal and interest payments required by the debt agreements are as
follows:
2014
2015
201 6
2017
2018
2019 - 2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2033
2034 - 2038
2039 - 2043
2044 - 2048
2049
Total

$

Principal
2,330,000
2,475,000
2,560,000
2,660,000
2,775,000
15,870,000
2 1 ,075,000
26,81 0,000
36,565,000
5 1 , 1 15,000
6 1 ,460,000
13.985.000

Interest
1 2,364,006
12,2 1 1 ,094
1 2,074,243
1 1 ,878,886
1 1 ,68 1 ,630
55,030,170
49,21 9,043
4 1 ,290,120
30,679,932
20,502,774
1 0 , 1 77,2 1 9
554.408

239,680,000

$ 267 .663.525
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Total
14,694,006
1 4,686,094
14,634,243
14,538,886
14,456,630
70,900, 170
70,294,043
68,1 00, 120
67,244,932
7 1 ,6 17,774
7 1 ,637,219
14.539.408
$

507,341.525
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
Interest Rate Swaps:
The University currently holds three interest rate swap instruments. The University entered into three of
the agreements at the same time and for the same amount as the issuance of certain variable rate debt with
the intent of creating a synthetic fixed rate debt, at an interest rate that is lower than if fixed rate debt were
to have been issued directly.
The University entered into a single mini-swap while refunding
$ 1 25,795,000 in variable rate debt for a notional amount of $2,490,000 to replace, over time, the
amortizing notional amounts of the 200 1 swap and the 2006 swap. The intention of the 2009 swap was
to retain an effective synthetic fixed rate for the 2009A and 2009B bonds. The 2001 swap, the 2006
swap, and the 2009 swap were reallocated by the University to the 2012A and 20 1 2B bonds.
All of the swap agreements are deemed ineffective hedges at June 30, 20 1 3 and 2012. The ineffective
swap agreements did not utilize consistent critical terms as the underlying variable rate debt and a
calculation of the actual cash flows demonstrates a difference from fixed rate cash flows.
As of June 30, 201 3 and 201 2, the swap agreements can be summarized as follows:
Changes in Fair Value of derivative
instruments at June 30:
Cash flow hedges: Pay
fixed interest rate swap
(receive variable)

Fair Value of derivative instruments
at June 30:

Outstanding Notional
Amount at June 30:

2013

$

2 1 ,2 1 3,876

20 1 3

$

25,307 , 1 60 $ 125,235,000

201 2

$

(30,786,866)

201 2

$

(46,521 ,03 1 ) $ 1 26,855,000

Due to the swaps being considered ineffective hedges, the change in fair value annually is recorded as a
component of nonoperating revenue in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated on midmarket values and do not include bid/offer
spread that would be reflected in an actual price quotation. Such rn.id-market values attempt to
approximate the current econom.ic value of a given position using prices and rates at the average of the
estimated bid and offer for respective underlying asset(s) or reference rate(s) and/or mathematical models,
as we have deemed appropriate. In absence of sufficient or meaningful market information available to
us, such valuations, or the components thereof, may be theoretical in whole or in part. Discussions of the
trade values in general, and indicative or firm price quotations and actual trade prices in particular, may
vary significantly from these written estimated values as a result of various factors, which may i nclude
(but not limited to) prevailing credit spreads, market liquidity, position size, transaction and financing
costs.
Effective
Date

Objective

Notional Amount

Pav terms

6/1/2026

Counter(lartv credit
rating
Aa3 (Moody's)
A+ (Standard &
Poor's)

62% LJBOR +
20 bps

5/l/2036

Baa I (Moody's)
A- (Standard & Poor' s)

68% LIBOR

3/1/2049

A2 (Moody's)
A (Standard & Poor's)

8/29/2001

Pay- fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2001

$ 1 5,620,000
$23,430,000

4.465%

Receive terms
40% - Variable
60%- 68% of
LIBOR

2/22/2006

Pay-fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2006

$79,015,000

3.317%

6/2/2009

Pay-fixed, Receive variable

Cash flow hedge for
Series 2009

$7, 1 70,000

3.096%

Tvpc
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
The terms of the swap contracts call for the University to post collateral to the counterparty under certain
conditions tied to the prevailing rating of the University and the mark to market valuations of the swaps.
As of June 30, 2012 the University posted collateral of $5 million to the counterparty. No collateral was
required to be posted as of June 30, 201 3 and 201 1 , respectively.
Credit Risk The University is not exposed to credit risk on the hedging derivative instruments because
they are in a liability position.
Interest Rate Risk The University is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. On its pay
fixecl, receive-variable interest rate swaps, as LIBOR swaps decrease, the University's net payment on the
swaps increases.
Basis Risk The University is exposed to basis risk on its LIBOR-based swaps clue to variable-rate
payments received by the University on these instruments based on a rate of index other than interest rates
the University pays on its variable-rate debt, which is remarketecl every 30 days. In December 201 2, the
University amended a portion of the 2001 fixed payer swap by changing the received rate from Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) to a percentage of LIBOR. This amendment
effectively decreased the swap fixed pay leg from 4.72% to 4.465%. Additionally, this mitigates basis
risk between the swap receiving leg and the variable rate resets of the 2012A and 2012B bonds. Since the
2001 , 2006, and 2009 swap agreements receive a percentage of LIBOR from the counterparty and pay a
percentage of LIBOR for the Series 20 12A and 20 1 2B bonds, basis risk is mitigated. As of June 30,
2013, the variable interest rate was 0. 14%, whereas 68 percent of one-month LIBOR was 0. 1 3%. As of
June 30, 2013, 62 percent of one-month LIBOR plus 20 basis points was 0.32 1 %.
Termination Risk The University may terminate a derivative instrument on any business day and
terminate and cash settle the instrument by providing prior written notice to the counterparty. Additional
termination events will apply if either party fails to maintain the appropriate long-term senior debt credit
ratings; or if the University fails to post collateral in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in
the ISDA Credit Suppo1t Annex.
Using rates as of June 30, 2013, debt service requirements of the variable rate debt associated with the
2001 swap agreement, 2006 swap agreement, and the 2009 swap agreement and net swap payments,
assuming cu1Tent interest rates remain the same for term, were as follows. As rates vary, variable rate
bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.
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Note 5 - Long-term Debt (continued)
Variable Rate Bonds Associated with
2009 Bonds Swap Agreement

Fiscal Year

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2048
2048-2049
Total

Principal

$

6,250,000
45,795,000
59,765,000
1 3,985,000
1 25,795,000 $

Fixed Interest
Paid

4,603,83 1
4,579,694
4,544,3 1 5
4,507,322
4,468,4 1 4
2 1 ,690,958
20,423,5 1 7
1 9,659,844
1 9,484,27 1
1 5,820,405
7,91 2,602
432,976
128, 1 28, 149

Variable
Interest Paid

$

176, 1 13
176, 1 1 3
176, 1 1 3
176, 1 13
176, 1 1 3
880,565
880,565
880,565
880,565
7 1 5,393
357,805
19,579
5,495,602

Net Counterparty
Interest Exchanged

$

(426,635)
(42 1 , 1 80)
(4 1 1 ,678)
(401 ,907)
(39 1 ,5 19)
( 1 ,788, 1 7 1 )
( 1 ,499,372)
( 1 ,097,4 1 2)
(834,449)
(664,294)
(332,248)
( 1 8, 1 8 1 )
(8,287,046) $

Total Paid

4,353,309
4,334,627
4,308,750
4,281,528
4,253,008
20,783,352
19,804, 7 1 0
1 9,442,997
25,780,387
6 1 ,666,504
67,703, 159
14,4 19,374
25 1 , 1 3 1 ,705

Restatement due to Accounting Change. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, in March 2012. Statement
No. 65 established accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The University
has implemented GASB 65 effective for the year ended June 30, 2013. The statement was retroactively
applied to the earliest year presented. No reclassifications to deferred outflows or inflows of resources
were necessary for the years ended June 30, 2013, 201 2, or 201 1 , respectively. This Statement also
provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the deferred outflow and inflow of
resources. The University is required to expense bond issuance costs previously capitalized. As a result,
the University has restated beginning net position and noncurrent assets as of July 1 , 2010 by
($2,241 , 3 7 8).
Note 6 - Retirement Benefits
Tlu·ough December 3 1 , 1995, the University offered participation in one of two retirement plans for all
qualified employees: the Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement System ("MPSERS") and the
Teachers Insurance and Annuities Association - College Retirement Equities Fund ("TIAA-CREF"). As
of January 1 , 1 996, the University no longer offered participation in MPSERS to new employees due to
the Michigan Public Act 272 of 1 995 which enabled the University to withdraw from MPSERS.
MPSERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan tlu·ough
the Michigan State Employees' Retirement System. The University' s costs for the MPSERS plan include
1 ) contributions based on member payroll to fund normal pension costs, 2) contributions to fund a portion
of the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, and 3) contributions for retiree health insurance, at a
fixed dollar amount deterrnined annually by MPSERS.
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Note 6 - Retirement Benefits (continued)
The cost of the MPSERS plan allocated to the University, all of which was contributed in the applicable
year, was approximately $6,529,000, $6,655,000, and $6, 1 28,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013,
2012, and 201 1 , respectively. Further pension data audited by the Office of the Auditor General of the
State of Michigan, for the Michigan State Employees' Retirement System is included in the State of
Michigan's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
TIAA-CREF i s a defined contribution retirement plan. Substantially all full-time employees of the
University are eligible to participate in the TIAA-CREF plan. Employee benefits generally vest
immediately. The University contributes a specified percentage of employee wages, as defined by the
appropriate labor contract. For the years ended June 30, 201 3 , 201 2, and 20 1 1 , t�e University contributed
approximately $ 1 3 ,740,000, $ 1 3 , 1 32,000, and $ 1 2,480,000, respectively, to the TIAA-CREF plan. The
University has no liability beyond its own contribution under the TIAA-CREF plan.
The University provides tennination benefits upon retirement resulting from unused sick days. The
University calculates its sick pay liability in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 1 6,
Accounting for Compensated Absences. In 201 3 the University modified the sick leave and short-term
disability policy to eliminate sick leave accruals and retirement payouts for certain employees. In
addition, the revised policy established a new short-term disability plan to provide income protection for
certain employees unable to work for an extended period because of non-work-related illness or period of
incapacity. The liability is approximately $2,849,000 and $4,6 1 6,000 as of June 30, 201 3 and 20 12,
respectively. Approximately $400,000 is included in accrued payroll, taxes, and fringe benefits for the
years ended June 30, 20 1 3 and 2012. The remaining portion is included in accrued compensated
absences.
Other Postemplovment Benefits
The University has a single-employer plan that provides certain healthcare (medical, dental, and
prescription drug coverage) and life insurance benefits for retired faculty and staff. The plan covers 1 ,3 1 3
members as of July 1 , 20 1 2 for healthcare, 892 members for life insurance, and currently does not require
active members to contribute to the plan.
Plan Description - Substantially all of the University' s employees may become eligible for certain
healthcare benefits if they reach retirement age while working for the University, are vested in a
University-sponsored retirement plan, and their years of University service and age total a minimum of 70
- age 55 + 1 5 years of service or age 60 + 1 0 years of service. Eligibility for life insurance benefits are
vested in a University-sponsored plan when of service and age total a minimum of 70 - age 55 + 1 5 years
of service or age 60 + 10 years of service for certain employees or 60 - age 50 + 1 0 years of service for
other employees.
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Note 6 · Retirement Benefits (continued)
Funding Policy - The plan requirements are established and may be amended by the University's
management.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The University's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table
shows the components of the University's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed
to the plan, and changes in the University's OPEB obligation:

Normal cost
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in net OPEB obligations
Net OPEB obligation - Beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation - End of year

$

2013
1 86,000
718,000
904,000
(440,000)
464,000

$

440,000
904,000

$

2012
88,000
88,000
88,000

352,000
$ 440,000

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was O percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $9,382,000, and the actuarial
value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $9,382,000. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $98,403,000 for 201 2 and
201 1 , and the ratio of all UAAL to covered payroll was 9.5 percent for 201 2 and 201 1 .
Actuarial valuations of an ongoirig plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment and mortality. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.
In the July 1 , 20 1 2 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 6.5 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) based on the
expected long-term investment returns on the University's own investments and a salary inflation rate of
2%. The UAAL is being amortized as a projected unit credit level dollar, closed on a 30-year basis. The
remaining amortization period at June 30, 201 3 was 29 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 7 - Contingencies and Commitments
In the normal course of its activities, the University is a party to various legal actions. The University
intends to vigorously defend itself against any and all claims and is of the opinion that the outcome of
current legal actions will not have a material effect on the University's financial position.
The University participates in the Michigan Universities Self- Insurance Corporation ("MUSIC"), which
provides indemnity to members against comprehensive general liability, errors and omissions, and
property losses commonly covered by insurance. MUSIC also provides risk management and loss control
services and programs. Loss coverages are structured on a three-layer basis with each member retaining a
portion of its losses, MUSIC covering the second layer and commercial carriers covering the third.
Comprehensive general liability coverage is provided on an occmTence basis. Errors and orn..issions and
property coverage are provided on a claims-made basis.
The University is also self- insured for workers' compensation, unemployment compensation and
substantially all employee health benefits. Liabilities for estimates of losses retained by the University
under MUSIC and reserves for claims incurred but not reported under self-insurance programs have been
established.
Under current accounting standards, the University is required to estimate expected pollution remediation
outlays, when specified obligating events occur, and to determine whether these outlays should be
accrued for as a liability. As a result, the University has accrued an abatement liability for approximately
$297,000 and $426,000 for the years ended June 30, 201 3 and 20 l 2, respectively
Note 8 - Issued but not adopted accounting pronouncements
The Governmental Accounting Standings Board (GASB) has issued the following Statements for future
implementation:
Pensions: In June 20 12, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions. Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize
their unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability for the first time, and to more comprehensively and
comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and
transparency through revised note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI). The
university is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted. The total pension liability will be computed on a different basis than the current actuarial
accrued liability and the method of allocating this liability to each participating employer has not yet been
determined, so the precise impact is not known. However, if we approximate the liability based on the
actuarial accrued liability and allocate based on covered payroll, this computes to a liability of $73
million. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30,
20 15.
The University will continue to assess the impact of these new accounting pronouncements on the
University's financial statements for adoption in fiscal 201 5 .
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University Notes to Supplemental Schedules
Basis of Presentation:
The University utilizes four current and three noncmTent fund groupings for internal operating
purposes, as follows:
Current Fund Groupings:
General Fund is used to account for general operating activities.
Designated Fund is used to account for funds designated by the University.
Auxiliary Activities Fund is used to account for services and facilities provided to
students, faculty, staff, and the public and is managed to operate as a self-supporting
activity.
Expendable Restricted Fund is used to account for funds restricted by donor or
suppo1ti ng agency.
Noncurrent Fund Groupings:
Student Loan Fund is used to account for transactions related to loans to students.
Plant Fund is used to account for transactions relating to investments in physical
properties, indebtedness incurred in the financing thereof and reserves for maintenance,
replacement, insurance, and debt service.
Agency Fund is used to account for amounts held in custody for students, University
related organizations, and others.
The eliminations on the Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position by Fund
represent the reclass of scholarship allowances as required by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 35 - Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion
and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equi valents - unrestricted
Accounts receivable - Net
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable - Net
Long-term investments - unrestricted
Long-term investments - restricted
Capital assets - Net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrnerl payroll
Payroll taxes and accrued fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Long-term debt
Fair value of derivative instruments
Federal Perkins
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

�I cj

�

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
as of June 30, 2013
General
Fund

$

( 1 1 ,877,409)
7,878,453
12,084,827
532, 1 20
2,341 ,275
48,257
1 1 ,007,523

Auxiliary
Activities
Fund

Designated
Fund
$

5,907,484
59 1 , 1 37

$

6,628,823
3,258,430

80
15 4

63 1 , 175
93,599

6,498,855

1 0,61 2,027

36,543,771

$

$

36,543,771
47,551 ,294

5,954, 1 28
8,031 ,422
1 0,074, 1 82
5,374,907
1 ,432,480
30,867, 1 1 9

$

$

6,498,855

1 89,3 1 9

$

$

2,3 1 2,377
33,1 79,496

3,599,763
904,437
142,034
662,794
5,309,028

89,353
278,672

2,3 1 2,377

$

1 0,61 2,027

1 36,6 1 5

$

278,672

$

1 36,6 1 5
5,445,643

NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted-University development and Perkins Joans
Unrestricted
Designated
Undesignated
Total net position

$

$

$

14,371 ,798

14,371,798

40

$
6,220, 1 83

$

6,220,183

5,1 66,384
$

5,166,384
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SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
as of June 30, 2013

Expendable
Restricted
Fund
$

4,342,9 1 7
8,803,794

Student
Loan
Fund
$

1 8,395

$

4,837,194

$

$

6,22 1 ,873

$

6,22 1 ,873

7,02 1 , 1 84

$

592,986

Consolidated
Total

592,986

1 1 ,563 , 1 99
2 1 ,400,437
12,084,827
1 , 1 63,375
2,969,899
48,636
49,230,373

592,986

10,230,657
36,62 1 ,722
3,93 1 ,959
465,075,754
5 1 5,860,092
565,090,465

$

5 1 6,476
5,093,296

10,230,657
l 2,49 1 ,237

520

$

$

1 ,384,679

$

4,576,820

Agency
Fund

1 0,230,657

77,951
77,95 1
1 3,243,057

$

379
2,260,580

1 3 , 1 65 , 1 06

$

1 ,3 9 1 ,578
868,623

Plant
Fund

$

$

1 ,694,477

2,330,000
6, 1 06,334

$

$

$

592,986

2,330,000
20,700,145
8,031 ,422
1 0,978,61 9
7,571 ,072
2 , 1 32,774
5 1 ,744,032

592,986

2,448,992
237,350,000
25,307 , 1 60
1 0,796,240
275,902,392
327 ,646,424

1 2,887

$

580,099

37,500
8,473,834

520

1 0,796,240
10,796,240
10,796,760

3,931 ,959
465,075,754
469,007,7 1 3
474, 1 0 1 ,009

237 ,350,000
25,307 , 1 60
$

$

262,657, 1 60
27 1 , 1 30,994

200,088,594
3,93 1 ,959

$

$

$

$

( 1 ,050,538)
$

7,021,184

$

1 ,694,477

$

202,970,015

$

41

$

200,088,594
1 2,647,620
10,336,029
14,3 7 1 ,798
237,444,041
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SCHE LE OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
For June 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net stlldent tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities - Net
Indirect cost recovery (deduction)
Other
Total operating revenues

s

General
Fund

Designated
Fund

209,424,377 S

529,736 S

209,424,377

529,736

3,835,481

7
4,290,971

Auxiliary
Fund

42,473,577

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Instillltional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses - Net
Depreciation
Capital additions - Net
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

662,824

559,852
2,157,777
2 15,977,487

5,483,538

1 18,220,933
933,958
3,754,393
3 l,015,348
26,506,849
29,434,0 1 1
37,974,917
24,622,971

529,578
34,9 14
237,137
629, 133
2,5 1 1 ,207
800,634
62,756
7 1 ,692

42,473,577

32,102, 1 15
1 ,393,267
273,856,647
(57,879, I 60)

NONO PERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Gifts
Investment income
Change in value of derivative instruments
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Pell grants
Other

50, 13 1

8,645

4,927,182
556,356

32, 1 10,760
10,362,8 17

66,526,774
34,938
2,614,293

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) before
transfers and capital items
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Mandatory:
Funds for debt service
Matching funds
Non-mandatory:
Other
Total transfers

69, 141 ,067

34,938

(6,459,431 )
(394,020)

1,596

(6,370,279)
( 13,223,730)

22,965
24,561

(6,865,712)
(9,725,775 )

55,917,337

59,499

(9,725,775 )

( 1 ,961,823)

6 1 5,855

637,042

5,604,328
6,220,183 S

4,529,342
5,166,384

(2,860,063)

OTHER REVENUES
Capital Appropriations
Capital grants and gifts
Total net nonoperating and other revenues (expenses)
Increase (Decrease) in net position
NET POSITION, Beginning of year
NET POSITION, End of year

s

42

16,333,621
14,371,798 S

SCHEDULE OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
For June 30, 2013

Expendable
Restricted
Fund

$

798,906 $
798,906
6,747,485
1 ,578,566
624,949
723,380
1 ,984,092

( l ,222,676)
385,997
1 1 ,620,699

Student
Loan
Fund

Plant
Fund

- s

Eliminations

Consolidated

(6, 1 29,898)

21 0,753,01 9
(42,288,869)
168,464, l 50
6,797,632
l ,578,566
624,949
723,380
1 ,984,099
8, 126,452
36,343,679

(48,418,767)

2,589,7 l 7
227,232,624

$

- $
(42,288,869)
( 42,288,869)

50,147

45,943
96,090

1 ,224,024
3,075,891
7,457,002
57,915
109,812
135, 1 3 1
39,637,269

(42,288,869)
l,71 7,787
(6, l 29,898)
1 6,482,0 1 1
( 1 ,834,308)
83,391
16,448,88 1
( 1 6,448,8 8 1 )

382,265
52,079,309
(40,458,610)

4,504,005
(3,507)

1 83,007
183,007
(86,9 17)

(48,41 8,767)

7

5,650

10,406,442

5,650

1 1 8,783,688

21,213,876
( 12,688,334)
1 ,880,893

39,032,668

162,923

266,398
331 , 1 87,019
( I 03,954,395)
66,526,774
4,538,943
2,773,709
2 1 ,21 3,876
( 1 2,688,334)
1 ,880,893
34,394,008
143,819

162,923

34,394,008
138,162

l 1 9,974,535
4,044,763
1 1 ,448,532
3 l ,702,396
29,127,868
30,369,776
35,386,073
26,4 1 2,450
25,972,2 17
16,482,011

9,3 19,494
392,424
85,129
477,553

39,5 10,221
(948,389)
$

(5,650)

13,1 33,547
22,453,041

(5,650)

12,461
1 00,638

12,461
1 00,638

162,923

32,972,582

1 1 8,896,787

76,006

16,523,701

14,942,392

7,969,573

1 ,6 1 8,471

7,021,184 $

1 ,694,477

1 86,446, 3 1 4

s

202,970,015

s

222,501 ,649
- $

43

237,444,041
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SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
as of June 30, 2012

A S S ETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Accounts receivable - Net
Appropriation receivable
Inventories
Deposits and prepaid expenses
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets

General
Fund

$

Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable - Net
Long-term investments - unrestricted
Long-tenn investments - restricted
Capital assets - Net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-tem1 debt

$

NET POSITION
Net lnvestmcn in capital assets
Restricted-University development and Perkins loans
Unrestricted
Designated
Undesignatcd
Total net position

$

5,340,849
589,224

$

5,66 1 ,7 1 1
3,823,724

80
3,799

594,927
2 1 ,306

5,933,952

1 0 , 1 0 1 ,668

43,260,376

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrned payroll
Payroll taxes and accrued fringe benefits
Unearned fees and deposits
Insurance and other claims payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrned compensated absences
Long-term debt
Fair value of derivative instruments
Federal Perkins
Total noneurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

( 14,562,7 13 )
6 ,104,108
1 1 ,748,926
623,100
2,1 24,464
1 1 6,386
6, 1 54,27 1

Auxiliary
Activities
Fund

Designated
Fund

43,260,376
49,414,647

$

5,933,952

$

4,]20,605
8,008,796
9,874,225
5,767,270
1 ,267,575
29,238,47 1

$

$

3,569,2 1 0

236,750

782,41 7
258,351
588,427
5, 1 98,405

92,874
329,624

3,842,555

$

3,842,555
33,081 ,026

$

373,921

$

329,624

$

$

$

44

$

373,921
5,572,326

$

4,529,342

5,604,328
16,333,62 1
16,333,621

1 0, 1 0 1 ,668

5,604,328

$

4,529,342

�,
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EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSI
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
BY FUND GROUP
as of June 30, 2012

Expendable
Restricted
Fund
$

5,434,1 9 1
7,424,230

Student
Loan
Fund
$

486,424
7 7 1 ,476

Plant
Fund
$

5,236,383

Agency
Fund
$

6 15,890

Consolidated
Total
$

61 5,890

8,212,735
18,712,762
1 2,6 1 2,382
1 ,2 1 8,107
2,703,779
1 1 6,765
43,576,530

6 1 5,890

1 1 , 1 57,010
43,341,834
1 0,974,439
460,870, I 08
526,343,39 1
569,919,921

863,456
500

553,710
379
1 ,258,279

1 2,858,921

6,653,549

1 1 , 157,0 1 0
8 1 ,458

$

8 1 ,458
1 2,940,379

$

$

1 1 , 157,010
12,415,289

$

!J,202,107

$

$

1 0,974,439
460,870, I 08
47 1 ,844,547
478,498,096

578

2,965,000
l 1 ,348,25 l

578

37,500
14,350,751

$

$

$

$

6 1 5,890

2,965,000
23,694,246
8,008,796
1 0,656,642
7,486,339
1 ,893,502
54,704,525

615,890

4,216,476
2 3 1 , 1 80,000
46,5 2 1 ,03 1
1 0,796,240
292,71 3,747
347,418,272

16,745

768,699

599,145

4,970,806

2 3 1 , 1 80,000
46,521 ,03 1
$

4,970,806

$

$

1 0,796,240
1 0,796,240
1 0,796,8 1 8

$
7,969,573

277,70 1 ,03 1
292,05 1 ,782

$

185,757,787

$

1,61 8,471

$

$

688,527
$

7,969,573

$

1,618,471

$

186,446,314

$
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185,757,787
9,588,044
10,822,197
16,333,621
222,501 ,649
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SCHEDlJ E OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY FUND
For June 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees
Scholarship allowances
Net student tuition and fees
Federal grants and contracts
Federal financial aid
State grants and contracts
State financial aid
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Departmental activities
Auxiliary activities revenue, net
Indirect cost recovery (deduction)
Other

General
Fund
$

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction
Research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Scholarships and fellowships
Operation and maintenance of plant
Auxiliary activities expenses, net
Depreciation
Capital additions. net
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

203,848,781

Designated
Fund
$

661 ,743

4,032, 149

3,129,536

622,719
1 ,647,388
2 1 0, 1 5 1 ,037

745,740
4,537,019

123,941,816
1 , 176,542
3,791,540
25,634,413
27,680,432

737,289
45, 1 14
237,757
639,281
2,298,027

30,250,095
32,533,252
24,047, 15 I

990,208

1,633,697

89,136

101, 123

5,087,227
(550,208)

33,325,535
7,009,364

40,334,899

40,334,899

50,4 15

64,619,095

33,224,41 2

(20,013)

2,963,237

(20,013)

67,582,332

TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
:Mandatory:
Funds for debt service
Matching funds
Non-mandatory:
Other
Total transfers

$

203,848,781

270,688,938
(60,537,90 1 )

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Gifts
Investment income
Change in value of derivative instruments
Interest expense
Interest ARRA subsidy
Pell grants
Other
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) before transfers and capital items

661,743

Auxiliary
Fund

(6,701,247)
(357,092)

(2,654, I 19)

(2, 184,938)
(9,243,277)

(908,507)
(908,507)

(6,308,353)
(8,962,472)

58,339,055

(928,520)

(8,962,472)

( 1 ,478,728)

( 1 ,953, I 08)

OTHER REVENUES
Capital Appropriations
Capital grants and gifts
Total net nonoperating and other revenues (expenses)

(2.198,846)

Increase (Decrease) in net postion
NET POSITION, Beginning of year as restated
NET POSITION, End of year

$

46

1 8,532,467
1 6,333,621

$

7,083,056

5,604,328
======

S

6,482,450

==4,:,-29==,=
342

=

=
=
=

=
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SCHEDULE OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY FUND
For June 30, 2012

Expendable
Restricted
Fund
$

750,70-1

Student
Loan
Fund
$

750,704
7,210,443
2,274,675
292,917
658,130
2,500,058

Plant
Fund
$

Eliminations
$

35,044

(1 ,368,459)
608,2 19
1 2,926,687

39,328
74,372

1 ,490
1 .490

620,557
3,810,734
7,412, I 78
270,165
234,479
1 1 0, 1 1 1
39,649, 129

3,880,429
17,509

160,886

34,627,248
160,526
38,685,7 12

1 60,886

(42,908,721)

2,296,425
225,1 1 6,783

$

I 25 ,299,662
5,032,390
1 1 ,441,475
26,543,859
30,212,938
3 1 ,350,4 14
34,275,204
25,891 , 160
28,222,868
14,010,2 1 1

(5,001,544)

14,010,21 1
(1,901,159)
143,746
14,046,392
( 14,044,902)

201,147
201,147
( 1 26,775)

52,1 84,556
(39,257,869)

(5,001 ,544)

205,261,228
(37,907, 177)
167,354,051
7,245,487
2,274,675
292,91 7
658,130
2,500,058
7 , 1 6 1 ,685
35.333,355

(37,907,177)
(37 ,907, 1 77)

(37,907, 177)

1,793,594
77,203

Consolidated

344,893
332,625,074
( 1 07,508,291 )

(42,908,72 1 )

64,619,095
3,895, I 74
3,098,096
(30,786,866)
( 12,55 1 ,502)
1 ,880,893
34,627,248
160,532
64,942,670

34,758
(43,536)
(30,786,866)
( 1 2,55 1,502)
1,880,893
6
(41 ,466,247)

9,355,366
357,092
(232,488)
1 24,604

9,634,286
18,989,652
10,509,153
951,175

38,810,316
(447,553)

s

8,417,126
7,969,573

s

10,509,153
95 1 , 1 75

160,886

( 1 1 ,016,267)

76,402,998

34, 1 1 1

(25,061 .169)

(3 1 , I 05,293)

1,584,360
1,618,471

s

21 I ,507,483
1 86,446,3 1 4

s

$

47

253,606,942
222,501,649

B O A R D O F R E G E N TS
E A S TE R N M I C H I G AN U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION:
DATE:

22

October 1, 2013

RECOMMEN DATION
2 0 1 4-1 5 GENERAL FUND SCHOLARSHI PS, AWARDS AND GRANTS REQU EST
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the 2 0 1 4-201 5 General Fund Scholarships, Awards and
Grants proposal for $43,822,000.
STAFF SUM MARY
The General Fund Scholarships, Awards and Grants Request is presented to the Board for approval earlier than
the normal budget request timeframe to reflect programmatic and funding changes for the next recruitment
cycle, and to meet admission publ ication timelines.
Total FTIAC enrollment for Fall 20 1 3 increased by 285 to 2,880. Growth was realized with the retention of the
2 0 1 2 FTIAC cohort of 2,595. Many of these students qualified for scholarships and need-based aid for the first
time, and many higher academic achieving conti nuing students maintained their awards. We have moved from
2, 1 00 FTIAC to 2,880 FTIAC over two years, while raising ACT composite by nearly one full point to 22.0.
This request, which represents an 1 1 . 8% increase in student aid over the prior year, underscores the dramatic
growth in new student enrollment and retention, along with our continued sign ificant financial investment in
student education. It also reflects an effort to increase our enrollment through the attraction of more
academically prepared students able to succeed with the rigor of an EMU education.
Enrollment goals for 201 4-1 5 include attracting more transfer students, reinforcing recruitment efforts in targeted
suburban communities, reflecting a higher yield of financially needy students and anticipating an increased
number of retained students qualifying for scholarships.
FISCAL I MPLICATIONS
The 201 4-1 5 Scholarships, Awards and Grants proposal of $43,822, 000 represents an increase of $4,620 ,000
( 1 1 . 8%) over the 201 3-20 1 4 approved budget of $39,202,000.
The total proposal of $43,822,000 includes:
1 . Scholarships, Awards and Grants

$ 30,940,000

2. Athletic Grants-in-Aid

$

7,395,000

3. Federal and State Matches

$

500,000

4. Graduate Aid

$

4, 987,000

ADMIN ISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed board action has been reviewed and is recommended for board approval.

Univf;rsiP'v Executive Offi{er

Date

EASTERN
MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

Education First
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EXEC UTIVE SUMMARY

Key highl ights : 20 1 4- 1 5
It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the General Fund Scholarships,
Awards and Grants proposal for $43,822,000.
The primary source of funding increase reflects the recruitment of a 2013 FTIAC class of
2,850 students, 255 higher than the previous year. The expectation is to continue to
recruit a 2014 FTIAC class of 2,850 as reflected in this request.

Summary
I.

Total Academic Scholarships, Awards and Grants

$30,940,000

11.

Ill.

Ath letic Grants-in-Aid

$ 7,395,000

Federal and State Required Matches

$

IV.

G raduate Aid

$ 4,987,000

2014/2015 Scholarship, A thletic Aid & Awards Proposal

500,000

$43.822.000

Note: Exceptions are made at the discretion of the Director of Financial Aid or designee. Unless
otherwise noted, funds may be transferred from under-utilized accounts to other areas of need
within the above accounts.

3

CHART A

Award Name
Tuition Sensitive

Academic Team Scholarship
Presidential Scholarship
Regents Gold Scholarship
Michigan Indian Tuition Waiver
Wade Mccree Scholarship
National Scholars Program (NSP)*
EMU Vet Connect*
Come Home to Michigan*
Not Tuition Sensitive

Recognition of Excellence & GRWH
Campus Housing Awards
Leader Award
Regents Scholarship
Transfer Scholarship
Eagle Scholarship
Emerald Scholarship
TRUEMU
Challenge Award
Need Based

University Grant
Education First Opp Scholarship (EFOS)

Departmentally Managed

International Partnership Award*
Michigan National Guard Grant
Honors College Award
Undergraduate Honors Assistantship
Communication and Theatre Arts Award
Music Service Award
ROTC Service Award

Fin Aid
1 31 4 Ap roved

Units

Fin Aid
1 4 1 5 Pro osal

Units

Variance

50,000
1 ,000,000
484,000
230,000
60,000
4 , 1 97,000
35,000
140,000

3
57
50
60
10
365
3
10

50,000
1 , 080,000
560,000
280,000
35,000
4,780,000
30,000
1 00,000

3
57
52
62
6
425
3
8

0
80,000
76,000
50,000
(25, 000)
583,000
(5,000)
(40,000)

1 ,000,000
375,000
1 6 1 ,000
1 , 290,000
400,000
525,000
10,000,000
341 ,000
525,000

650
350
161
560
225
390
3,775
205
500

1 , 070,000
185,000
1 6 1 ,000
1 ,200,000
400,000
525,000
1 1 ,567,000
1 ,000,000
400,000

660
1 72
161
525
225
390
4,366
205
500

70,000
( 1 90,000)
0
(90,000)
0
0
1 ,567,000
659,000
( 1 25,000)

3, 1 1 7 ,000
700,000

2,600
400

3, 1 1 7,000
3, 1 1 5,000

2,600
1 ,780

0
2,4 1 5,000

1 ,395,000
120,000
200,000
90,000
65,000
60,000
30,000

1 65
76
200
35
59
76
20

720,000
1 20,000
200,000
90,000
65,000
60,000
30,000

85
76
200
35
59
76
20

Total Scholarships & Awards

26,590,000

Out State Tuition Differential*
Men's Athletic Award - Room/Board
Men's Athletic Award - Tuition/Fees
Spring Academic Aid
Women's Athletic Award - Tuition/Fees
Women's Athletic Award - Room/Board
Men's Football Summer
Women's Basketball Fifth Year Aid
Total Athletics

1 ,585,000
1 ,299,000
1 ,538,000
1 20,000
1 ,360,000
1 , 1 50,000
30,000
1 5,000
7,097,000

30,940,000

(675,000)
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
4,350,000

Athletics

94
151
151
1 34
1 34

1 ,708,000
1 ,342,000
1 ,590,000
120,000
1 ,400,000
1 , 1 90,000
30,000
1 5,000
7,395,000

1 00
151
151
1 34
1 34

123,000
43,000
52,000
0
40,000
40,000
0
0
298,000

Federal Matching Funds

Federal Work Study
Federal Perkins/NDSL
Federal Supplement Grant
Total Federal Matches

627,000
23,000
0
650,000

477,000
23,000
0
500,000

(1 50,000)
0
0
(1 50,000)

Total Undergraduate Aid

34,337,000

38,835,000

4,498,000

Graduate Aid

Total Graduate Aid

1 75,000
1 50,000
1 65,000
200,000
3,750,000
425,000
4, 865,000

Grand Total Financial Aid

39,202,000

EMU Success Scholarship
National Scholars Program (NSPGR)*
International Partnership Award*
Graduate Fellowships
Graduate Assistant Tuition
Doctorial Fellowships Tuition

• Non-Resident Tuition Differential awards

50
18
19
172
302
35

1 05,000
1 75,000
1 57,000
200,000
3,925,000
425,000
4,987,000
43,822,000

30
21
18
172
316
35

(70,000)
25,000
(8,000)
0
1 75,000
0
1 22,000
4,620,000

CHART B

2014-1 5 ATHLETICS GRANTS-IN-AID REQUEST
Detailed Analysis by Sport 08.21 .2013
Men's Athletic Aid
NCAA
EMU
85.0
1 3. 0
1 1 .7
4.5
9.9
1 2.6
9.9
1 46.6

85.0
1 3. 0
1 1 .7
4.5
9.9
1 2.6
9.9
1 46.6

Sport
Football
Basketball
Baseball
Golf
Swimming
Track/Cross Country
Wrestling
Total

Room &
Board

Tuition
& Fees

$752,505
$ 1 1 5,089
$1 03,580
$39,839
$87,645
$1 1 1 ,548
$87,645
$ 1 , 297,850

$890,460
$ 1 36 , 1 88
$1 22,569
$47,142
$ 1 03,712
$ 1 3 1 ,998
$ 1 03,712
$ 1 , 535,782
$2,833,631
96,645

5 Medicals @ $ 1 9,329 (tuition, fees, room and board)
Total Men's Athletic Awards
Women's Athletic Aid
N CAA
EMU
1 5. 0
12.0
1 2. 0
8.0
1 4. 0
1 2. 0
1 8. 0
1 4. 0
6.0
20.0
1 3 1 .0

1 5. 0
1 2. 0
1 2. 0
8.0
14.0
12.0
1 8. 0
1 4. 0
6.0
20.0
1 31 .0

Sport
Basketball
Softball
Volleyball
Tennis
Swimming
Gymn astics
Track/Cross Country
Soccer
Golf
Crew
Total

Room &
Board

Tuition
& Fees

$1 32,795
$1 06,236
$1 06,236
$70,824
$1 23,942
$ 1 06,236
$1 59,354
$1 23,942
$53, 1 1 8
$1 77,060
$ 1 , 1 59,743

$ 1 57, 1 40
$ 1 25,7 1 2
$125,712
$83,808
$ 1 46,664
$ 1 25,71 2
$ 1 88,568
$ 1 46,664
$62,856
$209,520
$1 ,372,356

3 Medicals @ $1 9,329 (tuition, fees, room, board)
Total Women's Athletic Awards

$2,532,099
57,987

1 00 O ut-of-State Differentials @ $1 7,078
Spring Academic Aid
Men's Football Summer Aid
Women's Basketball 5th Year Aid
GRAND TOTAL ATHLETIC AWARDS

NOTE: Average projected tuition/fee increase of 3.0% and room/board increase of 3.0% used to calculate revised 2014-154 funding.

$2,930,276

$2,590,086
1 ,707,800
120,000
30,000
15,000
$7,393,162
(rounded)

B OAR D O F R E G E N TS

EASTE R N M I C HI GAN U N I V E R S I TY

S ECTION: 23
DATE:
October 1 , 201 3

RECOMMENDATION
FISCAL YEAR 201 4-1 5 STATE CAPITAL OUTLAY PLAN
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the University's Capital Outlay Plan
and delegate authority to the President to submit the renovation of Strong Hall as the
University's top project request for state cost participation for Fiscal Year 2015.
STAFF SUMMARY

The State Budget Office issued its FY15 Capital Outlay memorandum to U niversity and
Community College Presidents on August 26, 2013. The Management and Budget Act,
Public Act 431 of 1 984, as amended, requires universities and community colleges to present
a Five-Year Capital Outlay Plan no later than November 1 of each year. Universities may
also elect to submit a capital outlay project request for state cost participation.
The renovation of Strong Hall has been identified as the University's top capital project
priority since Eastern received the capital outlay from the State for the Pray-Harrold
renovation .
Strong Hall i s part of Eastern's Science Complex and houses the Geology and Geography
and the Physics and Astronomy departments. Built in 1 957, Strong Hall has not received any
significant improvements or renovations since its construction. The projects reflects a major
renovation of the 87,500 gross square foot structure including modernizing classroom and
labs, lecture halls, student commons areas, and faculty offices, as well as, creating flexible
use spaces for both research and instruction and replacement of architectural, structural,
mechanical and electrical systems.
The Strong Hall project, along with the $90 m illion self- funded addition and renovation of the
Science Complex, demonstrates the University's commitment to the sciences and would
result in first-class science facilities on Eastern's campus.
To comply with the statutory requirement, Eastern Michigan U niversity will post its Five-Year
Capital Outlay Plan on the institutions internet site by November 1 , 20 1 3. I n add ition, the
Fiscal Year 2015 Capital Project request will also be on this internet site.
FISCAL IM PLICATIONS

The estimated cost to renovate Strong Hall is $45 million. At a funding mix of 75% State I
25% Eastern, the University's cost share would be $1 1.25 million.
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The proposed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Urwer\ity Executive Officer

Date

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E R N M I C H I G AN U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION: 2 4
DATE:
October 1, 2013

RECOMMENDATION

ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents amend the Board of Regents Policy 8.2, Access to
Student Records.

STAFF SUMMARY
Board Policy 8.2 Access to Student Records describes and informs students of the categories of
information about them that the University deems public and will disclose upon request.
Address (home and local) and telephone number will no longer be considered matters of public
record. The reason for this change is to enhance the security and privacy of EMU students.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposed Board action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

U niversity E xecutive Offi'cer
Gloria Hag e
Gen eral Counsel

Uate
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Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Student Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 8.2
Issue: Access to Student Records

Effective Date: 2-14- 1966
Revision Date: 6-15-2004

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University to assure any person who is or has been in
attendance as a student at the University access to his/her educational records and to protect such
individual's rights to privacy by limiting the transferability of records without his/her consent. It
is the further purpose of this policy to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act (FERPA) and other federal and state regulations.

The following are matters of public record and may be included in publications or disclosed
upon request without consent: the student's name,� address, telephone listing; e-mail address;
date and place of birth; major field of study; participation in officially recognized activities and
sports; weight and height of members of athletic teams; dates of attendance; enrollment status
[undergraduate or graduate, full-time or part-time]; grade level (e.g. freshman or iunior); degrees.,_
honors and awards received (including, but not limited to, the Dean's List); candidacy for degree;
and the most recent previous educational agency or institution attended by the student. This is
considered directory information.
Registration documents of student organizations which contain the names and addresses of the
officers and the statement of purpose of the organization are also considered public information.
These documents are available in the Office of Campus Life.

UNIVERSITY PRACTICE

The University shall annually notify enrolled students of their rights under this Act and also give
notice of the categories of personally identifiable information, which the institution has
designated as public or directory information.
The University shall make known the rights of eligible students by publishing a statement of
those rights in appropriate University publications and websites.
I. All personally identifiable information not designated as directory information is confidential
and shall be disclosed by the University only as provided herein.
A. Disclosure of Public Information
1 . Inquiries by telephone or in person for the items of public record listed as directory
information may be honored.
2. Blanket requests or requests requiring data in specific formats (mailing labels, etc.) may be
denied or a charge for the service may be levied.
3. EMU reserves the right to make public directory information unless a student's written
objection (specifying the category of information not to be made public without prior consent) is
filed at the Office of Records and Registration within 14 days after each term begins.
B. Disclosure of Confidential Information to the Student
Upon proper identification, a currently enrolled student has the right to inspect and review
official-records, files, and data directly related to the student as a student. This right extends to
former students and applicants for admission. Where such information involves other students,
the student shall be entitled to inspect or be informed of that portion of the information which
pertains to himself or herself only. Student access to records shall be pursuant to procedures
established for the granting of requests later in this section.
For the purposes of this section, the term educational records, files, and data shall include that
material on students pertaining to their status as students held by any person, office or
department which is intended for University use, or to be available to parties outside the
University. However, there are a number of records maintained in the University that are not
educational records.
Records that are maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, counselor or other recognized
professional or paraprofessional, used only in connection with a student's treatment and
unavailable to anyone not providing treatment, are not educational records. (Note: a personal
record inspection is permitted by a physician or appropriate professional of the student's choice.)
However, if the records involve or affect the status of the individual as a student in the
University, the student shall have access to them. If the records serve a client-professional
practitioner relationship, the student shall have access only through the practitioner. Release or
disclosure of these records shall be governed by state statute and codes of professional ethics.

Records created and maintained by the University's Department of Public Safety for the purpose
of law enforcement are not educational records.
Confidential recommendations or statements of evaluation obtained or prepared before January
1 , 1 975, and confidential recommendations (placed in the educational records after January 1,
1 975) respecting admission to the University, employment application or credentials, or receipt
of honors, provided the student has signed a waiver of his/her right of access thereto, are an
exception also. However, waivers may not be required as a condition of admission, receipt of
financial aid, or receipt of any other benefit from the University.

Any records on the financial status of parents are confidential between the parents and University
and are, therefore, not available to students.
A personal record made by and in possession of an EMU
instructional/supervisory/administrative staff member and accessible to no one else ( except a
substitute) is not an educational record.
C. Disclosure of Confidential Information to Third Parties

1 . Disclosure to individuals and public or private agencies.

Confidential information may be disclosed to individuals or agencies only with the prior written
consent of the student, unless the disclosure is pursuant to Section C2, following. Written
consent on the part of the student must be provided prior to the disclosure of the requested
information and shall ( 1 ) identify the individual, agency, or classes of individuals or agencies to
whom the information is to be made available; and (2) specify the records to be released.
2. Disclosure of confidential information without prior consent of the student.

Information otherwise confidential and requiring a student's consent may be released without
such consent pursuant to the conditions listed as follows:
a. The disclosure is to other school officials, including teachers, within the agency or institution
whom the agency or institution has determined to have legitimate educational interests.

A school official is a person employed by the University in an administrative, supervisory,
academic or research, or support staff position (including law enforcement unit personnel and
health staff); a person or company with whom the University has contracted (such as an attorney,
auditor, or collection agent); a person serving on the Board of Regents; or a student serving on an
official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school
official in performing his or her tasks.
All confidential information shall be disclosed only on a NEED TO KNOW BASIS. That is, an
official requesting information must have a legitimate educational interest in the information
(i.e., the official needs to review the information in order to fulfill his or her professional
responsibility). Determining whether the person making the request for the confidential

information is a school official and determining whether the person has a legitimate educational
interest in the information shall be the responsibility of the person in charge of that record or
file.
University faculty and staff whose responsibilities require the receipt or use of information shall
be responsible for its release and disclosure pursuant to the provisions of this policy. Release or
disclosure shall always be by the office which has primary responsibility for maintaining the
information.
b. Disclosure pursuant to judicial order.
Confidential information shall be released if properly subpoenaed pursuant to a judicial,
legislative or administrative proceeding. The student shall be notified of the order in advance of
compliance. unless the Court or other issuing agency orders the University not to disclose the
existence or contents of the subpoena or any information furnished in response.
c. Disclosure pursuant to requests for financial aid.
Appropriate student records may be disclosed without the student's prior consent in connection
with the student's application for, or receipt of, financial aid.
d. Disclosure to federal and state authorities.
Authorized federal and state officials shall have access to student records as required by the audit
and evaluation of federally Supported education programs and in connection with the
enforcement of federal legal requirements which relate to such programs.
e. Disclosure to organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, educational agencies or
institutions to: 1) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; 2) administer student aid
programs; or 3) improve instruction.
Requests for access to information for research must be presented to and authorized by the
president of the University or his/her designee. Such requests should include the elimination of
personal identification information. If the research requires release of information by name, the
president or his/her designee will require assurance that the data will be treated confidentially
and either returned or destroyed as soon as it has served its research purposes.
f. Disclosure to accrediting organizations.
g. Disclosure to parents of a dependent student, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, Section
1 52, 1954.
h. Conditions for disclosure in health and safety emergencies.

The University may disclose personally identifiable information from the education records of a
student to appropriate parties in connection with an emergency if knowledge of the information
is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals.
i. Disclosure to an alleged victim of any crime of violence (as that term is defined in Section 16
of Title 18 of the U.S. Code), the results of any disciplinary proceeding conducted by the
University against the alleged perpetrator of such crime with respect to such crime.
j. Disclosure to officials of other schools upon request, in which a student seeks or intends to
enroll with.
k. Disclosure of certain information to parents or guardians of students under the age of 2 1 found
responsible for violating any law, rule, or University policy pertaining to drugs or alcohol.
l . Disclosure of information the educational agency or institution has designated as "directory
information."
3. Restriction on further release of related records.
The University shall include, with any personal information on a student transferred to any party,
a written statement that such recipient cannot subsequently release such data in personally
identifiable form without first obtaining the written consent of the student.
4. Record of access.
Each office or officer of the University having custody of educational records shall maintain a
record, kept with the educational records of each student, which will indicate all individuals,
agencies, or organizations which have requested or obtained access to a student's educational
records maintained by such office or officer. Also, it will indicate specifically the legitimate
interest that such person, agency, or organization has in obtaining this information. Such record
of access shall be available to the student, to the aforesaid University officials, to the University
official and his/her assistants who are responsible for the custody of such records, and to the
federal and state officials involved in audit and evaluation under Section 99.37 of the Act's
regulations.
5. The University has a fee schedule for copies of academic transcripts and charges may be made
for copies of other records requested.

II. Procedure to Challenge Content of Educational Records at EMU
If a student believes his/her records contain inaccurate or misleading information or otherwise
are in violation of his/her rights, the first step to resolve the issue is through informal discussion
between the student and the official responsible for the maintenance of the records. If within 10
class days, when the University is in session, the matter is not satisfactorily settled, the issue will

be taken to the appropriate vice president who will initiate the hearing procedure. The eligible
student shall be afforded a full and fair opportunity to present evidence relevant to a request (1)
for correction or deletion of any inaccurate, misleading, or other data in violation of the student's
rights, and (2) for insertion into such records a written explanation regarding the contents of such
records. A decision shall be rendered in writing within a reasonable period of time after the
conclusion of the hearing to the appropriate vice president.
III. Annual Review And Disposition Of Records

A policy on Annual Review and Disposition of Records shall be established to charge each
individual unit with the responsibility of annually reviewing the records it holds. In all cases, the
objectives of the annual review will include consideration of reduction of records kept in
operational files, provide for a continuing review and evaluation of the type of records kept in
the operational files, and for disposal of routing records which are n.o longer necessary to the
operation.
If not otherwise prohibited by law, the University recognizes that educational institutions are not
precluded from destroying inappropriate or useless records which should not be maintained.
However, access shall be granted prior to destruction in those incidents where the eligible
student has requested such access prior to destruction.
IV. Student Access To His/Her Educational Records

The registrar or his/her designee is the University officer responsible for coordinating access
procedures. A list of University educational records and copies of the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, and the Act's Regulations, are available at the Office of
Records and Registration. A student seeking access to his/her personal educational records
should go to the Office of Records and Registration and complete the application form
required. The student will then be informed by letter as to the date and procedure to follow. In
no case will this process extend 45 days after the request has been made.
A student shall be entitled to an explanation of any information contained in official records,
files, and data directly related to the student and shall have the opportunity for a hearing to
challenge the content of such records to ensure that they are not inaccurate or misleading or
otherwise in violation of privacy or other rights of the student, and to provide an opportunity for
the correction or deletion of any inaccurate, misleading or otherwise inappropriate data.

The University reserves the right to deny transcripts or copies of records not required to be made
available by the Act in any of the following circumstances:
A. The student has unpaid financial obligations to the University.

B. There is unresolved disciplinary action against the student.
The following is a list of the types of records that Eastern Michigan University maintains, their
locations, and their custodians:

TYPES

LOCATION

Admission Records

Admissions Office, Pierce Hall

Cumulative Academic
Records
Health Records
Financial Aid Records
Financial Records

CUSTODIAN
Director, Admissions

Records Records and Registration,
Pierce Hall

Registrar

Financial Aid, Pierce Hall

Director, Financial Aid

University Health Services,
Snow Health Center

Student Business Services,
Pierce Hall

Director,
University Health Services
Director,
Student Business Services

RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The president of the University has the overall responsibility for implementing this policy in
compliance with the Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act and its regulations. The
president has the authority to modify this policy where modification(s) is required to bring the
policy into compliance with future amendments of the Act and/or its implementing regulations,
subject to notice to and ratification by the Board of Regents. Vice Presidents, deans, and
department heads are responsible for relaying the policy to faculty and staff for compliance.

SCOPE OF POLICY
The policy applies to all currently enrolled or formerly enrolled students.

Authority for Creation or Revision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 1-, 1 966, para. .33 l M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 5 , 1979, para. .2165M.

Policies, Rules and Regulations
Chapter Name: Student Programs and Requirements
Chapter No. 8.2

Issue: Access to Student Records

Effective Date: 2- 14-1966
Revision Date: 6-15-2004

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University to assure any person who is or has been in
attendance as a student at the University access to his/her educational records and to protect such
individual's rights to privacy by limiting the transferability of records without his/her consent. It
is the further purpose of this policy to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy
Act (FERPA) and other federal and state regulations.

The following are matters of public record and may be included in publications or disclosed
upon request without consent: the student's name; e-mail address; place of birth; major field of
study; participation in officially recognized activities and sports; weight and height of members
of athletic teams; dates of attendance; enrollment status [undergraduate or graduate, full-time or
part-time]; grade level (e.g. freshman or j unior); degrees, honors and awards received (including,
but not limited to, the Dean's List); candidacy for degree; and the most recent previous
educational agency or institution attended by the student. This is considered directory
information.
Registration documents of student organizations which contain the names and addresses of the
officers and the statement of purpose of the organization are also considered public information.
These documents are available in the Office of Campus Life.

UNIVERSITY PRACTICE

The University shall annually notify enrolled students of their rights under this Act and also give
notice of the categories of personally identifiable information, which the institution has
designated as public or directory information.
The University shall make known the rights of eligible students by publishing a statement of
those rights in appropriate University publications and websites.
I. All personally identifiable information not designated as directory information is confidential
and shall be disclosed by the University only as provided herein.
A. Disclosure of Public Information
1. Inquiries by telephone or in person for the items of public record listed as directory
information may be honored.
2. Blanket requests or requests requiring data in specific formats (mailing labels, etc.) may be
denied or a charge for the service may be levied.
3. EMU reserves the right to make public directory information unless a student's written
objection (specifying the category of information not to be made public without prior consent) is
filed at the Office of Records and Registration within 14 days after each term begins.
B. Disclosure of Confidential Information to the Student
Upon proper identification, a currently enrolled student has the right to inspect and review
official-records, files, and data directly related to the student as a student. This right extends to
former students and applicants for admission. Where such information involves other students,
the student shall be entitled to inspect or be informed of that portion of the information which
pertains to himself or herself only. Student access to records shall be pursuant to procedures
established for the granting of requests later in this section.
For the purposes of this section, the term educational records, files, and data shall include that
material on students pertaining to their status as students held by any person, office or
department which is intended for University use, or to be available to parties outside the
University. However, there are a number of records maintained in the University that are not
educational records.
Records that are maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, counselor or other recognized
professional or paraprofessional, used only in connection with a student's treatment and
unavailable to anyone not providing treatment, are not educational records. (Note: a personal
record inspection is permitted by a physician or appropriate professional of the student's choice.)
However, if the records involve or affect the status of the individual as a student in the
University, the student shall have access to them. If the records serve a client-professional
practitioner relationship, the student shall have access only through the practitioner. Release or
disclosure of these records shall be governed by state statute and codes of professional ethics.

Records created and maintained by the University's Department of Public Safety for the purpose
of law enforcement are not educational records.
Confidential recommendations or statements of evaluation obtained or prepared before January
1, 1 975, and confidential recommendations (placed in the educational records after January 1,
1975) respecting admission to the University, employment application or credentials, or receipt
of honors, provided the student has signed a waiver of his/her right of access thereto, are an
exception also. However, waivers may not be required as a condition of admission, receipt of
financial aid, or receipt of any other benefit from the University.
Any records on the financial status of parents are confidential between the parents and University
and are, therefore, not available to students.
A personal record made by and in possession of an EMU
instructional/supervisory/administrative staff member and accessible to no one else (except a
$ubstitute) is not an educational record.
C. Disclosure of Confidential Information to Third Parties
1. Disclosure to individuals and public or private agencies.
Confidential information may be disclosed to individuals or agencies only with the prior written
consent of the student, unless the disclosure is pursuant to Section C2, following. Written
consent on the part of the student must be provided prior to the disclosure of the requested
information and shall ( 1 ) identify the individual, agency, or classes of individuals or agencies to
whom the information is to be made available; and (2) specify the records to be released.
2. Disclosure of confidential information without prior consent of the student.
Information otherwise confidential and requiring a student's consent may be released without
such consent pursuant to the conditions listed as follows:
a. The disclosure is to other school officials, including teachers, within the agency or institution
whom the agency or institution has determined to have legitimate educational interests.
A school official is a person employed by the University in an administrative, supervisory,
academic or research, or support staff position (including law enforcement unit personnel and
health staff); a person or company with whom the University has contracted (such as an attorney,
auditor, or collection agent); a person serving on the Board of Regents; or a student serving on an
official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school
official in performing his or her tasks.
All confidential information shall be disclosed only on a NEED TO KNOW BASIS. That is, an
official requesting information must have a legitimate educational interest in the information
(i.e., the official needs to review the information in order to fulfill his or her professional
responsibility). Determining whether the person making the request for the confidential

information is a school official and determining whether the person has a legitimate educational
interest in the information shall be the responsibility of the person in charge of that record or
file.
University faculty and staff whose responsibilities require the receipt or use of information shall
be responsible for its release and disclosure pursuant to the provisions of this policy. Release or
disclosure shall always be by the office which has primary responsibility for maintaining the
information.
b. Disclosure pursuant to j udicial order.
Confidential information shall be released if properly subpoenaed pursuant to a judicial,
legislative or administrative proceeding. The student shall be notified of the order in advance of
compliance. unless the Court or other issuing agency orders the University not to disclose the
existence or contents of the subpoena or any information furnished in response.
c. Disclosure pursuant to requests for financial aid.
Appropriate student records may be disclosed without the student's prior consent in connection
with the student's application for, or receipt of, financial aid.
d. Disclosure to federal and state authorities.
Authorized federal and state officials shall have access to student records as required by the audit
and evaluation of federally Supported education programs and in connection with the
enforcement of federal legal requirements which relate to such programs.
e. Disclosure to organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, educational agencies or
institutions to: 1) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; 2) administer student aid
programs; or 3) improve instruction.
Requests for access to information for research must be presented to and authorized by the
president of the University or his/her designee. Such requests should include the elimination of
personal identification information. If the research requires release of information by name, the
president or his/her designee will require assurance that the data will be treated confidentially
and either returned or destroyed as soon as it has served its research purposes.
f. Disclosure to accrediting organizations.
g. Disclosure to parents of a dependent student, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, Section
152, 1954.
h. Conditions for disclosure in health and safety emergencies.

The University may disclose personally identifiable information from the education records of a
student to appropriate parties in connection with an emergency if knowledge of the information
is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals.
i. Disclosure to an alleged victim of any crime of violence (as that term is defined in Section 16
of Title 18 of the U.S . Code), the results of any disciplinary proceeding conducted by the
University against the alleged perpetrator of such crime with respect to such crime.
j. Disclosure to officials of other schools upon request, in which a student seeks or intends to
enroll with.
k. Disclosure of certain information to parents or guardians of students under the age of 21 found
responsible for violating any law, rule, or University policy pertaining to drugs or alcohol.
1. Disclosure of information the educational agency or institution has designated as "directory
information."
3. Restriction on further release of related records.
The University shall include, with any personal information on a student transferred to any party,
a written statement that such recipient cannot subsequently release such data in personally
identifiable form without first obtaining the written consent of the student.
4. Record of access.
Each office or officer of the University having custody of educational records shall maintain a
record, kept with the educational records of each student, which will indicate all individuals,
agencies, or organizations which have requested or obtained access to a student's educational
records maintained by such office or officer. Also, it will indicate specifically the legitimate
interest that such person, agency, or organization has in obtaining this information. Such record
of access shall be available to the student, to the aforesaid University officials, to the University
official and his/her assistants who are responsible for the custody of such records, and to the
federal and state officials involved in audit and evaluation under Section 99.37 of the Act's
regulations.
5 . The University has a fee schedule for copies of academic transcripts and charges may be made
for copies of other records requested.

II. Procedure to Challenge Content of Educational Records at EMU
If a student believes his/her records contain inaccurate or misleading information or otherwise
are in violation of his/her rights, the first step to resolve the issue is through informal discussion
between the student and the official responsible for the maintenance of the records. If within 10
class days, when the University is in session, the matter is not satisfactorily settled, the issue will

be taken to the appropriate vice president who will initiate the hearing procedure. The eligible
student shall be afforded a full and fair opportunity to present evidence relevant to a request ( 1)
for correction or deletion of any inaccurate, misleading, or other data in violation of the student's
rights, and (2) for insertion into such records a written explanation regarding the contents of such
records. A decision shall be rendered in writing within a reasonable period of time after the
conclusion of the hearing to the appropriate vice president.

III. Annual Review And Disposition Of Records
A policy on Annual Review and Disposition of Records shall be established to charge each
individual unit with the responsibility of annually reviewing the records it holds. In all cases, the
objectives of the annual review will include consideration of reduction of records kept in
operational files, provide for a continuing review and evaluation of the type of records kept in
the operational files, and for disposal of routing records which are no longer necessary to the
operation.
If not otherwise prohibited by law, the University recognizes that educational institutions are not
precluded from destroying inappropriate or useless records which should not be maintained.
However, access shall be granted prior to destruction in those incidents where the eligible
student has requested such access prior to destruction.

IV. Student Access To His/Her Educational Records
The registrar or his/her designee is the University officer responsible for coordinating access
procedures. A list of University educational records and copies of the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, and the Act's Regulations, are available at the Office of
Records and Registration. A student seeking access to his/her personal educational records
should go to the Office of Records and Registration and complete the application form
required. The student will then be informed by letter as to the date and procedure to follow. In
no case will this process extend 45 days after the request has been made.
A student shall be entitled to an explanation of any information contained in official records,
files, and data directly related to the student and shall have the opportunity for a hearing to
challenge the content of such records to ensure that they are not inaccurate or misleading or
otherwise in violation of privacy or other rights of the student, and to provide an opportunity for
the correction or deletion of any inaccurate, misleading or otherwise inappropriate data.
The University reserves the right to deny transcripts or copies of records not required to be made
available by the Act in any of the following circumstances:
A. The student has unpaid financial obligations to the University.

B. There is unresolved disciplinary action against the student.
The following is a list of the types of records that Eastern Michigan University maintains, their
locations, and their custodians:

TYPES

LOCATION

Admission Records

Admissions Office, Pierce Hall

Cumulative Academic
Records
Health Records
Financial Aid Records
Financial Records

Records Records and Registration,
Pierce Hall
University Health Services,
Snow Health Center
Financial Aid, Pierce Hall

Student Business Services,
Pierce Hall

CUSTODIAN
Director, Admissions
Registrar
Director,
University Health Services
Director, Financial Aid

Director,
Student Business Services

RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The president of the University has the overall responsibility for implementing this policy in
compliance with the Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act and its regulations. The
president has the authority to modify this policy where modification(s) is required to bring the
policy into compliance with future amendments of the Act and/or its implementing regulations,
subject to notice to and ratification by the Board of Regents. Vice Presidents, deans, and
department heads are responsible for relaying the policy to faculty and staff for compliance.

SCOPE OF POLICY
The policy applies to all currently enrolled or formerly enrolled students.

Authority for Creation or R evision:

Minutes of the Board of Regents, January 1-, 1966, para . .331M.
Minutes of the Board of Regents, December 5, 1979, para . . 2165M.
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October 1 , 2013

RECOMMENDA TION
Extreme Weath er Policy
ACTION REQUESTED

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the revised Extreme Weather Policy.

STAFF SU MMARY

The Extreme Weather Policy is applicable to all Eastern Michigan University employees
and students, and provides guidelines to evaluate extreme weather conditions in the context
of Eastern 's responsibility to provide the educational services purchased by students. The
President, in consultation with the Department of Public Safety and the Physical Plant, is
authorized to modify the class and/or work schedule in the event of extreme weather conditions.
When a decision is made to modify the schedule, the Division of Communications is charged
with implementing primary communications strategies to reach employees and students.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

None.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION

The propo�ed action has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Walter Kraft
Vice Presid ent for Communications

uate

Effective Date: 12-1-1978

Revision Date: 6-1 7-2003
Revision Date: 6- 1 8-2013

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University that eflly-the President or his/her designee,jn
consultation with the Department of Public Safety and the Physical Plant, -has the authority to
temporarily modify class and/or work schedules in the event of extreme weather conditions.,.
including but not limited to snow, freezing rain, floods, and hazardous winds. This decision may
include the temporary cancellation of all or part of scheduled academic programs and closure of
the University.
During an unscheduled closure, certain designated personnel are expected to report for 'Nork. For
the purpose of this policy, designated employees are defined as Safety and Security officers,
Heating Plant employees, Physical Plant Maintenance, Grounds and Custodial employees, Food
Service employees (i.vhen students are in residence), S\Vitchboard employees and any other
employees who are specifically requested to report to •.vork by the President or his/her designee.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
University practices for implementing this policy include:

1 . It is the University's practice to evaluate extreme weather conditions in the context of its
responsibility to provide the educational services purchased by students, particularly those who
live on or immediately adjacent to campus.
The Vice President for Business and Finance, utilizing information gathered by the departments
The Department of Public Safety and the Physical Plant, will advise the President or his/her
designee of regional weather conditions and advisories affecting vehicle and pedestrian
I mobility. In addition to campus roads, walkways, and parking lots, regional streets and
highways and local weather reports will be monitored in working with through the Washtenaw
County and State Police agencies.

f.

EXTREME WEATHER POLICY
In the event the President or his/her designee elect to modify class or work schedules, the
Division of Communications will be immediately notified. The Division of Communications
will:

• Send an emergency text message to those who have registered for emergency alert updates.
• Send an all-University e-mail message to EMU students and employees.
• Send notice via EMU's official main social media channels.
• Notify WEMU (89.1) and other local media.
• Post on the EMU home page (www.emich.edu).
• Post on digital campus signs.

The cancellation ofprograms at off-site locations, athletic events and special events will be made
on a case-specific basis and will be announced on the EMU home page and campus closures
�

information will be immediately conveyed to the follo1.ving campus departments:
EMU Department of Public Safety 487 1222
EMU switchboard 487 1849
WEMU FM (89.1)487 2229
EMU Ne ,ys line (Dept. of Public Information) 487 2460
The department ofPublic Information will also attempt to have the information broadcast over
local radio stations, such as WJR (760 AM), Wfn".A4 (1600 Am) and WTKA (1050 AM).
However, any doubt regarding the status ofUniversity operations should be confirmed by
contacting the above listed campus departments.
The E�ru department of Public Safety will be responsible for entering school closing
information into the Law Enforcement Information Network (LEIN) System, which includes,
among its subscribers, various television and radio stations in the state of Michigan.
In the event that class/work schedules are not officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions,
but an employee is unable or elects, because of personal safety concerns, not to report to work:
the employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible of their intended late
arrival or absence.
In the event that class/work schedules are officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions:
employees who are not required to report for work and/or who have reported for work and are
later sent home, shall be paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective
collective bargaining agreement. Non-bargained for employees will be paid in accordance with
the department of Human Resources' policy regarding closure of the University.
1

RESPONSIBILITY FOR lMPLEMENTATION
The President of the University or his/her designee has the overall responsibility for
implementation of this policy. The management of the policy is with the Vvice President for
Communications. Business and Finance in conjunction .vith the Executive Vice President who
provides 0 ,ersight to the Human Resources and Public Information departments.
1

1

SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
This policy applies to all University employees and students.

Effective Date: 12-1-1978
Revision Date: 6-1 7-2003

Revision Date: 6-1 8-2013

UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University that the President or his/her designee, in
consultation with the Department of Public Safety and the Physical Plant, has the authority to
temporarily modify class and/or work schedules in the event of extreme weather conditions,
including but not limited to snow, freezing rain, floods, and hazardous winds. This decision may
include the temporary cancellation of all or part of scheduled academic programs and closure of
the University.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
University practices for implementing this policy include:

1 . It is the University's practice to evaluate extreme weather conditions in the context of its
responsibility to provide the educational services purchased by students, particularly those who
live on or immediately adj acent to campus.
2. The Department of Public Safety and the Physical Plant will advise the President or his/her
designee of regional weather conditions and advisories affecting vehicle and pedestrian
mobility. In addition to campus roads, walkways and parking lots, regional streets and
highways and local weather reports will be monitored in working with Washtenaw County and
State Police agencies.

EXTREME WEATHER POLICY
In the event the President or his/her designee elect to modify class or work schedules, the
Division of Communications will be immediately notified. The Division of Communications
will:
• Send an emergency text message to those who have registered for emergency alert updates.
• Send an all-University e-mail message to EMU students and employees.
• Send notice via EMU' s official main social media channels.
• Notify WEMU (89. 1 ) and other local media.
• Post on the EMU home page (www.emich.edu).
• Post on digital campus signs.

The cancellation of programs at off-site locations, athletic events and special events will be made
on a case-specific basis and will be announced on the EMU home page and campus closures
page.

I n the event that class/work schedules are not officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions,
but an employee is unable or elects, because of personal safety concerns, not to report to work:
the employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible of their intended late
arrival or absence.

In the event that class/work schedules are officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions:
employees who are not required to report for work and/or who have reported for work and are
later sent home, shall be paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective
collective bargaining agreement. Non-bargained for employees will be paid in accordance with
the department of Human Resources' policy regarding closure of the University.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President of the University or his/her designee has the overall responsibility for
implementation of this policy. The management of the policy is with the Vice President for
Communications.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
This policy applies to all University employees and students.

Effective Date: 12- 1-1978
Revision Date: 6-17-2003
UNIVERSITY POLICY STATEMENT
It is the policy of Eastern Michigan University that only the President or his/her designee has the
authority to temporarily modify class and/or work schedules in the event of extreme weather
conditions including but not limited to snow, freezing rain, floods, and hazardous winds. This
decision may include the temporary cancellation of all or part of scheduled academic programs
and closure of the University.
During an unscheduled closure, certain designated personnel are expected to report for work. For
the purpose of this policy, designated employees are defined as Safety and Security officers,
Heating Plant employees, Physical Plant Maintenance, Grounds and Custodial employees, Food
Service employees (when students are in residence), switchboard employees and any other
employees who are specifically requested to report to work by the President or his/her designee.
UNIVERSITY PRACTICE
University practices for implementing this policy include:
1. It is the University's practice to evaluate extreme weather conditions in the context of its
responsibility to provide the educational services purchased by students, particularly those who
live on or immediately adjacent to campus.
2. The Vice President for Business and Finance, utilizing information gathered by the departments
of Public Safety and Physical Plant, will advise the President or his/her designee of regional
weather conditions and advisories affecting vehicle and pedestrian mobility. In addition to
campus roads, walkways, and parking lots, regional streets and highways and weather reports
will be monitored through the Washtenaw County and State Police agencies.
EXTREME WEATHER POLICY
In the event the President or his/her designee elect to modify class or work schedules,
information will be immediately conveyed to the following campus departments:
EMU Department of Public Safety 487-1222
EMU switchboard 487-1849
WEMU-FM (89.1) 487-2229
EMU News line (Dept. of Public Information) 487-2460
The department of Public Information will also attempt to have the information broadcast over
local radio stations, such as WJR (760-AM), WAAM (1600-Am) and WTKA ( 1050-AM).
However, any doubt regarding the status of University operations should be confirmed by
contacting the above listed campus departments.
The EMU department of Public Safety will be responsible for entering school closing
information into the Law Enforcement Information Network (LEIN) System, which includes,
among its subscribers, various television and radio stations in the state of Michigan.
In the event that class/work schedules are not officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions,
but an employee is unable or elects, because of personal safety concerns, not to report to work:
the employee must notify his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible of their intended late
arrival or absence.

In the event that class/work schedules are officially cancelled due to poor weather conditions:
employees who are not required to report for work and/or who have reported for work and are
later sent home, shall be paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective
collective bargaining agreement. Non-bargained for employees will be paid in accordance with
the department of Human Resources' policy regarding closure of the University.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPLEMENTATION
The President of the University or his/her designee has the overall responsibility for
implementation of this policy. The management of the policy is with the vice President for
Business and Finance in conjunction with the Executive Vice President who provides oversight
to the Human Resources and Public Information departments.
SCOPE OF POLICY COVERAGE
This policy applies to all University employees and students.

BOARD OF REGENTS
E A S T E RN M I C H I G A N U N I V E R S I T Y

SECTION : 2 6
DATE:

October 1 , 20 13

RECOMMENDATION
ACTION REQUESTED
It is recommended that the Board of Regents formally name the Eastern Michigan University
Eagle Crest Golf Club Clubhouse in honor of Regent Emeritus Roy E. Wilbanks.

STAFF SUMMARY
Pursuant to Board Policy 5.1 2, and upon approval of the Eastern Michigan University
Foundation Executive Committee, it is recommended that the Eastern Michigan University Eagle
Crest Golf Club Clubhouse be re-named in honor of Regent Emeritus Roy E. Wilbanks. In
making this Recommendation, consideration was given to:
•
•

Emeritus Regent Wilbanks' distinguished service which warrants recognition of his
exceptional contributions to the welfare of the University while serving the University in
a leadership capacity; and

Emeritus Regent Wilbanks' contribution in exceptional ways to the welfare of the
University so as to warrant recognition.

The attached resolution describes the significant contributions made by Emeritus Regent Roy E.
Wilbanks to the Eagle Crest Golf Course and Conference Center Resort.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no fiscal implications.

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION
The proposej). Board aqtion has been reviewed and is recommended for Board approval.

Date'
University Executtve()fficer
Tom Stevick, VP of Advancement and Executive Director
EMU Foundation

C: \Users\vreaume\Oocuments\October 2013\Recommendatlon Form Golr Course Clubhouse Nami ng.doc
19-Sap.13 slb

RESOLUTION
Naming of the Clubhouse at Eastern Michigan University Eagle
Crest Golf Clu b in honor of Regent Emeritus Roy E. Wilbanks
WHEREAS, Roy E. Wilbanks was appointed to the Eastern Michigan University Board of
Regents by Governor Jennifer Granholm in 2004 and served with distinction until 2012;
and,
WHEREAS, he honorably served as Chair of the Board of Regents from February 2009 to
December 2012, with an extraordinary commitment of time, energy and passion; and,
WHEREAS, the Board of Regents conveyed the title "Regent Emeritus" on him in 2012;
and,
WHEREAS, before his service on the Board, Emeritus Regent Wilbanks served many
roles on campus including: Assistant to the President for Government and Community
Relations, Vice President and Secretary to the Board of Regents, Executive Vice
President, and President and Chief Executive Officer of the EMU Foundation; and,
WHEREAS, his vision led to the formation of the EMU Foundation and the creation of
the beautiful Eagle Crest Golf Course and Conference Center Resort; and,
WHEREAS, he has worked tirelessly as an advocate for Eagle Crest throughout the
community;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Eastern Michigan University Board of
Regents upon proper approval of the EMU Foundation Executive Board and President
Susan Martin, do hereby name the golf clubhouse at the Eagle Crest Golf Club in honor of
Regent Emeritus Roy E. Wilbanks.
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